
Environment

Harmonizing with the Environment 
and Contributing to Realizing a 
Sustainable Society

Environmental Impact throughout 
the Daigas Group Value Chain in 
FY2021.3

Energy / Emissions
(Contribution to reduction in amount of CO2 emissions)

By responding to environment issues including 
climate change, developing and promoting innovative 
technologies, and providing environmentally friendly 
products and services including natural gas, the 
Daigas Group strives to reduce the environmental 
impact of business activities. By harmonizing its 
business activities with the environment, the Group 
will create a sustainable society.

The Daigas Group calculated the amount of greenhouse gas (GHG) 
emissions from companies that constitute the Daigas Group’s value 
chain network, based on the GHG Protocol, an international emission 
accounting standards. The methodology of the calculation and its 
results have been certified by an independent organization to verify 
their reliability and accuracy.

Combined GHG emissions by the Daigas Group and value 
chain companies, measured by CO2, totaled about 27.78 million tons 
in FY2021.3. The sum breaks down into about 5.51 million tons, or 
about 20%, for GHG emitted through business activities by the Daigas 
Group (Scope 1 and Scope 2), and about 22.27 million tons, or about 
80%, emitted by others in our value chain (Scope 3).

GHG emissions from city gas combustion on the customer side 
amounted to 16.39 million tons in the reporting year in terms of CO2, 
accounting for about 59% of the total. To reduce CO2 emissions in 
society as a whole, it is important for Osaka Gas to promote energy 
conservation using natural gas, an energy source with low CO2 
emissions, and further popularize high-efficiency equipment and 
systems such as its “ENE-FARM” and cogeneration systems.

GHG emissions through electricity generation by the Daigas 
Group, as measured in terms of CO2, came to 5.05 million tons, 
representing about 18% of the total emissions from the Group’s own 
business activities. With the power generation business expanding, 
the ratio of CO2 emissions from that business has been increasing. As 
a way of reducing GHG emissions from power generation, the Group 
will continue to actively introduce highly advanced energy-efficient 
power generation facilities and use renewable energy sources.

GHG emissions from material and fuel procurement totaled 5.03 
million tons, as measured in terms of CO2 in the year, accounting for 
about 18% of the total emissions. The procurement of energy 
sources, especially LNG, accounted for over 70% of that amount. 
Under these circumstances, we will continue our efforts to improve 
fuel efficiency regarding the operation of LNG tankers in collaboration 
with resource suppliers.

Activities that have potential environmental impacts other than 
GHG emissions include the disposal of waste (general waste and 
industrial waste), and the disposal of excavated soil and polyethylene 
pipes associated with gas pipe construction. However, the recycling 
rates are high for such waste, a situation we will try to maintain in the 
future. About 97% of water used for our industrial activities is taken 
from the sea. Such water is mostly used to vaporize LNG at LNG 
terminals. Seawater is also used as coolant inside the steam turbine 
condenser at some power plants. Once used, the water is discharged 
into the sea without being consumed under strict control.

Environmental conservation on a local and a global scale is an 
extremely important mission for the Daigas Group, whose 
operations center on the energy business. Greenhouse gases 
in particular are a leading cause of climate change, which is a 
global issue with huge impact on society, ecosystems, and the 
world as a whole. Because emissions of greenhouse gases are 
a large part of the environmental impact caused by the business 
activities of the Daigas Group, we actively engage in taking 
appropriate measures. In accordance with our “Daigas Group 
Environmental Policy,” the Daigas Group makes efforts to 
lessen the environmental impact of its business activities and 
customers through the expansion of utilization of natural gas 
and renewable energies, the provision of environmentally 
friendly products and services. And through our business 
activities, we contribute to environmental improvement and the 
development of sustainable societies locally, nationally, and 
internationally by pursuing harmony with the environment and 
making efficient use of energy and resources.

Several initiatives have been taken from FY2018.3 to FY2021.3. 
The initiatives in Japan include: cryogenic power generation at 
our city gas production facilities, the introduction of renewable 
energy sources and high-efficiency thermal power generation, the 
introduction of fuel cells and gas-powered air conditioning and 
high-efficiency hot-water heaters at customer sites, and 
conversion to the use of natural gas as a fuel. The introduction of 
high-efficiency thermal power generation and fuel conversion to 
natural gas were also promoted overseas. These efforts have 
resulted in a total reduction in CO2 emissions of approximately 
5.60 million tons. In FY2021.3, we did not achieve our target, 
partly as a result of delayed progress on new projects in previous 
fiscal years. We have set new targets for FY2022.3 onward, and 
will further promote related initiatives. Companies subject to the calculation of GHG emissions:

Osaka Gas Co., Ltd. and 56 companies among 154 consolidated subsidiaries are subject to 
calculation of GHG emissions. Those housed in office buildings as tenants and whose environmental 
data are difficult to grasp and whose environmental effects are minimal are not subject to such 
calculation. Also excluded from the calculation are overseas companies, except one company.

Results and evaluation of former materiality indicators (FY2019.3 – FY2021.3)

Fundamental Concept

Materiality

FY2021.3 target FY2021.3 result

Reduction of 

7million tons

Cumulative reduction of

5.6 million tons
Procurement

Procurement

B
usiness 

activities
B

usiness 
activities

Customer side

Scope
 1 and 2

Scope 3

Combustion of LNG

Combustion 
of city gas

GHG emissions:
27.78 million 
tons-CO2

LPG, coal, biomass

Other procurement 
items

City gas production/
supply, business of�ce

Power generation

Heat supply

LBS business 
and others
Sales, waste disposal 
(business activities by 
companies outside the 
Daigas Group)

LNG, natural gas
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City gas production/supply

Power generation

Commuting, business trips

City gas

Product shipment

Electricity

Outlets providing sales 
support to Osaka Gas

LNG

Waste disposal

Gas appliances

Leasing of assets

Chemical products

Services

Business office

LBS business (Life & Business Solution)

Heat supply

Others
・	

・	

・	� 

・	　

Engineering

Energy services

Renovation, 
maintenance

R&D etc.

Amount of 
LNG handled

6,464 thousand tons
The figure above includes 
the amounts of the items 
listed below:
● Materials of city gas
● Fuels at LNG terminals
● �Fuels used by Group 

companies for power 
generation

LPG used for 
calorific
adjustment of 
city gas

188 thousand tons

Gas 7,157 million m³

Electricity 16,133 million kWh

City gas 1,753 million m³ (including gas whose calorific 
value has yet to be adjusted)

Purchased electricity 453 million kWh

Other energy sources 13,465 TJ

Gasoline 1,649 kl

City gas 45 thousand m³

Diesel 732 kl

LPG 8 thousand m³

General water, 
industrial water 13.807     million m³

Underground 
water 3.530 million m³

Seawater 551.419 million m³

Emissions
 (1,000 t-CO2)

LNG, natural gas 3,680

LPG, coal, biomass 185

Purchased goods 1,165

Total 5,031

Emissions
(1,000 t-CO2)

Combustion 
of city gas 16,390

Combustion 
of LNG 753

Total 17,143

Emissions (1,000 t-CO2)

97

Amount of 
discharge

NOX 853 tons

SOX 185 tons

Toluene 37.6 tons

Xylene 10.8 tons

COD* 2.9 tons

Discharge 
of
water

Sewer 1.205 million m³

River 3.196 million m³

Sea 554.149 million m³

Emissions (1,000 t-CO2)

City gas production 105

Business office (including supply) 30

Power generation 5,052

Heat supply 91

LBS and others 234

Total 5,513

Generated Recycled

General waste 1,120 tons 94%

Industrial waste 114,436 tons 97%

Excavated soil 701,910 tons 0.3%

PE pipe 146 tons 100%

Used gas 
appliances
recovered

1,703 tons 86%
GHG emissions due to energy consumption 
arising from various activities, including 
commuting of employees, business trips, 
transportation of products, business activities 
at outlets that provide sales support to 
Osaka Gas, disposal of own waste, disposal 
of product waste, and leasing of assets.

CO2 emission factors used
● �

● �
● �

Electricity: 0.65 kg-CO2/kWh (2016 anti-global warming 
plan; FY2014.3 average emission factor for fossil-based 
electricity sources)
City gas: 2.29 kg-CO2/m³ (based on Osaka Gas data)
Others: Factors listed under the Law Concerning the 
Promotion of Measures to Cope with Global Warming

Breakdown of Scope 3 categories
*1 Category 1−4 (purchased products, capital goods, fuel 

procurement, upstream transportation)
*2 Category 5−9, 12−14 (waste, business trips, commuting, 

leased assets, downstream distribution, end-of-life treatment 
of sold products, franchises)

*3 Category 11 (use of sold products)

Sources of emission factors used for 
calculating CO2 emissions

Production and transmission of city gas:
“Life cycle evaluation of city gas” on the 
website of the Japan Gas Association
Production and shipment of LNG:
Calculation of life cycle greenhouse gas 
emissions of LNG and City Gas 13A (papers
presented at research presentation meetings 
of the 35th Meeting of the Japan Society
of Energy and Resources, June 2016)
Production and shipment of LPG and coal:
Future forecast for life cycle greenhouse gas 
emissions of LNG and City Gas 13A
(Energy and Resources, Vol. 28, No. 2, 
March 2007)
Other main emission factors:
Emission factors for calculating supply-chain 
greenhouse gas emissions, etc.
(Database Ver. 3.1) published in March 2021 
by the Ministry of Environment

● �

● �

● �

● �

Urban 
development

ITMaterials

* At time of city 
gas production

Business activities by Osaka Gas

Sales, waste disposal
(Business activities by companies 

outside the Daigas Group)

Customers

City gas use / power generation 
use / marketing use

LNG, natural gas

City gas use / marketing use

LPG

Power generation use

Coal, biomass

Materials / consumable goods / 
capital goods / gas equipment for 

sale / electricity / gasoline and others

Other purchased goods

Procurement of
materials and fuels

(activities by outside companies)

A third-party verification has been conducted by Bureau Veritas Japan Co., Ltd.Verified by a third party

Please see our website for reports on sustainability activities at the Daigas Group.

■ Main Materials and Fuels

■ GHG (Scope 3*1)

■ GHG (Scope 3*3)

■ GHG (Scope 3*2)
■ Chemical Substances 

and Discharge of Water

■ GHG (Scope 1 and 2)

■ Waste

■ Sales Volume of Main Products■ Amount of Energy Used

■ Amount of Vehicle Fuel Used ■ Amount of Water Intake
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Results and evaluation of former materiality indicatorsSocial (FY2019.3 – FY2021.3)

Creating Value for Customers

Being a Good Corporate Citizen Contributing to Society

The Daigas Group will endeavor to ensure stable procurement, stable supply, and 
security to enable customers to utilize energy safely. In so doing, the Group will 
provide products and services of value to its customers.

Through communication with society, we aim to advance the sustainability of local 
communities.

The Daigas Group is committed to making a positive 
contribution to realizing a higher level of comfort and 
development in the business activities of its customers through 
safe and stable supply of natural gas and other energy sources 
including electricity and LPG, and by ensuring safe use of gas 
and equipment with an improved level of services for its 
customers. We believe that an important foundation in realizing 
this will be improvement of energy resilience so that customers 
can use energy without worry. We will endeavor to provide 
products and services that give utmost reassurance to safety 
and will take on the challenge of creating value in line with 
customers’ wishes in order to be a corporate group that 
continually evolves and develops alongside its customers.

Through business activities rooted in communities, the Daigas 
Group works to build good relationships with various 
stakeholders, based on an understanding of changes in the 
environments and issues faced by local communities. While 
actively disclosing information to promote better understanding 
of our business, we are working on creating value with society 
(joint efforts with local communities) including the “Small Light 
Campaign” by our employees, with the focus on five areas 
which are “Regional Community,” “History and Culture,” 
“Sports and Health,” “Safety and Security,” and “Diet.” We are 
undertaking these activities by making active use of the Daigas 
Group’s business resources. By doing so, we will contribute to 
the development of sustainable local communities in which 
people can enrich their lives in comfort.

Fundamental Concept

Fundamental Concept

FY2021.3 target FY2021.3 result

100% 100%

Materiality
In FY2021.3, all major business offices undertook various activities 
tailored to their characteristics.

We promoted communication enhancement activities to 
deepen the public’s understanding of business projects run by the 
Daigas Group. In addition, we filed proposals aimed at building 
resilient cities and communities while developing programs for 
making regional communities attractive by adding new value.

Local 
Communities

In FY2021.3, all procedures were conducted based on guidelines in 
accordance with laws and regulations as well as in-house rules for 
processes such as quality control of gas in LNG terminals, safety 
inspection of gas pipelines and supply facilities, and safety 
inspection of gas appliances with customer consent.

FY2021.3 target FY2021.3 result

Customer Health 
and Safety* 100% 100%

Materiality

* Percentage of city gas for which health and safety impacts are assessed for improvement against total city gas provided by Osaka Gas
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daigas_ir_e_1-116_1004.indd   63daigas_ir_e_1-116_1004.indd   63 2021/10/05   13:252021/10/05   13:25

Complying with Laws and Regulations and Respect for Human Rights

Management Policy for Human Growth

The Daigas Group believes that observing compliance and respecting human rights 
are the most important factors for the Group in winning trust from customers and 
society, and constitute the basis of business continuity.

The Daigas Group is working to become a corporate group that promotes the growth of its 
employees through work by employing a personnel management system that promotes an 
environment in which individuality and initiative are respected and diverse talent is cultivated.

Based on our notion that compliance extends beyond just 
following laws and regulations to include exhibiting decent 
behavior as a member of society, the Daigas Group recognizes 
fulfilling compliance as continuing to live up to the expectations 
of customers, employees, society and shareholders while 
winning their trust and sympathy. The Group thus endeavors to 
maintain fair and honest relations with customers, business 

The Daigas Group strives to secure employment, and aims to be a 
corporate group where all employees can achieve personal growth 
through their work. To that end, we have introduced career-course-
specific human resources systems designed to respect and put to 
full use the individuality and autonomy of employees, and we have 
been conducting a wide range of training. We have also formulated 

Although there were no substantiated complaints regarding breaches of customer privacy, the Daigas Group will 
continue endeavoring to ensure complete management of all customer data.

partners, and all other parties, and to respect human rights. 
Ensuring compliance is the most important thing we can do to 
gain the trust of customers and the society, and is the basis for 
continuing our business. Recognizing that every management 
and employee is the key to compliance, we are continually 
conducting training sessions and employee surveys to raise 
awareness.

the “Daigas Group Diversity Promotion Policy” to ensure that a 
diverse range of people can play active roles at the Daigas Group. 
Convinced that ensuring employees’ safety and maintaining/
improving their physical and mental well-being are keys to all our 
operations, we are also undertaking efforts to prevent work 
accidents and to promote fitness.

Customer Privacy

Fundamental Concept

Fundamental Concept

Materiality

A total of 41 suppliers began new business transactions with 
Osaka Gas in FY2021.3. In the year, no business deals were 
barred from being started due to violations of standards set in 
the fields of environmental and social impacts, human rights 
and labor practices.

FY2021.3 target

(Impact on the environment and society, 
human rights and labor practices)

FY2021.3 result

Supplier Assessment* 100% 100%

Materiality

* Percentage of new suppliers that have been screened using criteria regarding environment, social impact, human rights and labor practices

Training and 
Education

Materiality

Diversity and 
Equal 
Opportunity

Materiality

To help develop employee skills, 
we conduct assessments through 
meetings between employees 
and their superiors based on 
Management by Objectives 
(MBO), with periodic follow-up 
meetings. This mechanism 
encourages each individual’s 
willingness to grow and helps us 
formulate a training plan.

■�Average hours of 
training per employee

FY2021.3 resultFY2021.3 target

Development of 
human resources, 
improvement of 
work environment

■�e-Learning (safety, information security, 
environment, human rights) program
* �Includes some temporary employees and 

part-time workers25.1hours No. of 
participants:5,411 / course

No. of hours: 3.61 hours / person

Based on the Act for Measures to Support the 
Development of the Next Generation and the Act on the 
Promotion of Women’s Participation and Advancement 
in the Workplace, we have been promoting initiatives 
with the aim of maintaining a 30% or higher female 
personnel ratio in career-track positions and achieving 
a female manager ratio* of 5% by 2020.

* Percentage of women in managerial or higher positions

■�Percentage of women 
among personnel 
hired for career-track 
positions

FY2021.3 resultFY2021.3 target

Promotion of 
diversity

■�Percentage of 
women in 
management 
positions

26.8% 5.0%
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Formulation of Human Rights Policy

In April 2021, the Daigas Group formulated the “Daigas Group 
Human Rights Policy.”

The Group believes that the utmost respect should be given 
to human rights in all aspects of our operations. As such, when 
engaging in business activities, we have complied with laws and 
regulations in different countries and regions, respected 
international standards, and taken into consideration different 
cultures, customs, and the interest of stakeholders. In response 
to the announcement of “Japan’s National Action Plan on 
Business and Human Rights (2020-2025)” by the Japanese 
government in October 2020, we formulated a human rights 
policy and at the same time separated the section on “Respect 
for Human Rights” from the chapter on “Complying with Laws 
and Regulations and Respect for Human Rights” in the “Daigas 
Group Charter of Business Conduct*” and made revisions to the 

“Daigas Group Code of Business Conduct,” in order to 
demonstrate the Daigas Group’s stance toward respecting 
human rights. Additionally, we revised the “Daigas Group Diversity 
Promotion Policy,” aiming to become a corporate group where a 
diverse range of personnel respect and accept each other without 
discrimination, and experience a sense of purpose at work.

As we look to expand the scope of our business fields, the 
Daigas Group will focus on promoting diversity. At the same time, 
we will also fulfill our responsibility to respect the human rights of 
Daigas Group stakeholders in all aspects of our business 
activities, across the Group as a whole, in accordance with the 
“Daigas Group Human Rights Policy.”

1   Endorsement of international agreements

We support international agreements on human rights, including the 
International Bill of Human Rights and the Declaration on Fundamental 
Principles and Rights at Work of the International Labour Organization 
(ILO). We commit to respect human rights as set out in the United Nations 
Guiding Principles on Business and Human Rights.

11

2   Scope of application

This policy applies to all directors, officers, and employees of the 
Daigas Group.

2

3   �Legal compliance and respect for internationally 
recognized human rights
We comply with the applicable laws and regulations of the countries 
and regions where we operate. In case where there is a conflict 
between internationally recognized human rights standards and the 
laws and regulations of each country or region, we will pursue ways 
to respect international human rights principles.

3

4   �Respect for human rights in all process of 
business activities
In all processes of our business activities, we strive to prevent and 
reduce negative impacts on the human rights of stakeholders 
involved in the Daigas Group’s businesses.
4-1  We respect the human rights of our employees and provide a 

healthy and comfortable work environment.
4-2  We respect human rights of customers and business partners. 

In case where negative impacts on human rights by business 
partners or other related parties are directly linked to the 
Daigas Group’s businesses, products or services, we will 
demand that such business partners and related parties 
respect human rights and not infringe upon them.

4-3  We assess and address the impact of our business activities 
on local communities.

4

We conduct human rights due diligence, in which we identify and 
assess the negative human rights impact of our business activities 
and take steps to prevent or mitigate such risks.

5   Human rights due diligence5

6   Remedy

If it becomes clear that the Daigas Group’s business activities are 
causing or contributing to negative impacts on human rights, we 
will work to correct and remedy the situation through appropriate 
procedures.

6

7   Stakeholder engagement

We engage in sincere dialogue and consultation with affected 
stakeholders on how to address actual or potential impacts on 
human rights.

7

8   Education and awareness

We provide education to ensure that all directors, officers, and 
employees of the Daigas Group understand this Policy and act in 
accordance with this Policy in our business activities.

8

9   Reporting

We report the progress on our human rights efforts that we make 
based on this Policy through our website and other communication 
channels.

9

* The “Daigas Group CSR Charter,” which was a set of guiding principles for the actions of 
Directors, Audit & Supervisory Board Members, and employees, was revised to form the 
“Daigas Group Charter of Business Conduct,” which expresses our stance as a company.

Information Disclosure to Stakeholders – Responding to TCFD Recommendations –

For the Daigas Group, climate change represents an important management challenge. We support 
the TCFD recommendations, and utilize them as indicators to validate our climate change response.

The Daigas Group recognizes that climate change has the 
potential to impact business revenue and expenditures. We 
understand the business risks and opportunities presented by 
climate change, and believe that implementing measures, and 

Fundamental Concept

making our responsibility to do so clear to our stakeholders, will 
lead to the sustainable development of both our business and 
local communities.

Please refer to “Climate Change Initiatives –Recognition of and Action on Risks and Opportunities–” on P.33 for 
recognition of risks and opportunities of climate change and details associated with climate change in the areas of 
governance, strategy, risk management, and indicators and targets—the core elements recommended by the Task 
Force on Climate-related Financial Disclosures (TCFD). We also report these matters on our sustainability website.

Economic Performance*

Materiality

* Financial implications and other risks and opportunities due to climate change
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Efforts Under the Spread of COVID-19 Infections

■ Measures to secure a stable supply of gas and electricity and ensure safety

■ Measures to ensure the safety of employees

■ New safety-conscious initiatives at showrooms and events

In response to the COVID-19 pandemic, Osaka Gas, Osaka 
Gas Marketing Co., Ltd., Daigas Energy Co., Ltd., and Daigas 
Gas and Power Solution Co., Ltd. have all implemented the 
following initiatives since the COVID-19 pandemic was 
confirmed in Japan and abroad in late January 2020, until the 

In March 2020, we established a task force to secure a stable supply and transitioned to a system tailored to the circumstances. 
Through these measures, we have been working to secure a stable supply of gas and electricity and ensure safety.

● �In offices, we are taking measures to prevent the spread of 
infection, such as providing disinfectants, encouraging 
handwashing, and setting up partitions in offices and other 
places.

● �In order to prevent infection among employees, we have set 
up an environment for working from home by developing a 
remote access environment and introducing online 
conference systems, internal SNS, etc. Additionally, we are 
promoting the active utilization of working from home and 

●� �In order to assist customers unable to visit showrooms 
during the COVID-19 pandemic in their consideration of 
household furnishings and appliances, we are providing 
online viewings and 3D virtual viewings utilizing a 
communication app at the “hu+gMUSEUM,” a center for 
providing information about food and living.

●� �For the “Gas-ten,” which previously we held at facilities, 
etc., we held an online “Tsunagaru Gas-ten” in consideration 
of customers’ safety. (Held from October 1 to December 20, 
2020) See P.40 for details.

present, based on the “Act on Special Measures for Pandemic 
Influenza and New Infectious Diseases.” At the same time, we 
are also working together with local communities on social 
contribution activities.

Image of virtual tour of hu+gMUSEUM
(Users can see explanations by pressing the round orange buttons during 
virtual tours)

Measures at
LNG terminals

In order to secure a stable supply of gas and electricity, we have implemented the following 
initiatives.
●� �At production sites and power plants, we are limiting entry to central control rooms by persons other than operators, 

and are also taking measures such as disinfections and measuring temperatures when employees enter central 
control rooms. Additionally, there is no contact between employees when changing shifts, and instead a video 
conferencing system is used.

●� �When receiving materials from LNG and LPG ships, our employees do not board the ships. Instead they perform 
loading operations on a non-contact basis from land.

Measures to
secure supply
and ensure
safety

In order to secure a stable supply of gas and ensure the safety of supply facilities (pipelines, etc.), we 
have implemented the following initiatives.
●� �We monitor and control the status of the supply of gas in an integrated manner, using a 24-hour system. At the Central 

Control Office, which issues directions for the prompt dispatch of staff from respective locations in the event of any 
reports from customers, we have taken measures such as disinfections and measuring temperatures when employees 
enter the room, and distributing offices. In September 2020, we held a company-wide disaster-prevention drill under 
the assumption of an ongoing COVID-19 pandemic. Additionally, we have formulated guidelines for the establishment 
and operation of general supervisory headquarters at sites and area task forces in the event of emergency.

staggered shifts by expanding the range of employees eligible 
for these programs and increasing the frequency of their use. 
Looking ahead, we will continue actively utilizing working from 
home and staggered shifts from the perspective of preventing 
infection and controlling the flow of people.

● �We are cancelling and delaying business trips and group 
training sessions, seminars, etc., or moving these events 
online, depending on the status of the spread of infection.
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Governance

Improving Compliance Awareness: In-house Training Efforts, etc.

We are continually working to improve compliance awareness 
through such efforts as training sessions and awareness 
surveys. For example, we conduct case method training to 
sharpen the ability to think ethically, and offer Compliance 
Coordinator and Staff Seminars for compliance coordinators 
and staff who serve as key personnel in the compliance efforts 
of organizations and affiliated companies (including all 
subsidiaries), training sessions for organizational heads and 
higher-ranked managerial personnel featuring outside 

instructors, and education arranged by job level for managers 
and new employees. In addition, we have achieved our goal of 
100% for the training participation rate among Daigas Group 
employees used as an indicator by extending the compliance 
training directed by individual organizations and affiliate 
companies. In addition, we undertake educational activities 
such as soliciting “Compliance Slogans” from employees each 
year (10,354 submissions were received group-wide in 
FY2021.3).

■ Compliance Promotion Systems ■ Compliance Education

The Daigas Group has established “Compliance / Risk 
Management Subcommittees” under the “ESG Committee,” in 
order to consider cross-organizational measures and share 
information, etc. The Compliance Office in the General Affairs 
Department promotes compliance across the Daigas Group as 
a whole, and we have also selected “Heads of Compliance” at 
each Business Unit, Company, and Core Affiliate, as well as 
“Compliance coordinators” and “staff who serve as key 
personnel in the compliance efforts” in each organization of 
Osaka Gas and each affiliate, as part of efforts to enhance 
compliance across the Daigas Group as a whole.

The Daigas Group believes that ensuring compliance is the 
most important thing we can do to gain the trust of customers 
and the society, and is the basis for continuing our business. 
Recognizing that every management and employee is the key 
to compliance, we are continually conducting training sessions 
and employee surveys to raise awareness.

Compliance

Representative Director and President

ESG Council

Head of ESG Promotion (Vice President)

Compliance Office, General Affairs Dept. 
(Secretariat)

ESG Committee

Compliance / 
Risk Management Subcommittee

(Each organization and affiliate) 
Compliance coordinators and staff who serve as key 
personnel in the compliance efforts

(Each Business Unit, Company, Core Affiliate, etc.) 
Head of Compliance

Reception desks for consultations and reports 
(Compliance Desks)
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Promotion of Global Compliance

Reporting Systems and Compliance Desks

In view of expanding business operations abroad, an English 
version of the leaflet summarizing the “Daigas Group Corporate 
Principles,” the “Daigas Group Charter of Business Conduct,” 
the “Daigas Group Code of Business Conduct” and Compliance 
Desks used for the internal reporting system was posted on the 
intranet for dissemination to employees. As in FY2020.3, in 

The Daigas Group has established “Compliance Desks” as a 
system aimed at quickly identifying cases of violations of laws 
and regulations, misconduct, etc., and responding quickly and 
appropriately. “Compliance Desks” have been established 
within Osaka Gas, key affiliates, an external attorney’s office, 
and elsewhere, to accept consultations and reports from 
employees of the Daigas Group, business partners, and other 

FY2021.3, we utilized the Osaka Gas proprietary risk 
management system “G-RIMS,” with revisions to certain items 
for overseas subsidiaries, as we endeavored to identify the 
status of measures toward risks at 18 key subsidiaries 
overseas.

related parties. Furthermore, we have also established a 
“Human Rights Desk” in the Human Resources Department as 
a contact point for consultations about the human rights of 
employees, as well as “Harassment Desk” within respective 
organizations and affiliates as contact points for consultations 
about harassment from employees.

■ Number of Consultations / Reports ■ Breakdown of Report Content

0

50

100

2019.3 2021.3 (FY)

200

150

(No.)

112

165

2020.3

191

Strengthening Information Security Measures

The evolution of the Internet has led to sharp 
rises in leaks of confidential information, 
infections by computer viruses and other 
serious social issues, and the harm suffered 
by companies from such incidents 
increasingly extends beyond direct damage, 
even resulting in the loss of public trust.

As a business operator responsible for 
social infrastructure, Osaka Gas recognizes 
the importance of managing customer 
information and other data, and has 
established Cyber Security Committee as a 
corporate committee in August 2019. Under 
the leadership of the Information Security 
Subcommittee, which is placed under the 
Cyber Security Committee, we have sought 
to enhance the security measures.

■ Information Security Management Structure

Human rights,
harassment

Labor matters

38%

23%

8%

17%

14%

Corruption or 
misconduct

Lack of 
management

Others

Representative Director
and President

ESG Committee

All Company Committee Meetings

Cyber Security
Committee

Investment Evaluation
Committee DX Committee

Information Security Subcommittee

Daigas Group companies (including Osaka Gas)

Secretariat

Control Security Subcommittee

Executive Board

Monitoring, advice and 
directions for 
improvement pertaining 
to information security 
measures

(As of April 1, 2021)
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Representative
Director

Tadashi Miyagawa

Representative
Director and President

Masataka Fujiwara

Representative
Director

Takayuki Tasaka

Chairman
of the Board

Takehiro Honjo

Representative
Director

Takeshi Matsui

Corporate Governance

As a corporate group that powers “continuous advancement” in 
consumer life and business, our Corporate Principles aim to create 
four types of value: “Value for Customers,” “Value for Society,” 
“Value for Shareholders” and “Value for Employees” by providing 
various products and services relating to not only the energy 
business, including natural gas, electricity and LPG, but also its 
peripheral services and non-energy businesses, such as urban 
development, materials and information businesses.

Under this Corporate Principles, the Company and its affiliates 

The Company has selected to be a company with Audit & 
Supervisory Board and conducted the introduction of an executive 
officer system, appointment of multiple Outside Directors, and 
establishment of voluntary advisory committees corresponding to 
appointment of Directors and Audit & Supervisory Board Members 

(the “Group”) will respond appropriately to the exercising of 
shareholder rights, and work toward maintaining and increasing a 
sense of trust by dialogue and cooperation with its stakeholders. In 
addition, the Group will continue to enhance and strengthen 
corporate governance in order to respond quickly and appropriately 
to changes in the business environment surrounding the Group, 
make transparent, fair and decisive decisions, and execute 
business efficiently and appropriately.

and Director remuneration. The Company considers its current 
governance system best suited in order for responding swiftly to 
changes in the business environment, ensuring transparency, 
fairness and boldness in decision-making, and implement efficient 
and appropriate actions.

■ Basic Views on Corporate Governance

■ Corporate Governance Organization Chart  (as of June 25, 2021)

Audit 
Agency

Executive 
Agency

Making Important 
Decisions; Monitoring 
and Supervisory 
Function

Appointment Proposal and Report

Delegating 
Authority

Consult

Proposal 
and Report

Delegating 
Authority

Submission 
and Report Proposal

Coordination, 
Facilitation, etc.

Report,
 etc.

Report

Cooperation
(Sharing Information, etc.)

Cooperation
(Sharing 
Information, etc.)

Approval of Audit Plans, etc. / Report Audit Results

Cooperation
(Sharing 
Information, etc.)

Appointment Appointment Report

Audit,
etc.

Audit,
etc.

Making Important 
Decisions; Supervision

Directors (Board of Directors)*1

(including Outside Directors)

Executive Directors
(Executive Vice Presidents, Senior Executive Of�cers)

Osaka Gas: Basic Organization

Affiliates

Executive
Board*4

Advisory
Committee*2

(Nomination and
Remuneration)

Representative
Director and President

(Executive President)

Accounting
Auditor

Executive Directors
(Executive Vice Presidents, Senior Executive Of�cers)

Auditing Dept.   

Internal
Audit

Internal
Audit

Corporate Committees
・
・
　
・
・

ESG Committee
Cyber Security 
Committee

DX Committee

Investment Evaluation 
Committee

Audit 
Function

Business 
Execution 
Function

*1 Board of Directors: 10 Directors 
(6 Internal Directors and 4 
Outside Directors)

*2 Advisory Committee: 4 Outside 
Directors, Representative 
Director and President and a 
person appointed by the 
President (up to one member 
who is a Representative Director)

*3 Audit & Supervisory Board: 5 
Audit & Supervisory Board 
Members (2 full-time Audit & 
Supervisory Board Members, 3 
Outside Audit & Supervisory 
Board Members)

*4 Executive Board: 1 Executive 
President, 3 Executive Vice 
Presidents and 6 Senior 
Executive Of�cers

    (In principle, it is held three times 
per year as “ESG Council.”)

General Meeting of Shareholders

Of�ce of Audit &
Supervisory Board

Audit & Supervisory
Board Members*3

(Including Outside Members)
1

6 2

2 2

5

3 7
8

10
9

4
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■ Audit & Supervisory Board, 
    Audit & Supervisory Board Members

The Audit & Supervisory Board consists of five Audit & Supervisory 
Board Members, of whom three are Outside Auditors and each 
Audit & Supervisory Board Member monitors the execution of work 
duties by the Directors.

4

■ ESG Committee
The Company has established the ESG Committee to coordinate and 
advance group-wide ESG management, which is chaired by the Head of 
ESG Promotion, who is the Officer in charge of overseeing the promotion 
of Group’s ESG management, and is composed of the General Managers, 
etc. of relevant divisions. The ESG Committee promotes activities relating 
to the Group's sustainability, including the environment, compliance, social 
contribution, respect for human rights, and risk management.

7

■ Cyber Security Committee
The Company has established the Cyber Security Committee to reinforce 
the cyber security measures of the Group, which is chaired by the Officer 
in charge of the Information/Communication Systems Department, and is 
composed of the General Managers, etc. of relevant divisions.

8

■ DX Committee
In April 2021, the Company established the DX Committee chaired 
by the President of the Corporate Planning Headquarters and 
consisting of the General Managers of relevant divisions, etc. The 
Committee promotes DX (Digital Transformation: a business 
transformation by utilizing digital technology) for the entire group 
while coordinating the alignment with business, IT, and financial 
strategies across the organization. 

9

■ Investment Evaluation Committee
The Committee is chaired by the President of the Corporate Planning 
Headquarters and composed of the General Managers of relevant 
divisions, etc. It examines risk and return and assesses investments in 
excess of a certain amount, and it reports findings to the Executive 
Board to help make appropriate investment decisions.

10

■ Advisory Committee
The Advisory Committee consists of all the outside Directors (four), the 
President and, if necessary, a person appointed by the President (the President 
may appoint up to one person from among the other Representative Directors). 
From the perspective of ensuring objectivity and transparency in the decision-
making process, the Advisory Committee deliberates on matters related to the 
election of candidates for Directors and Audit & Supervisory Board Members, 
matters related to the selection and dismissal of Representative Directors and 
other Executive Directors, and matters related to the remuneration of Directors. 
The committee chairperson is appointed by the committee members.

6

The Company established the Auditing Department as an internal audit division. 
Based on a yearly auditing plan, it evaluates, from independent and neutral 
viewpoints, the adequacy of business activities in light of in-house standards, 
their efficiency, and the appropriateness of various systems and standards 
adopted by the Company. In addition to giving recommendations and 
conducting follow-ups that lead to business improvements in the organizations 
subject to audit, the department summarizes the issues and reports its results 
to the Executive Board. The Auditing Department is subject to periodical 
evaluation from an outside party to maintain and improve its auditing abilities.

■ Auditing Department5　■ Board of Directors, Directors of the Company
The Board of Directors consists of 10 Directors (including four 
outside Directors). Its mission is to formulate the Board of Directors 
Regulations and standards for voting on resolutions in the Board of 
Directors, make swift and appropriate decisions about important 
matters that affect the whole Group including subsidiaries and to 
enhance supervisory capabilities. The Articles of Incorporation 
stipulate that there shall be no more than 15 Directors. They also 
direct that appointment of Directors is to take place with a quorum 
of shareholders possessing at least one-third of shareholder voting 
rights and by a majority of voting rights held by shareholders 
present, and that no cumulative voting may be used for appointing 
Directors. 12 Board of Directors meetings were held in the fiscal 
year ended March 31, 2021. Meetings discussed the Group’s 
management plans, the establishment of important organizations, 
important human resources matters, execution of important 
investments and agreements greater than a certain amount, and 
operational status reports etc. from executive Directors. The rate of 
attendance at meetings was 100%.

1

■ Executive Officers
The Company has adopted an executive officer system (Executive 
Officers consist of Executive President, Executive Vice Presidents, 
Senior Executive Officers, and Executive Officers), which enables the 
Directors of the Company to focus on making business decision and 
monitoring and supervisory functions, and worked toward 
strengthening the business efficiency and the supervisory functions 
by vitalizing the Board of Directors. Executive Officers perform duties 
determined by the Board of Directors, and some Representative 
Directors and Directors concurrently serve as Executive Officers to 
make management decision-making more accurate and efficient.

2

■ Executive Board
The Company examines basic management policies and important 
management issues at the Executive Board and fully deliberates the 
foregoing before decision-making. In accordance with internal 
regulations, the Executive Board consists of the Executive President, 
Executive Vice President, Senior Executive Officer, Head of Corporate 
Headquarters, and Head of Business Unit (including the President of 
Network Company). In principle, the Executive Board is held three 
times per year as “ESG Council,” which deliberates on activity plans 
for reports on activities related to promotion of ESG management.

3

Board of Directors

Percentage of Non-executive Directors

Executive 
Directors: 
5 persons

Directors: 10 persons

Non-executive 
Directors: 
5 persons

Percentage of Independent Outside Directors (Nomination)

Advisory Committee

Directors: 10 persons Directors: 5 persons

50% Internal 
Directors: 
6 persons

Outside 
Directors: 
4 persons

40%

Internal 
Director: 
1 person

Outside 
Directors: 
4 persons

80%

(Remuneration)

Directors: 6 persons

Internal 
Directors: 
2 persons

Outside 
Directors: 
4 persons

67%
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Directors

[Biography]
1978.  4	 Joined the Company
2003.  4	 General Manager of Corporate Strategy Dept.
2007.  6	 Executive Officer
2008.  6	 Senior Executive Officer
2008.  6	 Head of Commercial & Industrial Energy 
	 Business Unit
2009.  6	 Director, Senior Executive Officer
2010.  6	 Head of Residential Energy Business Unit
2013.  4	 Representative Director, Executive 
	 Vice-President
2015.  4	 Representative Director and President, 
	 Executive President
2021.  1	 Chairman of the Board (current)

Chairman of the Board

Takehiro Honjo

[Biography]
1982.  4	 Joined the Company
2009.  6	 General Manager of Keiji Energy Sales Dept., 

Commercial & Industrial Energy Business Unit
2012.  4	 Executive Officer
2012.  4	 General Manager of Energy Business 

Development Dept., Commercial & Industrial 
Energy Business Unit

2013.  4	 Representative Director and President of 
Osaka Gas Chemicals Co., Ltd.

2015.  4	 Senior Executive Officer
2016.  4	 Executive Vice-President
2016.  4	 President of Corporate Planning 

Headquarters
2016.  6	 Representative Director, Executive 

Vice-President
2020.  4	 Head of Energy Solution Business Unit
2021.  1	 Representative Director and President, 

Executive President (current)

Representative Director and President
Executive President

Masataka Fujiwara

[Biography]
1982.  4	 Joined Ministry of International Trade and 
	 Industry
2013.  6	 Director-General of Manufacturing 
	 Industries Bureau, Ministry of Economy, 
	 Trade and Industry
2014.  7	 Retired from Ministry of Economy, Trade 
	 and Industry
2015.  1	 Joined the Company
2015.  4	 Senior Executive Officer
2016.  6	 Director, Senior Executive Officer
2018.  4	 Representative Director, Executive 
	 Vice-President (current)
2020.  4	 Head of LNG, Power & Engineering 
	 Business Unit (current)

Representative Director
Executive Vice-President

Tadashi Miyagawa

[Biography]
1983.  4	 Joined the Company
2009.  6	 General Manager of Finance Dept.
2013.  4	 Executive Officer
2014.  4	 General Manager of Human Resources Dept.
2016.  4	 Senior Executive Officer
2016.  4	 Head of Energy Resources & International 

Business Unit
2017.  6	 Director, Senior Executive Officer
2019.  4	 President of Corporate Planning 

Headquarters
2019.  4	 Representative Director, Executive 

Vice-President (current)
2021.  1	 President of Corporate Planning 

Headquarters (current)

Representative Director
Executive Vice-President

Takeshi Matsui

[Biography]
1985.  4	 Joined the Company
2011.  4	 General Manager of Corporate Strategy Dept.
2015.  4	 Executive Officer
2015.  4	 General Manager of Planning Dept., 
	 Residential Energy Business Unit
2016.  4	 Senior Executive Officer
2016.  4	 Head of Residential Energy Business Unit
2018.  4	 Head of Commercial & Industrial Energy 
	 Business Unit
2018.  6	 Director, Senior Executive Officer
2020.  4	 President of Corporate Planning 
	 Headquarters
2021.  1	 Representative Director, Executive Vice-
	 President (current)
	 Head of Energy Solution Business Unit (current)

Representative Director
Executive Vice-President
Head of Energy Solution 
Business Unit

Takayuki Tasaka

[Reason for appointment]
He has accumulated 
considerable experience and 
extensive knowledge in 
corporate and organizational 
management, particularly in 
sales, marketing, and business 
strategies. The Company 
therefore believes that he is 
capable of contributing to the 
improvement of the Group’s 
corporate value and has 
appointed him as Director.

[Reason for appointment]
He has accumulated 
considerable experience and 
extensive knowledge in 
corporate and organizational 
management, particularly in 
social contribution, production of 
gas and power generation, and 
technologies. The Company 
therefore believes that he is 
capable of contributing to the 
improvement of the Group’s 
corporate value and has 
appointed him as Director.

[Reason for appointment]
He has accumulated 
considerable experience and 
extensive knowledge in 
corporate and organizational 
management, particularly in 
business strategies, sales and 
marketing. The Company 
therefore believes that he is 
capable of contributing to the 
improvement of the Group’s 
corporate value and has 
appointed him as Director.

[Reason for appointment]
He has accumulated 
considerable experience and 
extensive knowledge in 
corporate and organizational 
management, particularly in 
governance and risk 
management. The Company 
therefore believes that he is 
capable of contributing to the 
improvement of the Group’s 
corporate value and has 
appointed him as Director.

[Reason for appointment]
He has accumulated 
considerable experience and 
extensive knowledge in 
corporate and organizational 
management, particularly in 
finance and accounting, the 
international energy business, 
and business strategies. The 
Company therefore believes that 
he is capable of contributing to 
the improvement of the Group’s 
corporate value and has 
appointed him as Director.

[Reason for appointment]
He has accumulated 
considerable experience and 
extensive knowledge in 
corporate and organizational 
management, particularly in 
sales and marketing, business 
strategies, and technologies. The 
Company therefore believes that 
he is capable of contributing to 
the improvement of the Group’s 
corporate value and has 
appointed him as Director.

[Biography]

1985.  4	 Joined the Company
2011.  4	 General Manager of Secretariat
2016.  4	 Executive Officer
2016.  4	 General Manager of General Affairs Dept.
2018.  4	 Senior Executive Officer
2018.  6	 Director, Senior Executive Officer
2020.  6	 Senior Executive Officer
2021.  6	 Director, Senior Executive Officer (current)

Director
Senior Executive Officer

Fumitoshi Takeguchi
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[Biography]
1978.  4	 Joined Japanese National Railways
2012.  6	 Vice President of West Japan Railway 
	 Company
2016.  6	 President, Representative Director, and 
	 Executive Officer of West Japan Railway 
	 Company
2019. 12	Vice Chairman and Director of West Japan 
	 Railway Company
2020.  6	 Director of the Company (current)
2021.  6	 Advisor of West Japan Railway Company 
	 (current)
2021.  6	 Audit & Supervisory Board Member of 
	 Sumitomo Electric Industries, Ltd. (current)

Board of Directors Meetings Attendance Record 
(April 1, 2020‒March 31, 2021)
Attended 10 of 10 meetings of the Board of Directors 
held after he assumed the office of Director of the 
Company on June 26, 2020. He made comments as 
appropriate based on his considerable experience and 
extensive knowledge in corporate and organizational 
management and from his independent position as an 
outside director.

Outside Director

Tatsuo Kijima

[Biography]
1976.  4	 Joined Nippon Telegraph and Telephone Public 
	 Corporation
2009.  6	 Representative Director and Senior Executive 
	 Vice President of NIPPON TELEGRAPH AND 
	 TELEPHONE WEST CORPORATION
2012.  6	 Representative Director and President of 
	 NIPPON TELEGRAPH AND TELEPHONE 	
	 WEST CORPORATION
2018.  6	 Counselor to the president, NIPPON 
	 TELEGRAPH AND TELEPHONE WEST 
	 CORPORATION (current)
2019.  6	 Director of Keihan Holdings Co., Ltd. (current)
2019.  6	 Director of the Company (current)

Board of Directors Meetings Attendance Record 
(April 1, 2020‒March 31, 2021)
Attended 12 of 12 meetings of the Board of Directors. 
He made comments as appropriate based on his 
considerable experience and extensive knowledge in 
corporate and organizational management and from his 
independent position as an outside director.

Outside Director

Kazutoshi Murao

[Biography]
1989. 10	Professor, Faculty of Engineering, Osaka University
1998.  4	 Dean of the Graduate School of Engineering, Dean 
	 of the Faculty of Engineering, Osaka University
2002.  4	 Dean of the Graduate School of Information Science 
	 and Technology, Osaka University
2003.  8	 President of Osaka University
2007.  9	 President of the National Institute of Information and 
	 Communications Technology
2012.  6	 Representative Director of Knowledge Capital 
	 Association (current)
2013.  4	 Specially Appointed Professor, Graduate School of 
	 Information Science and Technology, Osaka University
2013.  6	 Director of West Japan Railway Company (current)
2013.  6	 Director of the Company (current)
2016.  4	 Visiting Professor, Graduate School of Information 
	 Science and Technology, Osaka University (current)

Board of Directors Meetings Attendance Record 
(April 1, 2020‒March 31, 2021)
Attended 12 of 12 meetings of the Board of Directors. He made 
comments as appropriate based on his considerable experience 
and extensive knowledge in organizational management and 
from his independent position as an outside director.

[Reason for appointment]
He has the experience of 
serving as Representative 
Director and President of 
NIPPON TELEGRAPH AND 
TELEPHONE WEST 
CORPORATION and has 
considerable experience 
and extensive knowledge 
particularly in corporate 
and organizational 
management. The 
Company therefore 
believes that he is capable 
of contributing to the 
improvement of the Group’s 
corporate value and has 
appointed him as Director.

[Reason for appointment]
She has made considerable 
achievements in the field of 
social studies related to life 
and culture. In addition, she 
held positions as General 
Manager of Next Generation 
Institute of Suntory Co., Ltd. 
and Trustee of Otemon 
Gakuin Educational 
Foundation, and has deep 
insight particularly in life and 
culture as well as 
considerable experience 
and extensive knowledge in 
organizational management. 
The Company therefore 
believes that she is capable 
of contributing to the 
improvement of the Group’s 
corporate value and has 
appointed her as Director.

[Reason for appointment]
He has made considerable 
research-related achievements 
in the field of information 
engineering. In addition, he 
held positions as Dean of 
Graduate School of 
Information Science and 
Technology, Osaka University, 
and President of Osaka 
University, and has deep 
insight particularly in 
information science and 
technology as well as 
considerable experience and 
extensive knowledge in 
organizational management. 
The Company therefore 
believes that he is capable of 
contributing to the 
improvement of the Group’s 
corporate value and has 
appointed him as Director.

[Reason for appointment]
He has the experience of 
serving as President, 
Representative Director 
and Executive Officer of 
West Japan Railway 
Company and has 
considerable experience 
and extensive knowledge 
particularly in corporate 
and organizational 
management. The 
Company therefore 
believes that he is capable 
of contributing to the 
improvement of the Group’s 
corporate value and has 
appointed him as Director.

Outside Director

Hideo Miyahara

[Biography]
1975.  4	 Joined Suntory Co., Ltd.
2008.  4	 Senior Research Fellow of Suntory Foundation 
	 (incorporated foundation)
2013.10	 Specially-appointed Professor of Otemon 
	 Gakuin University, Special Professor of Institute
	 for Creating Local Culture of Otemon Gakuin 
	 University
2014.  5	 Director of Mature Society Research Institute, 
	 Otemon Gakuin Educational Foundation
2015.  4	 Professor of Faculty of Regional Development 
	 Studies, Otemon Gakuin University (current)
2016.  4	 Director of Mature Society Research Institute, 
	 Otemon Gakuin University
2020.  6	 Trustee of Otemon Gakuin Educational 
	 Foundation (current)
2021.  6	 Director of the Company (current)

Outside Director

Yumiko Sato
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[Biography]
1986.  4	 Joined the Company
2013.  4	 General Manager of Technology Planning Dept.
2014.  4	 Executive Officer
2014.  8	 President of Osaka Gas USA Corporation
2017.  4	 Senior Executive Officer
2017.  4	 Head of LNG Terminal & Power Generation Business Unit
2018.  4	 Head of LNG, Power & Engineering Business Unit
2018.  6	 Director, Senior Executive Officer
2020.  6	 Audit & Supervisory Board Member (current)

Audit & Supervisory 
Board Member (full time)

Hisaichi Yoneyama

Audit & Supervisory Board Members

[Biography]
1987. 12	Assistant Professor, Faculty of Home Economics, Nara Women’s University
1993. 10	Assistant Professor, Faculty of Human Life and Environment, Nara 
	 Women’s University
2000.  4	 Professor, Faculty of Human Life and Environment, Nara Women’s University
2000. 12	Member of Local Public Finance Council
2010.  4	 Chairperson of the Board of Directors, Council of Local Authorities for 
	 International Relations
2014.  4	 Advisor of Japan Center for Cities
2014.  6	 Audit & Supervisory Board Member of the Company (current)
2015.  4	 Director, Nara Prefectural University (current)

Board of Directors Meetings Attendance Record 
(April 1, 2020‒March 31, 2021)
Attended 12 of 12 meetings of the Board of Directors and attended 13 of 13 
meetings of the Audit & Supervisory Board. She made comments as 
appropriate based on her considerable experience and extensive knowledge 
in organizational management and from her independent position as an 
outside Audit & Supervisory Board Member.

Outside Audit & Supervisory 
Board Member

Yoko Kimura

[Biography]
1985.  4	 Professor, Faculty of Economics, Doshisha University
1996.  4	 Dean, Faculty of Economics, Doshisha University
1998.  4	 President, Doshisha University
2008.  2	 Chairman, Japan Student Baseball Association (current)
2009.  4	 Vice Chairman, Japan University Auditors Association (current)
2011. 10	Chancellor, The Doshisha
2015.  6	 Vice President, Baseball Federation of Japan
2015.  6	 Audit & Supervisory Board Member of the Company (current)
2015.  9	 Director, Japan High School Baseball Federation (current)
2017.  4	 President, The Doshisha (current)
2017.  4	 Chancellor, The Doshisha (current)

Board of Directors Meetings Attendance Record 
(April 1, 2020‒March 31, 2021)
Attended 12 of 12 meetings of the Board of Directors and attended 13 of 13 
meetings of the Audit & Supervisory Board. He made comments as 
appropriate based on his considerable experience and extensive knowledge 
in organizational management and from his independent position as an 
outside Audit & Supervisory Board Member.

Outside Audit & Supervisory 
Board Member

Eiji Hatta

[Biography]
1974.  4	 Appointed as judge
2011.  5	 Chief Judge, Takamatsu High Court
2012.  3	 Chief Judge, Osaka High Court
2013.  3	 Retired from judgeship
2013.  4	 Professor, Graduate School of Law, Kyoto University
2016.  6	 Audit & Supervisory Board Member of the Company (current)
2021.  5	 General Manager of Kinki Branch, Japan Bar Association (current)

Board of Directors Meetings Attendance Record 
(April 1, 2020‒March 31, 2021)
Attended 12 of 12 meetings of the Board of Directors and attended 13 of 13 
meetings of the Audit & Supervisory Board. He made comments as 
appropriate based on his considerable experience and specialized 
knowledge as a legal professional and from his independent position as an 
outside Audit & Supervisory Board Member.

Outside Audit & Supervisory 
Board Member

Shigemi Sasaki

[Biography]
1981.  4	 Joined the Company
2010.  6	 General Manager of Human Resources Dept.
2012.  4	 Executive Officer
2014.  4	 Representative Director and President of Osaka Gas Customer Relations 
	 Co., Ltd.
2015.  4	 Senior Executive Officer
2015.  4	 Head of Residential Energy Business Unit
2015.  6	 Director, Senior Executive Officer
2018.  4	 Director, Chairman and Director of Osaka Gas Customer Relations Co., Ltd.
2018.  6	 Advisor
2019.  6	 Audit & Supervisory Board Member (current)

Audit & Supervisory 
Board Member (full time)

Toshimasa Fujiwara
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When appointed, the Company provides internal officers an 
opportunity to acquire knowledge regarding their roles, legal duties 
to be complied with, and responsibilities expected for a Director or 
Audit & Supervisory Board Member. Subsequently, the Company 
regularly provides opportunities internally or externally for officers to 
receive training regarding legal affairs, risk management, 
compliance, and other matters to continue to acquire knowledge 
necessary for comprehension of legal revisions and other latest 
world trends. Further, as part of the succession plan for top 
management, human resources to oversee the Company’s 
management are fostered through such means as the systematic 

rotation of the areas of responsibility of internal Directors and 
Executive Officers.

As for outside officers, the Company provides opportunities 
for them to deepen their understanding upon appointment, such as 
by explaining the nature of the Group’s businesses, so that they can 
put to practice their expertise and experience in each of their fields 
for supervising and auditing the Company’s business. Later, the 
Company also offers opportunities as necessary in which the 
business environment and business trends are explained accurately 
in a timely manner so that outside officers can gain an 
understanding.

■ Training Policy for Directors and Audit & Supervisory Board Members

Osaka Gas appoints four Outside Directors and three outside Audit 
& Supervisory Board Members.

To attain sustainable growth and improve medium and 
long-term corporate value, Directors and Audit & Supervisory Board 
Members are in principle composed of a diverse group of people 
without regard to sex or nationality, taking their knowledge, 
experiences, abilities, and personalities, etc. into account. In 
addition, when selecting outside officer candidates, the Company 
takes into consideration the individual’s independent-mindedness 
for making objective judgments, and whether they have wide-
ranging knowledge, wealth of experience, and expertise in their 
specialized fields. The Company expects Outside Directors to 
participate in decision-making as members of the Board of 
Directors’ meetings and monitor and supervise the execution of 
duties of the Executive Directors from an independent position 
based on their knowledge and experience, Outside Audit & 
Supervisory Board Members to use their knowledge and experience 
to conduct strict audits on the execution of duties of the Directors, 
also from an independent standpoint. Outside Directors and 

Outside Audit & Supervisory Board Members are provided with 
information at meetings of the Board of Directors, etc., related to 
matters such as the operational status of internal control systems 
pursuant to the Companies Act, the evaluation of internal control 
related to financial reporting pursuant to the Financial Instruments 
and Exchange Act, the status of internal audit, and the status of 
sustainability measures. In addition, Outside Directors and Outside 
Audit & Supervisory Board Members also confirm the content of 
accounting audit reports.

In addition, Outside Directors Hideo Miyahara, Kazutoshi 
Murao, Tatsuo Kijima, Yumiko Sato, and outside Audit & Supervisory 
Board Members Yoko Kimura, Eiji Hatta, and Shigemi Sasaki have 
no special interest relationships with the company affecting 
decision-making, and as they meet the criteria for the 
independence of outside officers stipulated by the company, they 
are judged to have sufficient independence. Based on the above, 
they are reported as independent officers to the financial 
instruments exchanges on which the company is listed. 

■ Outside Directors and Outside Audit & Supervisory Board Members

Each fiscal year, the Company analyzes and evaluates the 
effectiveness of the Board of Directors, centering on outside officers 
(Outside Directors and Outside Audit & Supervisory Board 
Members).

Specifically, taking into consideration the evaluation by an 
external specialist institution, the Board of Directors Secretariat 
conducted questionnaires and interviews with all Directors and 
Audit & Supervisory Board Members individually on questions such 
as matters regarding the operation of the Board of Directors and 
the Advisory Committee, whether information provision to outside 
officers were immediate and sufficient, and whether the opinions 
received from outside officers during evaluation last year (e.g., 
measures to deepen understanding of proposals at meetings of the 
Board of Directors, such as the provision of information related to 
the results of investments and financial strategies) have been 

addressed, and in light of the results thereof, held discussions with 
outside officers, and made its evaluations, which confirmed that 
such matters have been appropriately addressed.

Furthermore, as a result of the outside officers reporting the 
results of these evaluations to the Board of Directors and holding 
relevant discussions in turn, the Company has confirmed that the 
Board of Directors conducts lively exchanges of questions and 
answers based on necessary and sufficient information, including 
materials provided in advance and other explanations, and 
sufficiently ensures that it is operating in an effective manner.

The Company will take into consideration the opinions of 
outside officers, and take initiative to enhance discussions by 
further increasing the provision of information on important 
management challenges of the Group, etc., and otherwise further 
enhance the effectiveness of the Board of Director going forward.

■ Analysis and Evaluation of Effectiveness of the Board of Directors as a Whole
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1. �Decision Policies on Content of Remuneration, etc. for Each Individual 
Director
The Company has established a policy on determining the content of remuneration, 
etc. for each individual Director (hereinafter the “Policy on Determining 
Remuneration”) as prescribed by the resolution of the Board of Directors after 
deliberation at a voluntarily appointed advisory committee made up of a majority of 
the Outside Directors. This policy is summarized as follows.

The system of paying retirement benefits to Directors has been abolished.
<Policy on Determining Remuneration>
(a) Basic Approach
Remuneration for Directors shall be provided in a remuneration system designed to 
raise motivation for Directors to achieve sustainable growth and mid- to long-term 
increase in corporate value. Remuneration for Directors other than Outside Directors 
shall consist of basic remuneration as fixed remuneration, performance-linked 
remuneration and stock-based remuneration, and remuneration for outside Directors 
shall only consist of basic remuneration as fixed remuneration, as they have a 
standpoint independent of business execution.

Remuneration for Directors shall be determined within the total amount of 
remuneration approved at the Annual Meeting of Shareholders, after deliberation at 
a voluntarily appointed advisory committee made up of a majority of the Outside 
Directors, from the perspective of ensuring objectivity and seeking transparency in 
the decision-making process.
(b) Basic Remuneration
Basic remuneration shall be monetary remuneration paid on a monthly basis. The 
amount shall be determined in accordance with the rules prescribed by the 
resolution of the Board of Directors, while considering such factors as each 
Director’s position and responsibilities, public standards, and other factors.
(c) Performance-linked Remuneration
Performance-linked remuneration shall be monetary remuneration paid on a monthly 
basis. The amount shall be determined using the profit attributable to owners of 
parent for the past three years as the main indicator to encourage contribution to 
short-term and mid- to long-term increases in corporate value.
(d) Stock-based Remuneration
Restricted stock shall be granted at a certain time every year for the purpose of 
strengthening the linkage between remuneration and mid- to long-term increase in 
corporate value and further promoting sharing of value with the shareholders. The 
number of shares to be granted shall be determined with consideration for the 
positions and responsibilities of each Director and stock prices, etc.
(e) Ratio by Type of Remuneration
For Directors other than Outside Directors, the standard ratio of basic remuneration, 
performance-linked remuneration, and stock-based remuneration should be 5:4:1. 
Remuneration for Outside Directors shall fully consist of basic remuneration.
(f) Procedures for Determining Remuneration
The content of remuneration for each individual Director shall be made in 
accordance with the rules prescribed by the resolution of the Board of Directors, 
and, after deliberation at the voluntarily appointed advisory committee, shall be 
determined by the resolution of the Board of Directors. However, the content of 
monetary remuneration may be determined by the Representative Director and 
President based on delegation of authority by the resolution of the Board of 
Directors.

2. �Resolution of the Annual Meeting of Shareholders on Remuneration, etc. of Directors
The amount of remuneration for Directors was approved at the 203rd Annual Meeting 
of Shareholders held on June 25, 2021 to be up to 57 million yen per month for 
monetary remuneration and up to 72 million yen per year for stock-based remuneration. 
The number of Directors at the end of said Annual Meeting of Shareholders was ten.

3. �Delegation of Decision of Content of Remuneration, etc. for Each Individual Director
The amount, timing and method of remuneration payment for each Director is 
determined by Representative Director and President (Takehiro Honjo until December 
2020 and Masataka Fujiwara from January 2021) based on delegation of authority by a 
resolution of the Board of Directors. The Company has delegated the above authority 
to the Representative Director and President, as the position is considered to be the 
best suited to determine the contents of remuneration, taking into account the status of 
the execution of duties by each Executive Director while maintaining a comprehensive 
view of the Company’s performance.

In addition, to ensure that the authority of the Representative Director and 
President is exercised appropriately, the delegation of authority is conducted so that 
the remuneration amount, etc. for each individual Director is determined in accordance 
with the Policy on Determining Remuneration and the rules prescribed by the resolution 
of the Board of Directors, while considering such factors as each Director’s position 
and responsibilities, public standards, and the Company’s business performance, after 
deliberation at a voluntarily appointed advisory committee made up of a majority of the 
Outside Directors. As the amount of remuneration, etc. for each individual Director is 
determined through such a procedure, the Board of Directors has judged that the 
content of remuneration, etc. for each individual Director for the fiscal year under review 
is in line with the Policy on Determining Remuneration.

4. �Resolution of the Annual Meeting of Shareholders and Decision on Remuneration, 
etc. for Audit & Supervisory Board Members
The amount of remuneration for Audit & Supervisory Board Members was approved 
at the 176th Annual Meeting of Shareholders held on June 29, 1994 to be up to 14 
million yen per month. The number of Audit & Supervisory Board Members at the end 
of said Annual Meeting of Shareholders was five.

The amount of remuneration for each Audit & Supervisory Board Member 
shall be determined through discussions among Audit & Supervisory Board Members 
within this amount, and consisting only of fixed remuneration because they are 
assigned the role of auditing the execution of duties by Directors from a standpoint 
independent of the performance of the Company’s businesses, and taking into 
consideration the position, etc. of each Audit & Supervisory Board Member.

The system of paying retirement benefits to Audit & Supervisory Board 
Members has been abolished.

5. �Details of Activities of the Board of Directors and Advisory Committee in the 
Process for Determining the Amount of Remuneration, etc., for Officers During the 
Fiscal Year Under Review
With regard to matters related to the remuneration of officers, at meetings held in 
May 2020, December 2020, and February 2021, the Advisory Committee deliberated 
matters such as the appropriateness of performance-linked remuneration calculation 
methods, the payment coefficient, and remuneration levels, which were then decided 
by the Representative Director and President as mentioned above.

■ Directors and Audit & Supervisory Board Members Remuneration

Fiscal year 200th 201st 202nd
Fiscal year FY2018.3 FY2019.3 FY2020.3

Profit attributable to 
owners of parent million yen

Plan 42,500 46,500 55,000
Results 37,724 33,601 41,788

Classification
Total amount of
remuneration

(million yen)

Total amount of remuneration by
type of remuneration (million yen) Number of

payees
Fixed Performance-linked

Directors (excluding Outside Directors) 386 235 150 10
Audit & Supervisory Board Members
(excluding outside members) 69 69 ー 3

Outside Directors 29 29 ー 3
Outside Audit &
Supervisory Board Members 32 32 ー 3

Profit Attributable to Owners of Parent (Consolidated Profit) for the Last Three Years

Total Amount of Remuneration by Officer Classification and by Type of Remuneration, and Number of Eligible Officers

■ The total amount of remuneration for each officer is not stated as there is no officer with a total amount of consolidated remuneration of 100 million yen or more.
■ There are no employees concurrently serving as officers.

Note: The number of persons and amounts include four internal Directors and one Audit & Supervisory Board member who retired as of the close of the Company’s 
202nd General Meeting of Shareholders held on June 26, 2020.
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Organizational heads of the Company and Presidents of the 
affiliates promote the management of the risk of losses and 
periodically conduct risk management assessments. Each basic 
organization or affiliate identifies risk items, checks the status of 
management concerning the risk items and conducts follow-ups or 
other measures by using such means as the “G-RIMS (Gas Group 
Risk Management System)*,” which systematizes the self-
assessment of risk management practices.

In light of the spread of COVID-19 in Japan and abroad, we 
set up a task force and confirm the status of the Group’s responses, 
while taking measures to prevent infections, as necessary.

Regarding the management of risks concerning security and 
disaster prevention which are common to the Group, the 
organization in charge is clearly specified, and the organization 
supports each basic organization and affiliate to ensure risk 
management on a Group-wide basis.

To prepare for emergencies, regulations for disaster 
countermeasure and business continuity plans are prepared. We 

carried out company-wide disaster-prevention drills, which consist 
of earthquake drills and BCP exercises. During the fiscal year under 
review, in addition to drills assuming disasters occurred amid a 
pandemic, we carried out collaboration training and exercises on a 
remote basis to ensure collaboration between gas pipeline 
operators and gas retailers in case of disaster.

The Cyber Security Committee is working to further 
strengthen countermeasures against cyberattacks from outside the 
Group network.

The following are examples of risks that can affect business performance and financial conditions of the Group.
Matters concerning the future as stated are based on the Daigas Group’s judgment and assumptions as of the end of FY2021.3.

* G-RIMS is a system for risk management in routine business operations. 
The manager of each organization and affiliated company checks if 
preventive measures have been implemented or an early-detection system 
is in place as required, using a checklist comprising about 50 risk items. 
G-RIMS is also designed to evaluate the magnitude of risks and identify 
risks to be addressed, before PDCA (plan-do-check-act) is operated for 
improvement.

(1) Risks Related to All Businesses within the Group

① Changes in economic, financial, and social conditions as well as 
market contraction

② Occurrence of catastrophic disasters, accidents, or infectious 
diseases

③ Changes in international rules, politics, laws and regulations, and 
institutional systems

④ Changes in foreign exchange rates and borrowing rates

⑤ Uncollected investments

⑥ Climate change and decarbonization

⑦ Intensifying competition

⑧ Breakdown or malfunction of critical IT systems and information 
leaks

⑨ Quality issues with products or services

⑩ Non-compliance with laws and regulations

In addition to the measures preparing for the above risk, the Daigas Group aims to mitigate impact on our business in cases where such risks emerge 
by appropriately understanding and supervising the situations of business operations, while considering the degree and time period of the potential for 
risks to materialize.

■ Risk Management

■ Business Risks

(2) Risks Related to Major Businesses

① Domestic Energy Business
a.	 Impact of fluctuations in temperature/water temperature on 
	 energy demand
b.	Changes in raw fuel costs
c.	Difficulty in procuring raw fuels
d.	Changes in electricity procurement costs
e.	Difficulties in gas production/power generation and gas/
	 power supply
f.	 Gas equipment and facility issues
g.	Intensifying competition in the industry and the resulting 
	 increase in choices available to consumers

② International Energy Business
Changes in the operating environment, such as decreased 
profitability or project delay or cancellation, resulting from the 
public policies, implementation of or changes in regulations, 
deterioration of economic or social conditions, market fluctuation 
in areas including crude oil prices and gas prices, technical 
problems, or damage by natural disasters in the countries in 
which the Group operates

③ Life & Business Solutions
Changes in the operating environment, such as soaring material 
costs and worsening economic conditions
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Messages from Outside Directors

Implementing decarbonization initiatives based on scientific verification; 
DX initiatives in parallel with human resource development 

Becoming a leading company in the energy business, pioneering 
initiatives to solve social issues for a sustainable future

In corporate governance, what is most important 
would be the idea of autonomous systems, as in 
autonomous distributed systems used in 
information networks, which is my field of expertise. 
In an autonomous system, governance is achieved 
in the entire network, not by forcefully controlling it 
as a whole but by having every organization work 
toward the same objective based on predefined 
principles. At Osaka Gas, I feel that the Company 
is pursuing the idea of an autonomous organization 
as I have been supervising the corporate 
governance of Osaka Gas while participating in 
active discussions with other Board Members, as 
an Outside Director since 2013.

Among the initiatives under the Medium-Term 
Management Plan, I place particular emphasis on 
our efforts for carbon neutrality and digital 
transformation (DX). Regarding carbon neutrality, 
we recognize the importance of implementing 
decarbonization initiatives that are based on 
scientific verification in terms of establishing and 
achieving numerical targets. As we work toward 
our carbon neutrality goal, we will continue 
enhancing our initiatives by reviewing results based 
on objective data and working on simulations.

DX is also a vital issue for an energy company like 
us. In implementing DX initiatives, it is crucial to 
strengthen internal systems through developing 
human resources with IT skills and hiring external 
talent. As it will require significant investment, I will 
ensure with other Board Members that decisions 
will be made based on the results of thorough 
discussions within the Company.

The Internet of Things (IoT) will make rapid 
advancements over the coming years with the 
telecommunications environment expected to 
continue developing with 5G (fifth generation 
mobile telecommunications systems), and 6G. 
Although technological evolution will bring merits 
for people’s lifestyles and industry, it will also 
increase security risks and electricity consumption. 
In light of these points, we will make decisions 
through careful discussions at meetings of the 
Board of Directors to implement our initiatives and 
execute strategies leveraging the strengths of 
Osaka Gas.

When I consider Osaka Gas’ approach to 
management, my view is that governance is 
functioning effectively at the Company. Lively 
discussions take place at meetings of the Board of 
Directors, and when I observe the actual worksites 
where operations are executed, I feel strongly that 
the intentions of management are reflected in the 
ways employees work. We will ensure that the 
Daigas Group will utilize its corporate culture of 
approaching everything in a genuine and studious 
manner to further pursue its social mission as a 
company operating an energy business. 

Over many years, I have developed much 
experience in corporate management through the 
activities of companies and business associations. 
I intend to contribute to the Daigas Group’s 
management enhancement by utilizing my 
expertise and knowledge on energy business 
strategies, approaches to governance, potential 
risks and scenarios to respond to those risks such 
as in investments, collaboration proposals and new 
businesses.

We aim to realize that Osaka Gas will become a 
leading company in the energy business, 
pioneering initiatives to solve social issues for a 
sustainable future. It is important that the Company 
does not just follow national policies and the 

actions of other companies, but instead take the 
lead in solving these issues, looking ahead to the 
times.

In this regard, the Daigas Group has devised its 
strategies for carbon neutrality and digital 
transformation in the Medium-Term Management 
Plan. I have great hopes for the future development 
of the Group, in particular, the Group’s 
commitment announced at the President’s 
inaugural press conference, to the development of 
methanation, a technology to synthesize methane, 
one of the main constituents of natural gas, from 
hydrogen and CO2. With regard to DX, we will not 
stop at simple digitalization but utilize DX to create 
solutions to future changes in business models, 
lifestyles and ways of work.

Achieving success in carbon neutrality and DX 
requires technical breakthroughs and effective 
funding plans. To that end, I will support the steady 
implementation of the Medium-Term Management 
Plan by providing appropriate advice as an Outside 
Director. The Daigas Group will strive to create 
value for a sustainable future while quickly 
responding to changes in the business 
environment as the COVID-19 pandemic further 
affects lifestyles and businesses.

Outside Director

Outside Director

Kazutoshi Murao

Hideo Miyahara
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Creating a shared understanding on the necessity of think-and-act 
approach, with each employee working with a higher sense of ownership

Taking on new challenges to solve management issues, deviating 
from conventional approaches

The Daigas Group aims to create the four types of 
value stated in its Corporate Principles. In order to 
support the Group’s efforts to achieve it, I am 
committed to strengthening the Group’s 
governance as an Outside Director. At the Board 
of Directors, we strive to make decisions on 
initiatives for the Group in light of whether our 
actions will be understood from the perspective of 
all stakeholders including those outside the Group. 
This is especially important when engaging in risk 
management for the Group’s businesses and 
evaluating the transparency of the decision-making 
process as well as the consistency of each 
proposal with the Group’s growth strategies and 
the validity of their content.

Over the past twelve months since I was appointed 
Outside Director, I have seen the Daigas Group 
demonstrating its strength in enhancing 
governance. Going forward, we will continue 
discussing constructively the Group’s major 
policies, such as management strategies and 
targets. While I admire the Group’s corporate 
culture that welcomes opinions from all members, 
I intend to encourage higher participation among 
all members in exchanging views on these themes 
regardless of positions and titles. 

At the Board of Directors, I will work closely with 
other members to enhance corporate value based 
on a shared understanding among all Directors on 
the prospects for proposals for future 
developments and the necessity of implementing 
major reforms at the Daigas Group from a long-
term perspective. I will also flexibly take an 
aggressive approach in governance when we take 
appropriate risks in order to promote growth.

In implementing the new Medium-Term 
Management Plan announced in March 2021 (Plan 
2023), it is important that we incorporate a mindset 
rooted in the customer contact points, together 
with think-and-act approach, in which each 
employee thinks from the customer’s perspective 
before acting. In order to spread within the Daigas 
Group the concept of “value for a sustainable 
future” under the Plan 2023, we will ensure that the 
management communicates with employees in an 
easy-to-understand manner how their day-to-day 
work will create value for a sustainable future. We 
will continue building a corporate culture that 
increases management’s engagement with 
employees and encourages each employee to 
work with a higher sense of ownership.

As a new Outside Director appointed in June this 
year, I am committed to maintaining high standards 
of corporate governance for Osaka Gas, which is 
working earnestly to provide social value through 
its business activities. I feel optimistic about the 
Company’s future business development as the 
Company is looking not just to protect its existing 
businesses, but also actively taking on new 
challenges and working toward breakthroughs.

As the times change rapidly, companies in any 
industry cannot simply maintain the status quo as 
they used to do, if they wish to survive. We must 
anticipate future trends and define our vision, then 
work backwards from there to think about what we 
need to do at this moment. It is also crucial that we 
focus not just on the ideas of senior management, 
but also sufficiently incorporate the views of 
employees working close to customers, in order to 
achieve a breakthrough. I will visit as many 
worksites as possible and provide senior 
management with views from an external 
perspective as an Outside Director. I intend to 
contribute to decision-making that is not bound by 
conventional ways of thinking.

For a company engaged in businesses with 
regional roots like Osaka Gas, co-creation with 
local communities is highly important. We will 
continue engaging in activities that contribute to 
local communities, and we would like to ensure 
broader awareness of our activities in this area.

Osaka Gas is a large organization that has been 
maintaining an earnest and hardworking corporate 
culture with an enterprising spirit. We will 
accelerate our efforts to solve management issues, 
such as promoting more active participation of 
women, by taking on new challenges with 
innovative approaches in a timely manner.

With regard to the Medium-Term Management 
Plan, we will ensure that the Daigas Group will 
reach the targets while fulfilling its social mission as 
an energy company to a greater extent than now. 
To that end, we will continue encouraging all 
members to work with a higher sense of 
responsibility and take the initiative in contributing 
to solving social issues through the Group’s 
business activities.

Outside Director

Outside Director

Tatsuo Kijima

Yumiko Sato
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2011.3 2012.3 2013.3 2014.3 2015.3 2016.3 2017.3 2018.3 2019.3 2020.3 2021.3 

Financial Information

Net sales million yen 1,187,142 1,294,781 1,380,060 1,512,581 1,528,164 1,322,012 1,183,846 1,296,238 1,371,863 1,368,689 1,364,106

Operating profit million yen 88,584 77,274 84,773 99,381 105,065 146,674 97,250 78,118 67,977 83,792 112,491

Ordinary profit million yen 82,372 75,694 90,125 106,044 108,173 134,986 96,276 77,087 63,103 86,018 127,752

Profit attributable to owners of parent million yen 45,968 45,207 52,467 41,725 76,709 84,324 61,271 37,724 33,601 41,788 80,857

Comprehensive income million yen 35,833 39,702 83,844 80,850 106,084 38,256 78,029 60,590 27,966 14,996 108,723

Capital expenditures for quality improvement million yen 53,600 43,713 44,507 41,082 44,698 56,051 48,253 42,191 44,205 57,498 68,873

Depreciation + amortization of goodwill million yen 97,569 93,624 82,818 83,806 87,785 86,747 86,206 88,723 99,745 91,925 101,444

R&D expenses million yen 10,918 10,974 10,875 11,793 11,434 11,340 10,374 9,708 10,961 10,174 9,440

Total assets million yen 1,437,297 1,475,759 1,566,899 1,668,317 1,862,201 1,829,756 1,886,577 1,897,230 2,029,722 2,140,482 2,313,357

Net assets million yen 688,695 708,904 774,317 828,565 918,869 935,786 991,870 1,028,799 1,035,044 1,027,667 1,114,597

Shareholders’ equity million yen 664,959 684,584 747,802 798,964 888,496 906,623 961,905 999,569 1,004,340 997,492 1,081,881

Balance of interest-bearing debts million yen 532,493 541,349 540,199 573,586 633,923 567,164 540,668 503,789 647,465 754,006 785,383

Cash flows from operating activities million yen 126,399 122,793 129,597 154,225 156,908 281,819 148,801 168,731 65,116 182,892 219,797

Cash flows from investing activities million yen （82,408） （107,764） （116,791） （175,591) （110,704） （144,198） （137,527） （110,456） （204,192） （232,266） （198,354）

Cash flows from financing activities million yen （41,257） （8,279） （27,897） 4,163 22,892 （90,716） （50,530） （51,591） 85,262 79,272 （1,636）

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period million yen 116,230 122,448 109,456 90,359 162,793 209,367 166,912 171,061 115,769 146,813 166,762

Free cash flow (Cash flows from operating activities – Cash flows from investing activities) million yen 43,991 15,028 12,805 （21,365） 46,204 137,620 11,274 58,274 （139,076） （49,374） 21,443

Capital expenditures million yen 69,600 87,171 112,987 124,146 119,398 114,418 88,657 81,716 107,259 131,010 189,454

Per Share information ※1 

Earnings per share (EPS) yen 108.08 108.55 125.99 100.21 184.31 202.64 147.29 90.71 80.80 100.50 194.48

Net assets per share (BPS) yen 1,596.63 1,643.85 1,795.79 1,919.49 2,134.92 2,179.23 2,312.68 2,403.68 2,415.37 2,399.06 2,602.18

Dividends yen 40.0 40.0 42.5 45.0 47.5 50.0 50.0 50.0 50.0 50.0 52.5

Key Ratios

EBITDA (Operating profit + Depreciation + Amortization of goodwill + Share of profit of entities accounted for using equity method) million yen 188,315 176,536 173,927 191,105 199,840 228,883 188,403 167,100 159,916 180,943 227,554

Shareholders’ equity ratio (Shareholders’ equity / Total assets (as of the end of the fiscal year)) % 46.3 46.4 47.7 47.9 47.7 49.5 51.0 52.7 49.5 46.6 46.8

D/E ratio (Interest-bearing debts / Shareholders’ equity (as of the end of the fiscal year)) 0.80 0.79 0.72 0.72 0.71 0.63 0.56 0.50 0.64 0.76 0.73

Return on equity (ROE) (Profit attributable to owners of parent / Average shareholders’ equity during the fiscal year) % 6.9 6.7 7.3 5.4 9.1 9.4 6.6 3.8 3.4 4.2 7.8

Return on assets (ROA) (Profit attributable to owners of parent / Average total assets during the fiscal year) % 3.1 3.1 3.4 2.6 4.3 4.6 3.3 2.0 1.7 2.0 3.6

Payout ratio (Annual dividends / Earnings per share (EPS)) % 37.0 36.8 33.7 44.9 25.8 24.7 33.9 55.1 61.9 49.8 27.0

Gas sales volume

million m³ 8,560 8,711 8,534 8,554 8,290 8,052 8,694 8,580 7,935 7,362 7,157

Number of employees

employees 19,684 19,818 19,870 21,250 20,982 20,844 20,762 19,997 20,224 20,543 20,941

※1  Calculated in consideration of share consolidation.

※2  “Partial Amendments to Accounting Standard for Tax Effect Accounting” (Accounting Standards Board of Japan (ASBJ) Statement No.28, February 16, 2018) have been 
applied from the beginning of the fiscal year ended March 31, 2019. Key management indicators for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2018 are calculated by retroactively 
applying the above accounting standard.

Summary of Consolidated Operating Results
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2011.3 2012.3 2013.3 2014.3 2015.3 2016.3 2017.3 2018.3 2019.3 2020.3 2021.3 

Financial Information

Net sales million yen 1,187,142 1,294,781 1,380,060 1,512,581 1,528,164 1,322,012 1,183,846 1,296,238 1,371,863 1,368,689 1,364,106

Operating profit million yen 88,584 77,274 84,773 99,381 105,065 146,674 97,250 78,118 67,977 83,792 112,491

Ordinary profit million yen 82,372 75,694 90,125 106,044 108,173 134,986 96,276 77,087 63,103 86,018 127,752

Profit attributable to owners of parent million yen 45,968 45,207 52,467 41,725 76,709 84,324 61,271 37,724 33,601 41,788 80,857

Comprehensive income million yen 35,833 39,702 83,844 80,850 106,084 38,256 78,029 60,590 27,966 14,996 108,723

Capital expenditures for quality improvement million yen 53,600 43,713 44,507 41,082 44,698 56,051 48,253 42,191 44,205 57,498 68,873

Depreciation + amortization of goodwill million yen 97,569 93,624 82,818 83,806 87,785 86,747 86,206 88,723 99,745 91,925 101,444

R&D expenses million yen 10,918 10,974 10,875 11,793 11,434 11,340 10,374 9,708 10,961 10,174 9,440

Total assets million yen 1,437,297 1,475,759 1,566,899 1,668,317 1,862,201 1,829,756 1,886,577 1,897,230 2,029,722 2,140,482 2,313,357

Net assets million yen 688,695 708,904 774,317 828,565 918,869 935,786 991,870 1,028,799 1,035,044 1,027,667 1,114,597

Shareholders’ equity million yen 664,959 684,584 747,802 798,964 888,496 906,623 961,905 999,569 1,004,340 997,492 1,081,881

Balance of interest-bearing debts million yen 532,493 541,349 540,199 573,586 633,923 567,164 540,668 503,789 647,465 754,006 785,383

Cash flows from operating activities million yen 126,399 122,793 129,597 154,225 156,908 281,819 148,801 168,731 65,116 182,892 219,797

Cash flows from investing activities million yen （82,408） （107,764） （116,791） （175,591) （110,704） （144,198） （137,527） （110,456） （204,192） （232,266） （198,354）

Cash flows from financing activities million yen （41,257） （8,279） （27,897） 4,163 22,892 （90,716） （50,530） （51,591） 85,262 79,272 （1,636）

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period million yen 116,230 122,448 109,456 90,359 162,793 209,367 166,912 171,061 115,769 146,813 166,762

Free cash flow (Cash flows from operating activities – Cash flows from investing activities) million yen 43,991 15,028 12,805 （21,365） 46,204 137,620 11,274 58,274 （139,076） （49,374） 21,443

Capital expenditures million yen 69,600 87,171 112,987 124,146 119,398 114,418 88,657 81,716 107,259 131,010 189,454

Per Share information ※1 

Earnings per share (EPS) yen 108.08 108.55 125.99 100.21 184.31 202.64 147.29 90.71 80.80 100.50 194.48

Net assets per share (BPS) yen 1,596.63 1,643.85 1,795.79 1,919.49 2,134.92 2,179.23 2,312.68 2,403.68 2,415.37 2,399.06 2,602.18

Dividends yen 40.0 40.0 42.5 45.0 47.5 50.0 50.0 50.0 50.0 50.0 52.5

Key Ratios

EBITDA (Operating profit + Depreciation + Amortization of goodwill + Share of profit of entities accounted for using equity method) million yen 188,315 176,536 173,927 191,105 199,840 228,883 188,403 167,100 159,916 180,943 227,554

Shareholders’ equity ratio (Shareholders’ equity / Total assets (as of the end of the fiscal year)) % 46.3 46.4 47.7 47.9 47.7 49.5 51.0 52.7 49.5 46.6 46.8

D/E ratio (Interest-bearing debts / Shareholders’ equity (as of the end of the fiscal year)) 0.80 0.79 0.72 0.72 0.71 0.63 0.56 0.50 0.64 0.76 0.73

Return on equity (ROE) (Profit attributable to owners of parent / Average shareholders’ equity during the fiscal year) % 6.9 6.7 7.3 5.4 9.1 9.4 6.6 3.8 3.4 4.2 7.8

Return on assets (ROA) (Profit attributable to owners of parent / Average total assets during the fiscal year) % 3.1 3.1 3.4 2.6 4.3 4.6 3.3 2.0 1.7 2.0 3.6

Payout ratio (Annual dividends / Earnings per share (EPS)) % 37.0 36.8 33.7 44.9 25.8 24.7 33.9 55.1 61.9 49.8 27.0

Gas sales volume

million m³ 8,560 8,711 8,534 8,554 8,290 8,052 8,694 8,580 7,935 7,362 7,157

Number of employees

employees 19,684 19,818 19,870 21,250 20,982 20,844 20,762 19,997 20,224 20,543 20,941
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

(million yen)

Previous Year
(As of March 31, 2020)

Current Year
(As of March 31, 2021)

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment

Production facilities 84,258 89,701

Distribution facilities 264,657 268,755

Service and maintenance facilities 55,072 53,481

Other facilities 542,101 546,456

Construction in progress 68,482 112,215

Total property, plant and equipment ※ 1,※ 2,※ 3 1,014,572 ※ 1,※ 2,※ 3 1,070,610

Intangible assets ※ 1 98,322 ※ 1 97,912

Investments and other assets

Investment securities ※ 4 332,200 ※ 4 377,074

Long-term loans receivable 25,981 25,686

Retirement benefit asset 44,264 83,494

Deferred tax assets 16,397  25,933

Other 49,526 50,099

Allowance for doubtful accounts (802) (800)

Total investments and other assets ※ 1 467,568 ※ 1 561,487

Total non-current assets 1,580,462 1,730,009

Current assets

Cash and deposits 147,201 167,083

Notes and accounts receivable - trade 210,515 211,696

Lease receivables and investment in leases 47,844 54,634

Inventories ※ 5 108,092 ※ 5 94,187

Other 47,005 56,349

Allowance for doubtful accounts (640) (602)

Total current assets ※ 1 560,019 ※ 1 583,347

Total assets 2,140,482 2,313,357

Assets

Osaka Gas Co., Ltd. and Consolidated Subsidiaries, the Fiscal Years Ended March 31, 2020 and 2021

【Consolidated Financial Statements and Notes】
【Consolidated Financial Statements】

Note: Details of ※1, 2, 3, 4, 5, and 7 are provided in “Notes to the Consolidated Balance Sheet” on page 89.

This English integrated report is not subject to an audit by an independent auditor.The following Consolidated 
Financial Statements and Notes and Annexed Consolidated Detailed Schedule are translated by Osaka Gas Co., Ltd. 
based on the original one attached in the original Annual Securities Report.
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(million yen)

Previous Year
(As of March 31, 2020)

Current Year
(As of March 31, 2021)

Shareholders’ equity

Share capital 132,166 132,166

Capital surplus 19,483 19,469

Retained earnings 802,313 861,746

Treasury shares (1,802) (1,852)

Total shareholders’ equity 952,160 1,011,530

Accumulated other comprehensive income

Valuation difference on available-for-sale securities 41,336 69,811

Deferred gains or losses on hedges (14,161) (30,365)

Revaluation reserve for land ※ 7 (737) ※ 7 (737)

Foreign currency translation adjustment 10,085 (2,383)

Remeasurements of defined benefit plans 8,809 34,025

Total accumulated other comprehensive income 45,332 70,350

Non-controlling interests 30,174 32,716

Total net assets 1,027,667 1,114,597

Total liabilities and net assets 2,140,482 2,313,357

Net assets

(million yen)

Previous Year
(As of March 31, 2020)

Current Year
(As of March 31, 2021)

Non-current liabilities

Bonds payable 289,993 354,995

Long-term borrowings 363,757 333,263

Deferred tax liabilities 21,248 41,845

Provision for gas holder repairs 1,290 1,138

Provision for safety measures 9,339 8,892

Provision for gas appliance warranties 13,074 12,195

Retirement benefit liability 17,590 18,758

Other 84,207 104,886

Total non-current liabilities ※ 1 800,502 ※ 1 875,975

Current liabilities

Current portion of non-current liabilities 71,294 71,981

Notes and accounts payable - trade 59,363 60,453

Income taxes payable 19,045 27,514

Other 162,609 162,834

Total current liabilities ※ 1 312,312 ※ 1 322,784

Total liabilities 1,112,815 1,198,759

Liabilities
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Note: Details of ※1, 2, 3, and 4 are provided in “Notes to the Consolidated Statement of Income” on page 90.

(million yen)

Previous Year
(April 1, 2019 - March 31, 2020)

Current Year
(April 1, 2020 - March 31, 2021)

Net sales 1,368,689 1,364,106

Cost of sales ※ 1,※ 2 961,983 ※ 1,※ 2 921,777

Gross profit 406,705 442,328

Selling, general and administrative expenses ※ 1,※ 3 322,913 ※ 1,※ 3 329,836

Operating profit 83,792 112,491

Non-operating income

Interest income 4,262 2,348

Dividend income 7,070 3,378

Share of profit of entities accounted for using equity method 5,225 13,618

Gain on sales of investment securities in subsidiaries and associates ー 3,694

Miscellaneous income 8,187 9,901

Total non-operating income 24,746 32,941 

Non-operating expenses

Interest expenses 12,192 11,087

Miscellaneous expenses 10,327 6,593

Total non-operating expenses 22,520 17,680

Ordinary profit 86,018 127,752 

Extraordinary losses

Impairment losses ※ 4 15,568 ※ 4 19,016

Total extraordinary losses 15,568 19,016

Profit before income taxes 70,449 108,735

Income taxes - current 23,451 33,302

Income taxes - deferred 4,056 (8,410)

Total income taxes 27,507 24,891

Profit 42,942 83,844

Profit attributable to non-controlling interests 1,153 2,986

Profit attributable to owners of parent 41,788 80,857 

Consolidated Statement of Income
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(million yen)

Previous Year
(April 1, 2019 - March 31, 2020)

Current Year
(April 1, 2020 - March 31, 2021)

Profit 42,942 83,844

Other comprehensive income

Valuation difference on available-for-sale securities (10,455) 28,421

Deferred gains or losses on hedges (1,442) (10,143)

Foreign currency translation adjustment (1,638) (13,730)

Remeasurements of defined benefit plans (6,189) 25,536

Share of other comprehensive income of entities accounted for using equity method (8,219) (5,204) 

Total other comprehensive income ※ 1 (27,945) ※ 1 24,879

Comprehensive income 14,996 108,723

(Breakdown)

Comprehensive income attributable to owners of parent 13,728 105,876

Comprehensive income attributable to non-controlling interests 1,268 2,847 

Note: Details of ※1 are provided in “Notes to the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income” on page 91.

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
(million yen)

Shareholders’ equity Accumulated other comprehensive income

Non-
controlling 
interests

Total net
assetsShare 

capital
Capital 
surplus

Retained 
earnings

Treasury 
shares

Total 
shareholders’ 

equity

Valuation 
difference on 
available-for-
sale securities

Deferred 
gains or 

losses on 
hedges

Revaluation 
reserve for 

land

Foreign 
currency 

translation 
adjustment

Remeasurements 
of defined benefit 

plans

Total 
accumulated 

other 
comprehensive 

income

Fiscal year ended March 31, 2021 (April 1, 2020 - March 31, 2021)

Balance at beginning of 
period 132,166 19,483 802,313 (1,802) 952,160 41,336 (14,161) (737) 10,085 8,809 45,332 30,174 1,027,667

Changes during period

Dividends of surplus (20,788) (20,788) (20,788)

Profit attributable to 
owners of parent 80,857 80,857 80,857

Purchase of treasury shares (52) (52) (52)

Disposal of treasury shares (0) 2 2 2

Change in scope of 
equity method (635) (635) (635)

Change in ownership interest 
of parent due to transactions 
with non-controlling interests

(13) (13) (13)

Net changes in items other 
than shareholders’ equity 28,474 (16,203) (12,468) 25,215 25,018 2,541 27,560

Total changes during period ー (13) 59,433 (49) 59,369 28,474 (16,203) ー (12,468) 25,215 25,018 2,541 86,930

Balance at end of period 132,166 19,469 861,746 (1,852) 1,011,530 69,811 (30,365) (737) (2,383) 34,025 70,350 32,716 1,114,597

Fiscal year ended March 31, 2020 (April 1, 2019 - March 31, 2020)

Balance at beginning of 
period 132,166 19,222 782,523 (1,744) 932,167 50,617 (4,007) (737) 11,189 15,110 72,172 30,704 1,035,044

Cumulative effects of changes 
in accounting policies (1,208) (1,208) 1,215 1,215 7

Restated balance 132,166 19,222 781,314 (1,744) 930,959 51,833 (4,007) (737) 11,189 15,110 73,388 30,704 1,035,051

Changes during period

Dividends of surplus (20,790) (20,790) (20,790)

Profit attributable to 
owners of parent 41,788 41,788 41,788

Purchase of treasury shares (60) (60) (60)

Disposal of treasury shares (0) 2 2 2

Change in ownership interest 
of parent due to transactions 
with non-controlling interests

260 260 260

Net changes in items other 
than shareholders’ equity (10,496) (10,154) (1,104) (6,300) (28,055) (530) (28,585)

Total changes during period ー 260 20,998 (57) 21,201 (10,496) (10,154) ー (1,104) (6,300) (28,055) (530) (7,384)

Balance at end of period 132,166 19,483 802,313 (1,802) 952,160 41,336 (14,161) (737) 10,085 8,809 45,332 30,174 1,027,667 
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Note: Details of ※1 and 2 are provided in “Notes to the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows” on page 93.

(million yen)

Previous Year
(April 1, 2019 - March 31, 2020)

Current Year
(April 1, 2020 - March 31, 2021)

Cash flows from operating activities

Profit before income taxes 70,449 108,735

Depreciation 91,925 101,444

Amortization of long-term prepaid expenses 5,159 5,106

Impairment losses 15,568 19,016

Decrease (increase) in retirement benefit asset (3,511) (3,366)

Interest and dividend income (11,332) (5,726)

Interest expenses 12,192 11,087

Share of loss (profit) of entities accounted for using equity method (5,225) (13,618)

Loss (gain) on sales of investment securities in subsidiaries and associates 411 (3,694)

Decrease (increase) in trade receivables 12,239 (1,203)

Decrease (increase) in inventories 4,014 26,113

Increase (decrease) in trade payables 664 1,200

Increase (decrease) in accrued expenses 3,316 (124)

Other, net 512 (5,335)

Subtotal 196,384 239,635

Interest and dividends received 21,844 15,461

Interest paid (12,280) (11,375)

Income taxes paid (23,056) (23,924)

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 182,892 219,797 

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment (117,574) (169,607)

Purchase of intangible assets (9,173) (13,148)

Purchase of long-term prepaid expenses (9,045) (6,320)

Purchase of investment securities (7,997) (7,088)

Purchase of shares of subsidiaries and associates (22,965) (6,309)

Purchase of shares of subsidiaries resulting in change in scope of consolidation ※ 2 (63,350) ※ 2 (5,914)

Proceeds from sale of shares of subsidiaries resulting in change in scope of consolidation 558 9,096

Payments for sales of shares of subsidiaries resulting in change in scope of consolidation ー (373)

Other, net (2,719) 1,311

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities (232,266) (198,354) 

Cash flows from financing activities

Net increase (decrease) in short-term borrowings (2,579) (14,659)

Net increase (decrease) in commercial papers (46,000) ー
Proceeds from long-term borrowings 44,170 35,946

Repayments of long-term borrowings (47,418) (44,572)

Proceeds from issuance of bonds 175,000 75,000

Redemption of bonds (20,000) (30,000)

Proceeds from share issuance to non-controlling shareholders 240 206

Dividends paid (20,799) (20,793)

Dividends paid to non-controlling interests (1,165) (749)

Other, net (2,174) (2,013)

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 79,272 (1,636)

Effect of exchange rate change on cash and cash equivalents 1,145 838

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 31,043 20,644

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 115,769 146,813

Decrease in cash and cash equivalents resulting from exclusion of subsidiaries from consolidation ー (695)

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period ※ 1 146,813 ※ 1 166,762

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
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【Notes】

Number of consolidated subsidiaries:
156 (Previous fiscal year), 154 (Current fiscal year)
The names of consolidated subsidiaries are omitted as they are stated 
in “Group Companies” on page 115.
The Company has acquired shares in GlobalBase Corporation, 
RenoBase Design Corporation, Osaka Gas Three Rivers, LLC, 
PaletteCloud Inc., Finex Oy, Kiinteisto Oy Kotkan Huumantie 5, and 
Shikoku Central Energy K.K., making them the new subsidiaries of the 
Company. As a result, those subsidiaries are included as consolidated 

subsidiaries of the Company from the current fiscal year.
OGCTS CO., LTD. (merged into Daigas Energy Co., Ltd.), Gas and 
Power Co., Ltd. (merged into Daigas Gas and Power Solution Co., 
Ltd.), Osaka Gas Engineering Co., Ltd. (merged into Daigas Gas and 
Power Solution Co., Ltd.), Osaka Gas Resources Canada Ltd. (sold), 
OG Road Co., Ltd. (liquidated), Osaka Gas Niugini Pty Ltd (sold), 
Osaka Gas Niugini E&P Pty Ltd (sold), OJV Cayman 4 Limited 
(liquidated), and OJV Cayman 6 Limited (liquidated) are no longer 
consolidated subsidiaries of the Company from the current fiscal year.

1. Scope of consolidation

Number of equity method affiliates:
23 (Previous fiscal year), 27 (Current fiscal year)
The names of equity method affiliates are omitted as they are stated 
in “Group Companies” on page 115.
The Company has acquired equity in TOPS Pipeline, LLC and CPV 
Three Rivers, LLC. As a result, they are included as equity method 
affiliates from the current fiscal year. Fukushima Gas Power Co., Ltd. 
and Ichihara Biomass Power Co., Ltd. are included as equity method 
affi l iates from the current fiscal year due to their increased 
importance. The silent partnership where GK Aomori Wind Power is 
the operator is included as an equity method affiliate from the current 
fiscal year because the Company invested in the silent partnership.

Aurora Solar Holdings Corporation (sold) is excluded as an equity 
method affiliate from the current fiscal year.
A major affiliate for which the equity method is not applied is ENNET 
Corporation.
With regard to affiliates for which the equity method is not applied, 
their impact on profit or loss and retained earnings, etc. for the 
current fiscal year is not significant and immaterial on the whole. 
Therefore, investments in those affiliates are measured at cost.
When the fiscal year-end of equity method affiliates is different from 
the consolidated fiscal year-end, the financial statements for the 
fiscal year of such affiliates are used.

2. Application of the equity method

Consolidated subsidiaries whose fiscal year-ends are different from 
the consolidated fiscal year-end are Osaka Gas Australia Pty Ltd, 
Osaka Gas Gorgon Pty Ltd, Osaka Gas Ichthys Pty Ltd, Osaka 
Gas Ichthys Development Pty Ltd, Osaka Gas UK, Ltd., Osaka Gas 
USA Corporation and other companies, totaling 85 companies.
Of the consolidated subsidiaries whose fiscal year-ends are 
different from the consolidated fiscal year-end, GlobalBase 

Corporation and RenoBase Design Corporation have a fiscal year-
end of February 28, and the other consolidated subsidiaries have a 
fiscal year-end of December 31. However, since the difference 
between those dates and the consolidated fiscal year-end (March 
31) does not exceed 3 months, the consolidated financial 
statements are prepared using their financial statements as of their 
fiscal year-end.

3. Fiscal year, etc. of consolidated subsidiaries

(1) Basis and methodology for the valuation of significant assets

(2) Depreciation and amortization method of significant     
     depreciable assets

Primarily stated at cost based on the moving-average method
Inventories held for trading recorded on the balance sheet are 
depreciated to write down the carrying amount based on 
depreciation of profitability.

① Inventories

Primarily the declining-balance method
However, the straight-line method has been used for buildings 
(excluding facilities attached to buildings) acquired on or after 
April 1, 1998 and for facilities attached to buildings and 
structures acquired on or after April 1, 2016.

① Property, plant and equipment (excluding leased assets)

Stated at fair value

③ Derivatives

Other securities
Securities for which it is practical to determine fair value
Stated at fair value based on the market price, etc. at the fiscal 
year-end (unrealized valuation gains and losses are accounted 
for as a component of net assets; cost of sales is determined 
primarily using the moving-average method.)
Securities for which it is not practical to determine fair value
Primarily stated at cost based on the moving-average method

Bonds held to maturity
Stated at amortized cost

② Investment securities

4. Accounting policies

Significant Accounting Policies for Preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements

Primarily the straight-line method
For internal-use software, the straight-line method based on 
the term available for use within the Company and each 
subsidiary has been applied.

② Intangible assets (excluding leased assets)

Leased assets resulting from non-ownership-transfer finance leases
The straight-line method over the useful life equal to the lease terms 
assuming no residual value

③ Leased assets

(3) Basis for recording significant allowances

To provide for the bad debts loss of accounts receivable, loans receivable, etc., 
an estimated uncollectible amount is provided by considering the default ratio 
in the past for general receivables and the individual collectability for certain 
receivables including receivables with default possibility.

① Allowance for doubtful accounts

To provide for the payment of any service costs under warranty after 
the sale of appliances, an estimated amount of such costs is provided.

④ Provision for gas appliance warranties

To provide for the necessary expenditure to ensure the safety of the 
gas business, an estimated amount of the expenditure necessary 
for promoting the widespread use of safety-enhanced models, for 
strengthening inspections and ensuring increased awareness as 
well as for countermeasure works on aged gas pipelines is provided.

③ Provision for safety measures

To provide for the necessary expenditure for periodical repairs of 
spherical gas holders, an estimated amount for the next scheduled repair 
is provided based on the actual expenditure for the previous repair, which 
is proportionally allotted for the period up to such next scheduled repair.

② Provision for gas holder repairs
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(million yen)

Fiscal year ended March 31, 2021

Property, plant and equipment 1,070,610

Intangible assets 97,912

Investment in entities accounted for 
using equity method 210,091 

2 Collectability of deferred tax assets

(1) Amounts recorded on the consolidated financial 
     statements for this consolidated fiscal year

(2) Information on details of significant accounting estimates for identified items

The amount of deferred tax assets is the same as the amount stated 
in “Consolidated Financial Statements and Notes, Consolidated 
Financial Statements, Notes (Tax Effect Accounting), 1 Breakdown of 
major causes for deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities.”

For tax loss carryforwards, tax deductions, and deductible temporary differences, the 
Company and its consolidated subsidiaries recognize deferred tax assets only for 
those highly likely to reduce future taxable income. The Company and its consolidated 
subsidiaries estimate the amount of taxable income expected to be generated in the 
future and the timing of such generation based on business plans, etc.
In the event that the expected future taxable income has not been generated, the 
deferred tax assets recorded may not be collected and tax expenses may increase.

The Company and its consolidated subsidiaries assess whether 
there is any indication of impairment of property, plant and equipment 
and intangible assets. If there is any indication, they conduct an 
impairment test. For investments in equity method affiliates, the 
Company and its consolidated subsidiaries assess whether there is 
any indication of impairment, and if there is any indication, they 
conduct an impairment test. The Company and its consolidated 
subsidiaries estimate future cash flows and discount rates for 
calculating their present value as the basis for calculating the 
recoverable amount, etc.
In the event that the recoverable amount, etc. deteriorates due to a 
decline in profit/loss or cash flows from future operating activities or 
an increase in the discount rate caused by factors such as a decline 
in energy prices such as crude oil prices, it may be necessary to 
record impairment losses.
During the current fiscal year, Osaka Gas Australia Pty Ltd (“Osaka 
Gas Australia”) recognized an indication of impairment on LNG 
Development Project, in which it had invested, due to the low level of 
crude oil prices and conducted an impairment test. Having found 
that the recoverable amount was less than the carrying amount, 
Osaka Gas Australia recorded impairment losses of ¥14,208 million.
(Reference) Amount recorded on the balance sheet of Osaka Gas 
Australia (seven consolidated companies) for the current fiscal year:
Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets ¥106,474 million

(1) Amounts recorded on the consolidated financial 
     statements for this consolidated fiscal year

(2) Information on details of significant accounting 
     estimates for identified items

3 Calculation of retirement benefit obligations

(million yen)
Fiscal year ended March 31, 2021

Retirement benefit asset 83,494

Retirement benefit liability 18,758

Remeasurements of defined benefit plans 34,025 

(1) Amounts recorded on the consolidated financial 
     statements for this consolidated fiscal year

The Company and its consolidated subsidiaries have adopted funded 
and unfunded defined benefit plans and defined contribution plans for 
the purpose of providing retirement benefits to employees. The defined 
benefit plan obligations and defined benefit expenses as of the end of 
the current fiscal year are recorded based on actuarial assumptions for 
pensions such as discount rate, retirement rate, mortality rate, and long-
term expected rate of return.
If the actual results differ from these assumptions, or if there is a change 
in the assumptions, the retirement benefit obligations and expenses of 
the Company and its consolidated subsidiaries may be affected.

(2) Information on details of significant accounting 
     estimates for identified items

1 Impairment of property, plant and equipment, intangible assets, 
and investment in entities accounted for using equity method

Significant Accounting Estimates

(5) Criteria for translating significant assets or liabilities denominated 
     in foreign currencies into Japanese currency
Assets and liabilities of overseas subsidiaries are translated into Japanese yen at 
the spot exchange rate as of the fiscal year-end. Revenues and expenses of 
overseas subsidiaries are translated into Japanese yen at the average exchange 
rate during the fiscal year. The resulting translation differences are included in 
foreign currency translation adjustment and non-controlling interests in net assets.

(4) Accounting for retirement benefits

In calculating retirement benefit obligations, the benefit formula 
basis is mainly applied to attribute projected retirement benefits to 
periods of service until the end of this consolidated fiscal year.

① Method for attributing projected retirement benefits to periods of service

Past service costs are expensed mainly in the fiscal year when 
such costs are incurred. Actuarial gains and losses are 
amortized on a straight-line basis mainly over a period of 10 
years beginning from the next fiscal year after each occurrence.

② Method for recognizing actuarial gains and losses and past service costs

(7) Method and period for amortization of goodwill

Goodwill is amortized on a straight-line basis over its estimated useful life 
within 20 years after initial recognition; provided, however, that immaterial 
goodwill is recognized as income or expense in full upon acquisition.

(8) Scope of funds in the consolidated statement of cash flows

Funds stated in the consolidated statement of cash flows (cash and cash 
equivalents) comprise cash on hand, demand deposits and short-term 
investments that are readily convertible and subject to an insignificant risk 
of changes in value with original maturities of three months or less.

(9) Other significant matters on the preparation of the 
     consolidated financial statements

Transactions subject to consumption taxes are recorded at 
amounts exclusive of consumption taxes.

Revenue from gas and electricity sales is recorded based on 
the meter reading date, in which gas or electricity usage is 
measured in a monthly meter reading and the calculated fees 
are recognized as revenue for that month.

① Accounting for consumption taxes

② Accounting policies and procedures adopted in the absence of requirements in 
relevant accounting standards, etc. that specifically apply to events or transactions 
that are accounted for Basis for recording significant revenue and expenses

(6) Significant hedge accounting method

Deferred hedge accounting is adopted. When applicable requirements 
are met, exceptional accounting for interest rate swaps and allocation 
accounting for forward exchange contracts, etc. are adopted.

① Hedge accounting method

The Group hedges foreign exchange rate and interest rate risk 
based on its internal rules. Derivative transactions are not 
entered into unless they are backed by actual demand.

③ Hedging policy

Hedge effectiveness is assessed by identifying the corresponding 
relationship between hedging instruments and hedged items.

④ Method for assessing the hedge effectiveness

Hedging instruments

Hedged items

・ Interest rate swaps
・ Forward exchange contracts or currency options
・ Loans payable denominated in foreign currencies
・ Swaps and options on energy prices, etc.

・ Bonds, loans payable
・ Forecast transactions denominated in foreign 
　currencies (purchase prices of raw materials, etc.)
・ Interests in overseas subsidiaries and associates
・ Purchase prices of raw materials, etc.

② Hedging instruments and hedged items
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・ “Accounting Standard for Revenue Recognition”
   (ASBJ Statement No. 29; March 31, 2020)
・ “Implementation Guidance on Accounting Standard for Revenue 

Recognition”
   (ASBJ Guidance No. 30; March 26, 2021)

(1) Summary

These are comprehensive accounting standards on revenue recognition. Revenue 
is recognized by applying the following five-step approach:

Step 1: Identify the contracts with customers
Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the contract
Step 3: Determine the transaction price
Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance 

obligations in the contract
Step 5: Recognize revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a 

performance obligation

(Accounting standards, etc. not yet applied)

(2) Scheduled date of application

Effective from the beginning of the fiscal year ending March 31, 
2022.

(3) Effects of application

In the process of measuring the effects at the time of preparing 
the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

・ “Accounting Standard for Fair Value Measurement”
    (ASBJ Statement No. 30; July 4, 2019)
・ “Implementation Guidance on Accounting Standard for Fair 

Value Measurement”
    (ASBJ Guidance No. 31; July 4, 2019)

・ “Accounting Standard for Measurement of Inventories”
    (ASBJ Statement No. 9; July 4, 2019)
・ “Accounting Standard for Financial Instruments”
    (ASBJ Statement No. 10; July 4, 2019)
・ “Implementation Guidance on Disclosures about Fair 
     Value of Financial Instruments”
    (ASBJ Guidance No. 19; March 31, 2020)

2 Notes to the Consolidated Balance Sheet

“Deferred tax assets” included in “other” under “investments and 
other assets” for the previous fiscal year are stated as a separate 
item from the current fiscal year due to increased materiality. The 
previous fiscal year’s consolidated financial statements are 
reclassified to reflect this change in presentation.
As a result, “other” under “investments and other assets” in the 
consolidated balance sheet for the previous fiscal year is 
reclassified into “deferred tax assets” of ¥16,397 million and 
“other” of ¥49,526 million.
“Deferred tax liabilities” included in “other” under “non-current 
liabilities” for the previous fiscal year are stated as a separate item 
from the current fiscal year due to increased materiality. The 
previous fiscal year’s consolidated financial statements are 
reclassified to reflect this change in presentation.
As a result, “other” under “non-current l iabil it ies” in the 
consolidated balance sheet for the previous fiscal year is 
reclassified into “deferred tax liabilities” of ¥21,248 million and 
“other” of ¥84,207 million.
“Income taxes payable” included in “other” under “current 
liabilities” for the previous fiscal year are stated as a separate item 
from the current fiscal year due to increased materiality. The 
previous fiscal year’s consolidated financial statements are 
reclassified to reflect this change in presentation.
As a result, “other” under “current liabilities” in the consolidated 
balance sheet for the previous fiscal year is reclassified into 
“income taxes payable” of ¥19,045 million and “other” of 
¥162,609 million.

“Loss (gain) on sales of investment securities in subsidiaries and 
associates” included in “other, net” under cash flows from operating 
activities for the previous fiscal year is stated as a separate item from 
the current fiscal year due to increased materiality. The previous fiscal 
year’s consolidated financial statements are reclassified to reflect this 
change in presentation.
As a result, ¥411 million presented in “other, net” under cash flows 
from operating activities in the previous fiscal year’s consolidated 
statement of cash flows is reclassified into “loss (gain) on sales of 
investment securities in subsidiaries and associates.”
“Increase (decrease) in accrued consumption taxes,” stated as a 
separate item under cash flows from operating activities for the 
previous fiscal year, is included in “other, net” under cash flows from 
operating activities from the current fiscal year due to decreased 
materiality. The previous fiscal year’s consolidated financial 
statements are reclassified to reflect this change in presentation.
As a result, ¥4,568 million presented in “increase (decrease) in 
accrued consumption taxes” in the previous f iscal year’s 
consolidated statement of cash flows is reclassified into “other, net” 
under cash flows from operating activities.
“Long-term loan advances,” stated as a separate item under cash 
flows from investing activities for the previous fiscal year, is included 
in “other, net” under cash flows from investing activities from the 
current fiscal year due to decreased materiality. The previous fiscal 
year’s consolidated financial statements are reclassified to reflect this 
change in presentation.
As a result, ¥(5,443) million presented in “long-term loan advances” 
in the previous fiscal year’s consolidated statement of cash flows is 
reclassified into “other, net” under cash flows from investing activities.
“Net increase (decrease) in short-term borrowings” included in “other, 
net” under cash flows from financing activities for the previous fiscal 
year is stated as a separate item from the current fiscal year due to 
increased materiality. The previous fiscal year’s consolidated financial 
statements are reclassified to reflect this change in presentation.
As a result, ¥(2,579) million presented in “other, net” under cash 
f lows from financing activit ies in the previous f iscal year’s 
consolidated statement of cash flows is reclassified into “net increase 
(decrease) in short-term borrowings.”

3 Notes to the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

The Company has applied the “Accounting Standard for Disclosure of 
Accounting Estimates” (ASBJ Statement No. 31; March 31, 2020) 
from the consolidated financial statements for the current consolidated 
fiscal year-end, and notes regarding significant accounting estimates 
are included in the consolidated financial statements.
However, in accordance with the transitional treatment set forth in the 
provisions of Paragraph 11 of said accounting standard, the details for 
the previous consolidated fiscal year are not included in said notes.

1 Application of “Accounting Standard for Disclosure of 
   Accounting Estimates”

(1) Summary

In order to increase comparability with rules of international accounting 
standards, the “Accounting Standard for Fair Value Measurement” and 
“Implementation Guidance on Accounting Standard for Fair Value 
Measurement” (“Fair Value Measurement Standards”) have been 
developed, defining guidance, etc., on methods for fair value 
measurement. The Fair Value Measurement Standards will be applied 
to fair values of the following items.
・ Financial instruments in “Accounting Standard for Financial 

Instruments”
・ Inventories held for the purpose of trading in “Accounting Standard 

for Measurement of Inventories”
In addition, the “Implementation Guidance on Disclosures about Fair 
Value of Financial Instruments” has been revised to stipulate notes for 
each level of fair value for financial instruments, including breakdowns.

(2) Scheduled date of application

Effective from the beginning of the fiscal year ending March 31, 
2022.

(3) Effects of application

In the process of measuring the effects at the time of preparing 
the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

Changes in Accounting Policies

Changes in Presentation
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※2 Accumulated advanced depreciation deducted from the acquisition cost of assets related to contribution for construction, etc. is as follows:

Previous Year
(As of March 31, 2020)

Current Year
(As of March 31, 2021)

Production facilities 826 million yen 826 million yen

Distribution facilities 262,736 263,561

Service and maintenance facilities 719 640

Other facilities 5,908 6,587

Total 270,190 271,616

※3 Accumulated depreciation of property, plant and equipment is as follows:

Previous Year
(As of March 31, 2020)

Current Year
(As of March 31, 2021)

Accumulated depreciation of property, plant and equipment 2,704,741 million yen 2,754,029 million yen

※4 Items for affiliates are as follows:

Previous Year
(As of March 31, 2020)

Current Year
(As of March 31, 2021)

Investment securities (stock) 229,227 million yen 229,618 million yen

(including investments in joint ventures 127,661 124,817 ）

Previous Year
(As of March 31, 2020)

Current Year
(As of March 31, 2021)

Merchandise and finished goods 21,579 million yen 34,583 million yen

Work in process 8,965 11,982

Raw materials and supplies 77,548 47,621

※5 The breakdown of inventories is as follows:

The Company has applied the “Accounting Standard for Accounting 
Policy Disclosures, Accounting Changes and Error Corrections” 
(ASBJ Statement No. 24; March 31, 2020) from the consolidated 
financial statements for the current consolidated fiscal year-end, and 
disclosed “accounting policies and procedures adopted in the 
absence of requirements in relevant accounting standards, etc. that 

specifically apply to events or transactions that are accounted for.” 
For details, please refer to “Consolidated Financial Statements and 
Notes, Consolidated Financial Statements, Notes (Significant Matters 
Forming the Basis of Preparation of the Consolidated Financial 
Statements), 4 Accounting policies, (9) Other significant matters on 
the preparation of the consolidated financial statements.”

Additional Information

Liabilities with collateral are as follows:
Previous Year

(As of March 31, 2020)
Current Year

(As of March 31, 2021)

Long-term borrowings 73,006 million yen 96,984 million yen

(current portion thereof 1,347 2,603 ）
Short-term borrowings 499 255

Other 100 100

Total 73,605 97,339

Assets pledged as collateral are as follows:
Previous Year

(As of March 31, 2020)
Current Year

(As of March 31, 2021)

Other facilities 125,258 million yen 102,770 million yen

Investment securities 92,135 94,397

Intangible assets 39,445 34,073

“Other” under investments and other assets 33,116 28,769

Cash and deposits 18,628 22,421

Other 9,107 14,395

Total 317,691 296,828  

※1 Assets pledged as collateral and liabilities with collateral

In addition to the above, shares of subsidiaries and affiliates, etc. of ¥27,481 million for the previous fiscal year and ¥25,044 million for the 
current fiscal year, which were offset as a result of consolidation, were pledged as collateral.

Notes to the Consolidated Balance Sheet
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Previous Year
(As of March 31, 2020)

Current Year
(As of March 31, 2021)

Aichi Tahara Biomass Power Plant G.K. ー million yen 2,257 million yen

Ruwais Power Company PJSC 1,086 1,139

Ichthys LNG Pty Ltd 1,396 719

Fukushima Gas Power Co., Ltd. 4,600 ー
Aurora Solar Corporation 1,147 ー
Other 1,138 507

Total 9,368 4,624

※6 Contingent liabilities

(1) Guarantees and quasi-guarantees for bank loans, etc. to companies other than consolidated companies are as follows:

Commercial land of certain consolidated subsidiaries has been 
revalued in accordance with the Act on Revaluation of Land (Law 
No. 34 of March 31, 1998) and the Amendment to Act on 
Revaluation of Land (Law No. 19 of March 31, 2001). Any 
difference (excluding any amount associated with tax effect 
accounting) resulting from the revaluation is included in net assets 
as revaluation reserve for land.

(1) Method for revaluation
The revaluation is made by making reasonable adjustments to the 
valuation by road rating which is provided for in Article 2, Item 4 of 
the Enforcement Order of the Law Concerning the Revaluation of 
Land (Cabinet Order No. 119 of March 31, 1998).

(2) Date of revaluation March 31, 2002

※7 Revaluation reserve for land

※1

The R&D expenses included in “Selling, general and administrative 
expenses” and in the manufacturing expenses for the fiscal year 
are ¥10,174 million.

The R&D expenses included in “Selling, general and administrative 
expenses” and in the manufacturing expenses for the fiscal year 
are ¥9,440 million.

Previous Year
(April 1, 2019 - March 31, 2020)

Current Year
(April 1, 2020 - March 31, 2021)

1,289 million yen 30 million yen

※2 The balance of inventories at the end of the fiscal year is an amount after write-down of the carrying amount due to decreased 
profitability, and the following loss on valuation of inventories is included in cost of sales.

Previous Year (April 1, 2019 - March 31, 2020) Current Year (April 1, 2020 - March 31, 2021)

Notes to the Consolidated Statement of Income

Previous Year
(April 1, 2019 - March 31, 2020)

Current Year
(April 1, 2020 - March 31, 2021)

Salaries 45,736 million yen 49,515 million yen

Retirement benefit expenses (1,014) (633)

Provision for gas holder repairs 137 144

Provision of allowance for safety measures ー 1,844

Provision of allowance for doubtful accounts 574 234

Depreciation 47,983 48,672

Consigned work expenses 64,413 65,563

※3 The major expense items and amounts thereof are as follows:

※4 Impairment losses

(1) Concept of grouping

All non-current assets used in operating the gas business 
from production to sales of gas are categorized into one 
asset group as these assets generate cash flows from the 
gas business in an integrated manner.

①

③ Generally, other non-current assets are treated individually.

② Non-current assets used for businesses other than those 
described above are generally categorized into groups based 
on business divisions controlling such non-current assets.

Previous Year (April 1, 2019 - March 31, 2020)
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Foreign currency translation adjustment

Incurred in the fiscal year (2,317) million yen (13,526) million yen

Reclassification adjustments 679 (204)

Before tax effect adjustments (1,638) (13,730)

Tax effect ー ー
Foreign currency translation adjustment (1,638) (13,730)

Previous Year
(April 1, 2019 - March 31, 2020)

Current Year
(April 1, 2020 - March 31, 2021)

Valuation difference on available-for-sale securities

Incurred in the fiscal year (14,537) million yen 39,760 million yen

Reclassification adjustments 168 (102)

Before tax effect adjustments (14,368) 39,658

Tax effect 3,913 (11,236)

Valuation difference on available-for-sale securities (10,455) 28,421

Deferred gains or losses on hedges

Incurred in the fiscal year 244 million yen (10,873) million yen

Reclassification adjustments 604 (1,407)

Before tax effect adjustments 848 (12,280)

Tax effect (2,290) 2,137

Deferred gains or losses on hedges (1,442) (10,143)

※1 Reclassification adjustments and tax effects related to other comprehensive income

Notes to the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

In accordance with the grouping described in (1) above, impairment losses of ¥15,568 million were recognized. Significant losses included in this are as follows:

In accordance with the grouping described in (1) above, impairment losses of ¥19,016 million were recognized. Significant losses included in this are as follows:

These properties were acquired for the purpose of participating in 
the gas and condensate development business. The Company 
reassessed the business value, taking into account the effects of 
reviewing the development plan and other matters, and 
accordingly the carrying amount of the assets was reduced to 

These assets were acquired for projects such as refining, 
liquefying and selling natural gas produced in the region. The 
Company reassessed the business value, taking into account the 
effects of factors such as the decline in crude oil prices, and 
accordingly, the carrying amount of the assets was reduced to 

their recoverable amount, and the reduction was recorded as 
impairment losses in extraordinary losses.
The recoverable amount of these assets was measured at net 
sale value determined based on reasonable estimates in 
consideration of past transactions, etc., or market value.

their recoverable amounts, and the reduction was recorded as 
impairment losses in extraordinary losses.
The recoverable amount of these assets was measured by value 
in use, which is calculated by discounting future cash flows at 
9.6% or 11.5%.

(2) Details of impairment losses

(2) Details of impairment losses

Asset Location Type Impairment losses (million yen)

Property for business use

Northern Territory of Australia / 
East Timor

Intangible assets 10,036

Northern Territory of Australia

Property, plant and equipment 2,524

Intangible assets 1,909

Total 4,434

Asset Location Type Impairment losses (million yen)

Property for business use Western Australia of Australia

Property, plant and equipment 12,271

Intangible assets 1,937

Total 14,208

(1) Concept of grouping

All non-current assets used in operating the gas business 
from production to sales of gas are categorized into one 
asset group as these assets generate cash flows from the 
gas business in an integrated manner.

①

③ Generally, other non-current assets are treated individually.

② Non-current assets used for businesses other than those 
described above are generally categorized into groups based 
on business divisions controlling such non-current assets.

Current Year (April 1, 2020 - March 31, 2021)
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Remeasurements of defined benefit plans

Incurred in the fiscal year (5,171) million yen 38,404 million yen

Reclassification adjustments (3,438) (2,915)

Before tax effect adjustments (8,609) 35,488

Tax effect 2,420 (9,951)

Remeasurements of defined benefit plans (6,189) 25,536

Share of other comprehensive income of entities accounted for using equity method

Incurred in the fiscal year (10,018) million yen (8,177) million yen

Reclassification adjustments 1,798 2,972

Share of other comprehensive income of 
entities accounted for using equity method

(8,219) (5,204)

Total other comprehensive income (27,945) 24,879

Previous Year (April 1, 2019 - March 31, 2020)

1 Matters on shares issued and outstanding

Type of shares As of April 1, 2019 Increase Decrease As of March 31, 2020

Common shares (thousand shares) 416,680 ー ー 416,680

2 Matters on treasury shares

Type of shares As of April 1, 2019 Increase Decrease As of March 31, 2020

Common shares (thousand shares) 867 29 1 895 

(Overview of reasons for change)

The major reason for increase is as follows: Increase by repurchase of fractional shares 29 thousand shares

The major reason for decrease is as follows: Decrease by disposal of fractional shares 1 thousand shares

Not applicable.

3 Matters on subscription rights to shares, etc.

(1) Dividends paid

Resolution Type of shares Total dividends paid
(million yen)

Dividends per share
(yen) Record date Effective date

Annual General Meeting of Shareholders 
held on June 20, 2019 Common shares 10,395 25.00 March 31, 2019 June 21, 2019

Board of Directors’ Meeting held on 
October 29, 2019 Common shares 10,394 25.00 September 30, 2019 November 29, 2019

4 Matters on dividends

(2) Of the dividends whose record date belongs to the fiscal year, the dividends whose effective date falls in the following fiscal year

Resolution Type of shares Total dividends paid 
(million yen)

Dividends per share 
(yen) Record date Effective date Source of dividends

Annual General Meeting of Shareholders 
held on June 26, 2020 Common shares 10,394 25.00 March 31, 2020 June 29, 2020 Retained earnings

Notes to the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Type of shares As of April 1, 2020 Increase Decrease As of March 31, 2021

Common shares(thousand shares) 416,680 ー ー 416,680

1 Matters on shares issued and outstanding

(Overview of reasons for change)

The major reason for increase is as follows: Increase by repurchase of fractional shares 25 thousand shares

The major reason for decrease is as follows: Decrease by disposal of fractional shares   1 thousand shares

Type of shares As of April 1, 2020 Increase Decrease As of March 31, 2021

Common shares (thousand shares) 895 25 1 920

2 Matters on treasury shares

Current Year (April 1, 2020 - March 31, 2021)

Not applicable.

3 Matters on subscription rights to shares, etc.
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Previous Year (As of March 31, 2020)

One year or less
(million yen)

More than one year, 
up to two years

(million yen)

More than two years, 
up to three years

(million yen)

More than three years, 
up to four year

(million yen)

More than four years,
 up to five years

(million yen)

More than five 
years

(million yen)

Lease receivables 1,587 1,447 1,298 1,131 981 4,970

Lease investment assets 8,032 7,421 6,819 5,942 4,830 13,245

Current Year (As of March 31, 2021)

One year or less
(million yen)

More than one year, 
up to two years

(million yen)

More than two years,
 up to three years

(million yen)

More than three years, 
up to four years

(million yen)

More than four years, 
up to five years

(million yen)

More than five 
years

(million yen)

Lease receivables 1,789 1,631 1,455 1,284 1,103 5,444 

Lease investment assets 9,065 8,454 7,567 6,402 5,372 19,536 

(2) Amounts of lease receivables and lease payments receivable components of lease investment assets expected to be collected after the fiscal year end
    (Current assets)

(1) Breakdown of lease investment assets
     (Current assets)

1 Finance lease transactions
   (As lessor)

Previous Year
(As of March 31, 2020)

Current Year
(As of March 31, 2021)

Lease payments receivable component 46,292 million yen 56,399 million yen

Estimated residual value component 501 512

Amount equivalent to interest income (9,339) (12,834)

Lease investment assets 37,454 44,076

Notes to Leases

(2) Of the dividends whose record date belongs to the fiscal year, the dividends whose effective date falls in the following fiscal year

Resolution Type of shares Total dividends paid
(million yen)

Dividends per share
(yen) Record date Effective date Source of dividends

Annual General Meeting 
of Shareholders held on 
June 25, 2021

Common shares 11,433 27.50 March 31, 2021 June 28, 2021 Retained earnings

(1) Dividends paid

Resolution Type of shares Total dividends paid
(million yen)

Dividends per share
(yen) Record date Effective date

Annual General Meeting of 
Shareholders held on June 26, 2020 Common shares 10,394 25.00 March 31, 2020 June 29, 2020

Board of Directors’ Meeting held on 
October 29, 2020 Common shares 10,394 25.00 September 30, 2020 November 30, 2020

4 Matters on dividends

※1 The relationship between the balance of cash and cash equivalents at end of period and the amount of cash and deposits in the 
consolidated balance sheet is as follows:

Previous Year
(April 1, 2019 - March 31, 2020)

Current Year
(April 1, 2020 - March 31, 2021)

Cash and deposits 147,201 million yen 167,083 million yen

Time deposits with more than 3 months to maturity (388) (320)

Cash and cash equivalents 146,813 166,762

Notes to the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

This information is omitted due to lack of materiality.

※2 Primary components of assets and liabilities of companies that newly became consolidated subsidiaries through acquisition of shares

The following are components of assets and liabilities at the time 
of commencing consolidation following the new consolidation of 
Sabine Oil & Gas Corporation (“Sabine”) through acquisition of 
shares, as well as the relationship between the acquisition cost of 
shares in Sabine and the expenditures (net) associated with 
acquiring Sabine.

Current assets 4,765 million yen

Non-current assets 70,092

Current liabilities (8,558)

Non-current liabilities (3,263)

Cost of share acquisition 63,036

Cash and cash equivalents (733)

Foreign currency translation adjustment (374)

Balance: Expenditures associated with acquisition of shares 61,929

Previous Year (April 1, 2019 - March 31, 2020)

Current Year (April 1, 2020 - March 31, 2021)
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Future lease payments payable for non-cancellable operating leases

2 Operating lease transactions
    (As lessee)

Previous Year
(As of March 31, 2020)

Current Year
(As of March 31, 2021)

Due within one year 1,230 million yen 1,491 million yen

Due over one year 3,959 4,010

Total 5,190 5,501

Future lease payments receivable for non-cancellable operating leases

(Lessor)

Previous Year
(As of March 31, 2020)

Current Year
(As of March 31, 2021)

Due within one year 2,154 million yen 2,125 million yen

Due over one year 4,657 4,460

Total 6,812 6,586

3 Amounts recorded on the consolidated balance sheet before deducting amounts equivalent to interest for sublease transactions

Previous Year
(As of March 31, 2020)

Current Year
(As of March 31, 2021)

Current assets 10,714 million yen 15,628 million yen

(1) Lease receivables and lease investment assets

Previous Year
(As of March 31, 2020)

Current Year
(As of March 31, 2021)

Current liabilities 708 million yen 1,026 million yen

Non-current liabilities 7,644 11,778

(2) Lease obligations

(1) Policies for dealing with financial instruments

(2) Details of financial instruments, risks thereof and risk
management structure

It is the Group’s policy to raise its operating funds through loans 
from financial institutions and the issuance of bonds and to 
conduct fund management through a conservative financial 
portfolio which limits exposure to losses. The Group uses 
derivative transactions to hedge the risks described later and 
does not engage in speculative transactions.

(3) Supplementary explanation to fair value of financial 
instruments

Please note that contract amounts of derivative transactions in “2 
Matters on fair value, etc. of financial instruments” do not, in 
themselves, indicate the market risk pertaining to the derivative 
transactions.

Notes and accounts receivable - trade, which are operating 
receivables, are exposed to customer credit risks. To deal with 
this risk, the Company and the Group companies manage due 
dates and balances for each counterparty in accordance with 
their accounting rules and manuals regarding receivable 
management, etc. and seek to mitigate collectability concern.
Securities and investment securities, which comprise mainly 
shares of companies with which the Group has business 
relationships, are exposed to risks including market price 
fluctuation risk. The Group continuously reviews its shareholding 
position by periodically monitoring their market price and the 
financial condition of the issuers (customer companies), as well as 
considering the relationship with such customer companies.
Notes and accounts payable - trade, which are operating 
payables, are mostly settled within one year. Of bonds and loans 
payable, short-term borrowings are mainly to procure funds for 
operational transactions, while bonds and long-term borrowings 
are mainly to procure funds for capital expenditures. Bonds and 
long-term borrowings procure funds with fixed interest rates.
In derivative transactions, the Group uses interest rate swaps for 
adjusting the ratio between fixed and floating interest rates and 
fixing the interest level for bonds and loans payable, forward 
exchange contracts and currency option contracts for reducing 
the fluctuation of cash flows due to change in foreign exchange 

rates, swap contracts and option contracts on energy prices, etc. 
for reducing the fluctuation of cash flows due to change in energy 
prices, etc., and weather derivative contracts, etc. for reducing 
the fluctuation of cash flows due to change in temperature. 
Matters on hedge accounting including hedging instruments, 
hedged items, hedging policy and methods for assessing hedge 
effectiveness are as described in “Consolidated Financial 
Statements and Notes, Consolidated Financial Statements, Notes 
(Significant Matters Forming the Basis of Preparation of the 
Consolidated Financial Statements), 4 (6) Significant hedge 
accounting method.”
In conducting derivative transactions, the Group primarily enters 
into contracts only with financial institutions, etc. with high ratings 
in order to minimize credit risks. Execution and management of 
derivative transactions are performed by the finance department 
of each Group company, and the finance department of the 
Company controls their activities. Transactions by Group 
companies are conducted in accordance with the internal rules.
Although operating payables, loans and bonds payable are 
exposed to liquidity risk, the Company maintains high credit 
ratings and secures stable fund procurement measures. In 
addition, the Group has implemented a cash management system 
(CMS) and a global cash management system (GCMS) to facilitate 
funding for Group companies.

1 Matters on the status of financial instruments

Notes to Financial Instruments
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(1) Cash and deposits, and (2) Notes and accounts receivable - trade

Note 1: Method for measuring fair value of financial instruments and matters on securities and derivative transactions

As these items are settled within a short term, the fair value is 
approximately equal to the carrying amount. Therefore, the fair 
value is determined by the carrying amount.

(3) Securities and investment securities

The fair value of shares is based on the market prices at the 
exchange. The fair value of bonds is based on the market prices 
at the exchange or the prices provided by counterparty financial 
institutions. For information on securities classified by holding 
purpose, please refer to “Notes to Securities.”

(4) Long-term borrowings

The fair value of long-term borrowings with fixed interest is 
measured by discounting the sum of the principal and interest at 
the rate assumed for new similar loans.
The fair value of long-term borrowings with floating interest is 
determined by the carrying amount, as the fair value is deemed 
approximately equal to the carrying amount. Interest rate swap 
contracts which determine the interest rate level of long-term 
borrowings with floating interest qualify for exceptional accounting. 
Long-term borrowings with floating interest accompanied by such 
interest swaps are accounted for as a whole, and the fair value is 
determined by discounting the sum of their principals and 
interests at a reasonably estimated rate applied for similar loans.

Assets

(1) Notes and accounts payable - trade, and (2) Short-term borrowings

(3) Bonds payable

As these items are settled within a short term, the fair value is 
approximately equal to the carrying amount. Therefore, the fair 
value is determined by the carrying amount.

The fair value of bonds payable issued by the Company is based 
on their market prices.

Liabilities

Please refer to “Notes to Derivative Transactions.”

Derivative transactions

The carrying amount in the consolidated balance sheet, fair value and difference between them are as follows. Financial instruments whose fair 
value is deemed to be extremely difficult to determine are not included in the table below (see Note 2).

2 Matters on fair value, etc. of financial instruments

(※1) Includes those due within one year.
(※2) Assets and liabilities arising from derivative transactions were offset and indicated by parentheses ( ) when the amount offset was a liability.

Carrying amount in the consolidated balance sheet
(million yen)

Fair value
(million yen)

Difference
(million yen)

(1) Cash and deposits 147,201 147,201 ー
(2) Notes and accounts receivable - trade 210,515 210,515 ー
(3) Securities and investment securities 86,329 86,329 ー
Total assets 444,046 444,046 ー
(1) Notes and accounts payable - trade 59,363 59,363 ー
(2) Short-term borrowings 20,029 20,029 ー
(3) Bonds payable (※1) 319,992 327,165 7,172

(4) Long-term borrowings (※1) 401,827 420,116 18,288

Total liabilities 801,213 826,674 25,461

Derivative transactions (※2) (675) (675) ー

Previous Year (As of March 31, 2020)

(※1) Includes those due within one year.
(※2) Assets and liabilities arising from derivative transactions were offset and indicated by parentheses ( ) when the amount offset was a liability.

Carrying amount in the consolidated balance sheet
(million yen)

Fair value
(million yen)

Difference
(million yen)

(1) Cash and deposits 167,083 167,083 ー
(2) Notes and accounts receivable - trade 211,696 211,696 ー
(3) Securities and investment securities 127,620 127,620 ー
Total assets 506,399 506,399 ー
(1) Notes and accounts payable - trade 60,453 60,453 ー
(2) Short-term borrowings 13,546 13,546 ー
(3) Bonds payable (※1) 364,995 366,069 1,073

(4) Long-term borrowings (※1) 392,244 407,656 15,412

Total liabilities 831,240 847,726 16,486

Derivative transactions (※2) (2,980) (2,980) ー

Current Year (As of March 31, 2021)
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Note 2: Carrying amount in the consolidated balance sheet of financial instruments whose fair value is extremely difficult to determine

As the above financial instruments do not have market prices and their future cash flows cannot be estimated, their fair value is extremely 
difficult to determine. Therefore, they are not included in “(3) Securities and investment securities.”

(million yen)

Category March 31, 2020 March 31, 2021

Shares of affiliates 229,227 229,618

Unlisted stocks, etc. 16,643 19,835 

One year or less
(million yen)

More than one year, 
up to five years

(million yen)

More than five years, 
up to ten years

(million yen)

More than ten years
(million yen)

Cash and deposits 147,201 ー ー ー
Notes and accounts receivable - trade 210,515 ー ー ー
Securities and investment securities

Held-to-maturity bonds(Corporate bonds) ー ー ー 180

Available-for-sale securities with maturities
(Government bonds and municipal bonds) ー ー ー 98

Available-for-sale securities with maturities (Other) 43 2,211 2,339 0

Total 357,760 2,211 2,339 279

One year or less
(million yen)

More than one year, 
up to two years

(million yen)

More than two years, 
up to three years

(million yen)

More than three years, 
up to four years

(million yen)

More than four years, 
up to five years

(million yen)

More than five years
(million yen)

Short-term borrowings 20,029 ー ー ー ー ー
Bonds payable 30,000 10,000 30,000 10,000 ー 240,000

Long-term borrowings 38,070 69,332 39,703 48,713 47,651 158,356

Total 88,099 79,332 69,703 58,713 47,651 398,356

One year or less
(million yen)

More than one year, 
up to two years

(million yen)

More than two years, 
up to three years

  (million yen)

More than three years, 
up to four years

(million yen)

More than four years, 
up to five years

(million yen)

More than five years
(million yen)

Short-term borrowings 13,546 ー ー ー ー ー
Bonds payable 10,000 30,000 10,000 ー ー 315,000

Long-term borrowings 58,981 36,484 53,703 49,026 43,112 150,936

Total 82,528 66,484 63,703 49,026 43,112 465,936

One year or less
(million yen)

More than one year, 
up to five years

(million yen)

More than five years, 
up to ten years

(million yen)

More than ten years
(million yen)

Cash and deposits 167,083 ー ー ー
Notes and accounts receivable - trade 211,696 ー ー ー
Securities and investment securities

Held-to-maturity bonds (Corporate bonds) ー ー ー 4,040

Available-for-sale securities with maturities
(Government bonds and municipal bonds) ー ー ー 98

Available-for-sale securities with maturities (Other) 167 1,576 2,831 0

Total 378,946 1,576 2,831 4,139

Note 3: Expected redemption amounts of monetary receivables and securities with maturities after the consolidated fiscal year-end

Note 4: Expected repayment amounts of bonds payable, long-term borrowings and other interest-bearing debts

Previous Year (As of March 31, 2020)

Current Year (As of March 31, 2021)

Previous Year (As of March 31, 2020)

Current Year (As of March 31, 2021)
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3 Securities for which impairment losses are recognized

For the previous fiscal year, impairment losses of ¥1,041 million for shares of subsidiaries and associates and impairment losses of ¥205 million 
for available-for-sale securities were recognized.
There is no applicable information for the current fiscal year.

Stocks Total sales 1,147 million yen

Total gain on sales 1,128

Total loss on sales 1

Stocks Total sales 987 million yen

Total gain on sales 197

Total loss on sales 0

2 Available-for-sale securities sold during the fiscal year

Previous Year (April 1, 2019 - March 31, 2020) Current Year (April 1, 2020 - March 31, 2021)

Carrying amount in the 
consolidated balance sheet

(million yen)

Acquisition cost
(million yen)

Difference
(million yen)

1 Available-for-sale securities whose carrying amount in the 
consolidated balance sheet exceeds the acquisition cost

(1) Stocks   78,384 21,297 57,087

(2) Bonds

Government bonds and municipal bonds, etc. ー ー ー
Subtotal 78,384 21,297 57,087

2 Available-for-sale securities whose carrying amount in the 
consolidated balance sheet does not exceed the acquisition cost

(1) Stocks 7,845 8,045 (199)

(2) Bonds

Government bonds and municipal bonds, etc. 98 98 ー
Subtotal 7,944 8,143 (199)

Total 86,329 29,441 56,887

Carrying amount in the 
consolidated balance sheet

(million yen)

Acquisition cost
(million yen)

Difference
(million yen)

1 Available-for-sale securities whose carrying amount in the 
consolidated balance sheet exceeds the acquisition cost

(1) Stocks 126,094 29,042 97,052

(2) Bonds

Government bonds and municipal bonds, etc. ー ー ー
Subtotal 126,094 29,042 97,052

2 Available-for-sale securities whose carrying amount in the 
consolidated balance sheet does not exceed the acquisition cost

(1) Stocks 1,426 1,544 (118)

(2) Bonds

Government bonds and municipal bonds, etc. 98 98 ー
Subtotal 1,525 1,643 (118)

Total 127,620 30,686 96,933 

1 Available-for-sale securities

Note: As unlisted stocks (carrying amount in the consolidated balance sheet: ¥11,859 million), etc. do not have market prices and their future 
cash flows cannot be estimated, their fair value is extremely difficult to determine. Therefore, they are not included.

Note: As unlisted stocks (carrying amount in the consolidated balance sheet: ¥11,209 million), etc. do not have market prices and their future 
cash flows cannot be estimated, their fair value is extremely difficult to determine. Therefore, they are not included.

Previous Year (As of March 31, 2020)

Current Year (As of March 31, 2021)

Notes to Securities
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1 Derivative transactions to which hedge accounting is not applied

Underlying asset Derivative instrument Type of transaction
Contract amount (million yen) Fair value

(million yen)

Valuation gain
(loss)

(million yen)More than one year

(a) Commodities Swap contracts and option 
contracts on energy prices, etc.

Other than market 
transactions 42,448 31,129 (1,112) (1,112)

(b) Currencies Forward exchange contracts Other than market transactions 258 ー (10) (10)

Total 42,706 31,129 (1,123) (1,123)

Note 1: The fair value is measured mainly based on the prices provided by counterparty financial institutions.
Note 2: As certain derivative transactions no longer satisfy the requirements for hedge accounting, hedge accounting is discontinued for such transactions.

Previous Year (As of March 31, 2020)

Underlying asset Derivative instrument Type of transaction
Contract amount (million yen) Fair value

(million yen)

Valuation gain 
(loss)

(million yen)More than one year

(a) Commodities Swap contracts and option 
contracts on energy prices, etc.

Other than market 
transactions 35,875 19,959 (1,208) (1,208)

(b) Currencies Forward exchange contracts Other than market transactions 55 ー 8 8

Total 35,931 19,959 (1,200) (1,200)

Note 1: The fair value is measured mainly based on the prices provided by counterparty financial institutions.
Note 2: As certain derivative transactions no longer satisfy the requirements for hedge accounting, hedge accounting is discontinued for such transactions.

Current Year (As of March 31, 2021)

2 Derivative transactions to which hedge accounting is applied

Underlying asset Derivative instrument Hedge accounting Major hedged item
Contract amount (million yen) Fair value

(million yen)More than one year

(a) Interest rates Interest rate swap contracts

Exceptional accounting of 
interest rate swaps Long-term borrowings 65,962 65,642 See (Note 2)

Principal method of 
accounting

Long-term borrowings 
and bonds payable 116,353 110,473 (6,235) 

(b) Currencies Forward exchange contracts and 
currency option contracts

Allocation accounting of forward 
exchange contracts, etc.

Forecast transactions 
denominated in foreign currencies 7,012 203 See (Note 3)

Principal method of 
accounting

Forecast transactions 
denominated in foreign currencies 139,829 134,509 13,859 

(c) Commodities Swap contracts and option contracts 
on energy prices, etc.

Principal method of 
accounting

Purchase prices of raw 
materials, etc. 62,937 35,982 (7,186) 

Total 392,095 346,812 437 

Note 1: The fair value is measured mainly based on the prices provided by counterparty financial institutions.
Note 2: As interest rate swaps subject to exceptional accounting are accounted for together with the hedged long-term borrowings, their fair 

value is included in that of the long-term borrowings.
Note 3: As forward exchange contracts, etc. subject to allocation accounting are accounted for together with the hedged accounts payable - 

trade, etc., their fair value is included in that of the accounts payable - trade, etc.

Previous Year (As of March 31, 2020)

Underlying asset Derivative instrument Hedge accounting Major hedged item
Contract amount (million yen) Fair value

(million yen)More than one year

(a) Interest rates Interest rate swap contracts

Exceptional accounting of 
interest rate swaps Long-term borrowings 66,572 66,572 See (Note 2)

Principal method of 
accounting

Long-term borrowings 
and bonds payable 136,203 132,403 (8,181) 

(b) Currencies Forward exchange contracts and 
currency option contracts

Allocation accounting of forward 
exchange contracts, etc.

Forecast transactions 
denominated in foreign currencies 10,166 265 See (Note 3)

Principal method of 
accounting

Forecast transactions 
denominated in foreign currencies 136,474 133,143 13,515 

(c) Commodities Swap contracts and option 
contracts on energy prices, etc.

Principal method of 
accounting

Purchase prices of raw 
materials, etc. 74,778 45,160 (7,111)

Total 424,194 377,545 (1,777)

Note 1: The fair value is measured mainly based on the prices provided by counterparty financial institutions.
Note 2: As interest rate swaps subject to exceptional accounting are accounted for together with the hedged long-term borrowings, their fair 

value is included in that of the long-term borrowings.
Note 3: As forward exchange contracts, etc. subject to allocation accounting are accounted for together with the hedged accounts payable - 

trade, etc., their fair value is included in that of the accounts payable - trade, etc.

Current Year (As of March 31, 2021)

Derivatives
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Note: Consolidated subsidiaries which have adopted the simplified method are included.

(3) Reconciliations of the closing balances of retirement benefit obligations and plan assets, and retirement benefit liability and asset
recorded in the consolidated balance sheet

Previous Year
(As of March 31, 2020)

Current Year
(As of March 31, 2021)

Funded retirement benefit obligations 270,077 million yen 256,387 million yen

Plan assets (314,358) (340,124)

(44,280) (83,737)

Unfunded retirement benefit obligations 17,606 19,000

Total net defined benefit liability (asset) recorded 
in the consolidated balance sheet

(26,674) (64,736)

Retirement benefit liability 17,590 18,758

Retirement benefit asset (44,264) (83,494)

Total net defined benefit liability (asset) recorded 
in the consolidated balance sheet

(26,674) (64,736)

Note: The retirement benefit cost for consolidated subsidiaries which have adopted the simplified method is included in “Service cost.”

(4) Retirement benefit costs and components thereof
Previous Year

(April 1, 2019 - March 31, 2020)
Current Year

(April 1, 2020 - March 31, 2021)

Service cost 8,596 million yen 9,281 million yen

Interest cost 912 868

Expected return on plan assets (6,749) (6,805)

Net actuarial loss amortization (3,396) (2,884)

Past service cost amortization (30) (15)

Total retirement benefit costs (667) 443

1 Summary of the adopted retirement benefit plans

The Company and its consolidated subsidiaries have adopted 
funded and unfunded defined benefit plans and defined 
contribution plans. As for defined benefit plans, the Company and 
most consolidated subsidiaries provide lump sum retirement 
payment plans, and the Company and certain consolidated 
subsidiaries provide defined benefit corporate pension plans or 
corporate pension fund plans.
The Company has adopted a defined benefit corporate pension 

plan since August 1, 2006 and a defined contribution pension plan 
to which part of the defined benefit plan transitioned since January 
1, 2005.
As certain consolidated subsidiaries participate in the corporate 
pension fund of the multi-employer pension plans, they cannot 
determine the amount of pension assets corresponding to their 
contribution. Therefore, such plans are accounted for in the same 
manner as defined contribution plans.

2 Defined benefit plans

(1) Reconciliations of the opening and closing balances of retirement benefit obligations

Note: Consolidated subsidiaries which have adopted the simplified method are included.

Previous Year
(April 1, 2019 - March 31, 2020)

Current Year
(April 1, 2020 - March 31, 2021)

Balance at beginning of year 290,819 million yen 287,683 million yen

Service cost 8,596 9,281

Interest cost 912 868

Actuarial loss (gain) (298) (7,718)

Benefits paid (14,531) (14,992)

Increase associated with an increase 
in consolidated subsidiaries 2,179 ー

Other 5 265

Balance at end of year 287,683 275,388

Note: Consolidated subsidiaries which have adopted the simplified method are included.

(2) Reconciliations of the opening and closing balances of plan assets
Previous Year

(April 1, 2019 - March 31, 2020)
Current Year

(April 1, 2020 - March 31, 2021)

Balance at beginning of year 322,665 million yen 314,358 million yen

Expected return on plan assets 6,749 6,805

Actuarial loss (gain) (5,478) 30,667

Contributions paid by the employer 1,802 1,744

Benefits paid (13,376) (14,032)

Increase associated with an increase 
in consolidated subsidiaries 1,997 ー

Other (0) 581

Balance at end of year 314,358 340,124

Notes to Retirement Benefits
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(5) Remeasurements of defined benefit plans

Items (before tax effect) recorded in remeasurements of defined benefit plans are as follows:

Previous Year
(April 1, 2019 - March 31, 2020)

Current Year
(April 1, 2020 - March 31, 2021)

Past service cost 30 million yen 15 million yen

Actuarial gain (loss) 8,579 (35,503)

Total 8,609 (35,488)

(6) Remeasurements of defined benefit plans

Items (before tax effect) recorded in remeasurements of defined benefit plans are as follows:

Previous Year
(As of March 31, 2020)

Current Year
(As of March 31, 2021)

Unrecognized past service cost (15) million yen ー million yen

Unrecognized actuarial gain (loss) (12,388) (47,909)

Total (12,404) (47,909)

② Method for setting long-term expected rate of return
In determining the long-term expected rate of return, the current and projected allocations of plan assets and the current and expected 
long-term investment returns on various assets constituting plan assets are taken into account.

Note: The main assets of “Other” are beneficiary securities in the real estate investment trust fund.

(7) Plan assets

① Major components of plan assets
The proportion of major categories to total plan assets is as follows:

Previous Year
(As of March 31, 2020)

Current Year
(As of March 31, 2021)

Bonds 23.9 % 19.6 %

Stocks 31.3 31.3

Cash and deposits 28.3 32.5

Other 16.5 16.6

Total 100.0 100.0

(8) Actuarial assumptions

Major assumptions for actuarial calculations are as follows:

Previous Year
(April 1, 2019 - March 31, 2020)

Current Year
(April 1, 2020 - March 31, 2021)

Discount rate Mainly 0.3 % Mainly 0.5 %

Long-term expected rate of return Mainly 2.1 % Mainly 2.2 %

3 Defined contribution plans

The contribution required to the defined contribution plan of the Company and its consolidated subsidiaries was ¥1,272 million for the previous 
fiscal year and ¥1,291 million for the current fiscal year.

4 Multi-employer pension plans

The multi-employer pension plans were accounted for in the same manner as the defined contribution plan. The contribution required to the 
corporate pension fund of the multi-employer pension plans was ¥84 million for the previous fiscal year and ¥86 million for the current fiscal year.

Previous Year
(As of March 31, 2019)

Current Year
(As of March 31, 2020)

Amount of plan assets 245,472 million yen 245,064 million yen

Total amount of actuarial obligation and minimum 
actuarial reserve in pension financing 200,586 202,774

Balance 44,885 42,289

(1) Recent funded status of multi-employer pension plans

Previous fiscal year 1.16% (weighted average) (March 1, 2019 - March 31, 2019)
Current fiscal year 1.22% (weighted average) (March 1, 2020 - March 31, 2020)

(2) Share of the Group’s contribution to overall multi-employer pension plans

The major factor contributing to the balance in (1) above was retained earnings (¥44,936 million for the previous fiscal year and ¥42,324 million 
for the current fiscal year).

(3) Supplementary explanation
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Previous Year (As of March 31, 2020)

One year or less
(million yen)

More than one year, 
up to two years

(million yen)

More than two years, 
up to three years

(million yen)

More than three years,
 up to four years

(million yen)

More than four years, 
up to five years

(million yen)

More than five 
years

(million yen)

Total
(million yen)

Tax loss carryforwards (a) 53 11 13 87 85 82,871 83,123  

Valuation allowance 35 11 13 87 57 30,908 31,113  

Deferred tax assets 18 ー ー ー 28 51,963 52,010  (b) 

(a)  A tax loss carryforward is the amount obtained by multiplying the effective statutory tax rate.
(b) Deferred tax assets of ¥52,010 million are recorded for tax loss carryforwards of ¥83,123 million (amount obtained by multiplying by the effective 

statutory tax rate). The Company does not recognize valuation allowances for the portion of the tax loss carryforwards deemed to be recoverable 
due to the prospect of future taxable income from the North American IPP business,the Freeport LNG Project, and the Australian upstream 
business.

Current Year (As of March 31, 2021)

One year or less
(million yen)

More than one year, 
up to two years

(million yen)

More than two years, 
up to three years

(million yen)

More than three years, 
up to four years(

million yen)

More than four years, 
up to five years

(million yen)

More than five 
years

(million yen)

Total
(million yen)

Tax loss carryforwards (a)  32 15 31 55 98 91,245 91,478 

Valuation allowance 13 15 31 52 98 35,755 35,967   

Deferred tax assets  19 ー ー 2 ー 55,489 55,511  (b) 

(a)  A tax loss carryforward is the amount obtained by multiplying by the effective statutory tax rate.
(b) Deferred tax assets of ¥55,511 million are recorded for tax loss carryforwards of ¥91,478 million (amount obtained by multiplying by the effective 

statutory tax rate). The Company does not recognize valuation allowances for the portion of the tax loss carryforwards deemed to be recoverable 
due to the prospect of future taxable income from the North American IPP business, the Freeport LNG Project, and the Australian upstream 
business.

Not applicable.

1 Breakdown of major causes for deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities

Note 1:  Valuation allowance has decreased by ¥7,786 million compared with the previous fiscal year. The primary component of this decrease 
is a decrease of ¥5,180 million in valuation allowance of Osaka Gas Liquefaction USA Corporation, a consolidated subsidiary.

Note 2:  Tax loss carryforwards and associated deferred tax assets by carryforward period

Previous Year
(As of March 31, 2020)

Current Year
(As of March 31, 2021)

Deferred tax assets

Tax loss carryforwards (Note 2) 83,123 million yen 91,478 million yen

Petroleum resource use tax for international business 17,447 18,997

Excess depreciation of depreciable assets 23,917 15,488

Other 55,015 57,421

Subtotal deferred tax assets 179,504 183,385

Valuation allowance on tax loss carryforwards (Note 2) (31,113) (35,967)

Valuation allowance on the total of deductible temporary differences (58,833) (46,192)

Subtotal valuation allowance (Note 1) (89,946) (82,159)

Total deferred tax assets 89,557 101,226 

Deferred tax liabilities

Temporary differences related to investments in affiliates (43,960) (42,248)

Valuation difference on available-for-sale securities (15,586) (24,752)

Retirement benefit asset (12,399) (23,391)

Other (22,463) (26,746)

Total deferred tax liabilities (94,409) (117,138)

Net deferred tax assets (liabilities) (4,851) (15,912)

Notes to Stock Options

Tax Effect Accounting
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2 Breakdown of major items causing the difference between the statutory effective tax rate and the burden rate of income taxes after 
applying tax effect accounting

Previous Year
(As of March 31, 2020)

Current Year
((As of March 31, 2021)

Statutory effective tax rate 28.0 %  28.0 %

(Reconciliation)

Share of loss (profit) of entities accounted for using equity method (2.1) (3.5)

Valuation allowance 10.9 (1.9)

Difference between the parent’s and subsidiaries’ effective statutory tax rates 1.9 0.4

Other 0.3 (0.1)

Burden rate of income taxes after applying tax effect accounting 39.0 % 22.9 %

Not applicable.

Business Combinations

Not applicable.

The Company and certain consolidated subsidiaries own office 
buildings and other properties for lease (including land) in Osaka 
Prefecture and other areas. Gains from the lease of such leased 
properties (recorded mainly as operating profit) are ¥7,258 million 
for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2020 and ¥8,225 million for the 

fiscal year ended March 31, 2021.
The carrying amount in the consolidated balance sheet, changes 
during the fiscal year, and the fair value of the leased properties are 
as follows:

Note 1: The carrying amount in the consolidated balance sheet is stated at acquisition cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.
Note 2: The main factor contributing to an increase was the acquisition of properties (previous fiscalyear: ¥15,500 million, current fiscal year: ¥22,770 million).
Note 3: The fair value at the end of the fiscal year is the amount (including the amount adjusted using the index, etc.) determined based mainly on the method 

prescribed by the “Real Estate Appraisal Standard” and other similar methods.
Note 4: Properties in development (amount recorded on the consolidated balance sheet: ¥3,763 million) are not included in the table above as development is 

currently underway and therefore it is difficult to determine fair value.

Previous Year
(April 1, 2019 - March 31, 2020)

Current Year
(April 1, 2020 - March 31, 2021)

Carrying amount in the consolidated balance sheet

Balance at beginning of year 128,315 million yen 143,553 million yen

Increase (decrease) 15,237 18,210

Balance at end of year 143,553 161,763

Fair value at end of year 232,263 241,772

【Segment Information】

The Daigas Group’s reportable segments are organizational units 
for which separate financial information is available, and they are 
regularly reviewed by the Board of Directors to determine the 
allocation of management resources and assess business results.
The Daigas Group classifies its products and services into 
business segments on the basis of two business domains: the 
Domestic and International Energy Business, and the Life & 
Business Solutions Business. It then divides those business 
segments into the following four reportable segments by 
considering the similarities of products and services: the Domestic 
Energy/Gas Business, the Domestic Energy/Electricity Business, 
the International Energy Business, and the Life & Business 
Solutions Business.
The Domestic Energy/Gas Business manufactures, supplies, and 
sells city gas, sells gas appliances, conducts gas pipeline 

installation, and sells LNG, LPG and industrial gas. The Domestic 
Energy/Electricity Business produces and sells electricity. The 
International Energy Business conducts development and 
investment related to petroleum and natural gas, supplies energy, 
and transports LNG. The Life & Business Solutions Business 
conducts development and leasing of real estate, information 
processing services, and sales of fine materials and carbon 
material products.
In addition, due to the reorganization of affiliated companies in the 
energy field on April 1, 2020, certain consolidated subsidiaries 
that were previously included in the Domestic Energy/Electricity 
segment are included in the Domestic Energy/Gas segment from 
the current fiscal year. The segment information presented for the 
previous fiscal year is based on the reportable segment 
classification after the reorganization.

1 Summary of reportable segments

Notes to Asset Retirement Obligations

Real Estate for Lease, etc.　

Segment Information, etc.
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3 Information of sales, profit (loss), assets, liabilities, and other items by reportable segment

Note 1: Adjustments are as follows:
            (1) A major adjustment in segment profit (loss) is the elimination of intersegment transactions.
            (2) A major adjustment in segment assets is for investment securities held by the Company.
Note 2: Segment profit (loss) is adjusted by adding share of profit (loss) of entities accounted for using equity method to operating profit (loss).

Previous Year (April 1, 2019 - March 31, 2020)
(million yen)

Reportable Segment

Total Adjustments
(Note 1)

Consolidated
(Note 2)Domestic 

Energy/Gas
Domestic Energy/

Electricity
International 

Energy
Life & Business 

Solutions

Net sales

Revenues from external 
customers 964,377 200,365 33,430 170,516 1,368,689 ー 1,368,689

Transactions with other 
segments 12,586 1,195 27,823 48,916 90,522  (90,522) ー

Total 976,963 201,561 61,254 219,432 1,459,211 (90,522) 1,368,689

Segment profit

Operating profit 52,666 8,373 2,952 19,676 83,669 122 83,792

Share of profit (loss) of 
entities accounted for 
using equity method

534 (517) 5,209 ー 5,225 ー 5,225

Total 53,200 7,855 8,162 19,676 88,895 122 89,018

Segment assets 911,159 208,403 625,410 390,693 2,135,666 4,815 2,140,482 

Other items

Depreciation 55,511 7,438 16,800 11,676 91,428 (1,469) 89,958

Amortization of goodwill ー 242 17 1,705 1,966 ー 1,966

Investment in entities 
accounted for using 
equity method

14,408 470 195,768 ー 210,647 ー 210,647

Increase in property, 
plant and equipment 
and intangible assets

66,007 26,809 8,914 32,216 133,947 (2,937) 131,010

Note 1: Adjustments are as follows:
            (1) A major adjustment in segment profit (loss) is the elimination of intersegment transactions.
            (2) A major adjustment in segment assets is for investment securities held by the Company.
Note 2: Segment profit (loss) is adjusted by adding share of profit (loss) of entities accounted for using equity method to operating profit (loss).

Current Year (April 1, 2020 - March 31, 2021)
(million yen)

Reportable Segment

Total Adjustments
(Note 1)

Consolidated
(Note 2)Domestic 

Energy/Gas
Domestic Energy/

Electricity
International 

Energy
Life & Business 

Solutions

Net sales

Revenues from external 
customers 903,488 246,162 45,761 168,694 1,364,106 ー 1,364,106

Transactions with other 
segments 12,601 1,129 23,438 47,891 85,059 (85,059) ー

Total 916,089 247,291 69,199 216,585 1,449,166 (85,059) 1,364,106

Segment profit

Operating profit 64,285 15,739 8,841 19,250 108,116 4,375 112,491

Share of profit (loss) of 
entities accounted for 
using equity method

1,050 (706) 13,274 ー 13,618 ー 13,618

Total 65,335 15,032 22,115 19,250 121,734 4,375 126,109

Segment assets 955,934 274,463 634,126 419,172 2,283,697 29,659 2,313,357 

Other items

Depreciation 56,908 8,550 23,329 12,315 101,103 (1,948) 99,155

Amortization of goodwill 210 393 (7) 1,692 2,288 ー 2,288

Investment in entities 
accounted for using 
equity method

15,256 3,922 190,912 ー 210,091 ー 210,091

Increase in property, 
plant and equipment 
and intangible assets

80,174 47,592 29,270 35,601 192,640 (3,185) 189,454

The method of accounting for reportable segments is generally 
the same as that stated in “Consolidated Financial Statements 
and Notes, Consolidated Financial Statements, Notes (Significant 

Matters Forming the Basis of Preparation of the Consolidated 
Financial Statements).” Transactions with other segments are 
determined according to prevailing market prices.

2 The method of measurements of sales, profit (loss), assets, liabilities, and other items by reportable segment
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【Information associated with reportable segments】

Previous Year (April 1, 2019 - March 31, 2020)

Current Year (April 1, 2020 - March 31, 2021)

The information is omitted as similar information is disclosed in “Segment Information.”

The information is omitted as there is no external customer who accounts for 10% or more of net sales in the consolidated statement of income.

The information is omitted as net sales in Japan account for more than 90% of net sales in the consolidated statement of income.

(1) Net sales

(2) Property, plant and equipment

1 Information by product and service

The information is omitted as similar information is disclosed in “Segment Information.”

1 Information by product and service

3 Information by major customer

The information is omitted as there is no external customer who accounts for 10% or more of net sales in the consolidated statement of income.

3 Information by major customer

2 Information by geographical area

(million yen)

Japan USA Australia Other areas Total

784,218 100,168 123,503 6,681 1,014,572 

2 Information by geographical area

The information is omitted as net sales in Japan account for more than 90% of net sales in the consolidated statement of income.

(1) Net sales

(2) Property, plant and equipment
(million yen)

Japan USA Australia Other areas Total

849,366 113,973 100,114 7,154 1,070,610 

【Information about impairment losses for non-current assets by reportable segment】

Previous Year (April 1, 2019 - March 31, 2020)

Current Year (April 1, 2020 - March 31, 2021)

(million yen)

Reportable Segment

Total
Unallocated 
amounts and 
elimination

TotalDomestic 
Energy/Gas

Domestic Energy/
Electricity

International 
Energy

Life & Business
Solutions

Impairment losses 61 ー 14,816 690 15,568 ー 15,568

(million yen)

Reportable Segment

Total
Unallocated 
amounts and 
elimination

TotalDomestic 
Energy/Gas

Domestic Energy/
Electricity

International 
Energy

Life & Business 
Solutions

Impairment losses 1,355 ー 14,214 3,446 19,016 ー 19,016
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【Information about the amortized amount and unamortized balance of goodwill by reportable segment】

【Information about gain on bargain purchase by reportable segment】

Not applicable.

Previous Year (April 1, 2019 - March 31, 2020)

Not applicable.

Current Year (April 1, 2020 - March 31, 2021)

Previous Year (April 1, 2019 - March 31, 2020)

(million yen)

Reportable Segment

Total
Unallocated 
amounts and 
elimination

TotalDomestic 
Energy/Gas

Domestic Energy/
Electricity

International 
Energy

Life & Business 
Solutions

Amortized amount during year ー 242 17 1,705 1,966 ー 1,966 

Unamortized balance at end of year ー 4,868 (14) 7,285 12,139 ー 12,139 

【Related Party Information】

Not applicable.

Previous Year
(April 1, 2019 - March 31, 2020)

Current Year
(April 1, 2020 - March 31, 2021)

Profit attributable to owners of parent (million yen) 41,788 80,857

Amount not attributable to common shareholders (million yen) ー ー
Profit attributable to owners of parent attributable 
to common share (million yen) 41,788 80,857

Average number of common shares during the 
fiscal year (thousand shares) 415,798 415,773

Previous Year
(April 1, 2019 - March 31, 2020)

Current Year
(April 1, 2020 - March 31, 2021)

Net assets per share 2,399.06 yen 2,602.18 yen

Earnings per share 100.50 yen 194.48 yen

Note 1: Since there were no potential shares with a dilutive effect, data on diluted earnings per share is not presented in this document.
Note 2: The following data was used for calculating earnings per share:

Current Year (April 1, 2020 - March 31, 2021)

(million yen)

Reportable Segment

Total
Unallocated 
amounts and 
elimination

TotalDomestic 
Energy/Gas

Domestic Energy/
Electricity

International 
Energy

Life & Business 
Solutions

Amortized amount during year 210 393 (7) 1,692 2,288 ー 2,288 

Unamortized balance at end of year 3,299 4,475 (6) 5,938 13,707 ー 13,707 

Per Share Information
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By resolution of the Board of Directors’ meeting held on April 23, 2021, it 
was decided that on April 1, 2022, as a tentative date, the Company will 
transfer the general gas pipeline service business through a company 
split to Osaka Gas Network Co., Ltd. (hereinafter referred to as “Osaka 
Gas Network” or the “succeeding company”). On the same date, we 
executed an absorption-type split agreement with the succeeding 
company (this company split shall be hereinafter referred to as the “Split”).
The Split is subject to the approval for the absorption-type split 
agreement at the Annual Meeting of Shareholders on June 25, 2021, and 
the relevant authorities’ approvals necessary for the Split.

1 Conclusion of an Absorption-type Split Agreement for Spin-
off of the Gas Pipeline Service Business

Significant Events after Reporting Period

(1) Background and purpose of the Split

Pursuant to the June 2015 amendment of the Gas Business Act, the 
Company, a general gas pipeline service business operator, will be 
prohibited from engaging also in the retail gas business or the gas 
production business from April 2022. The purpose of this amendment is 
to further secure neutrality of the gas pipeline service business.
In order to comply with the regulatory requirement and to establish an 
organizational structure to increase the value of our Group, we 
established Osaka Gas Network, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the 
Company, on April 1 of this year and executed an absorption-type split 
agreement with the subsidiary to transfer our general gas pipeline service 
business to the subsidiary which will become effective on April 1, 2022.
After the absorption-type split, our Group, including Osaka Gas Network, 
will continue to be a group of companies taking responsibility for the 
infrastructure sector, including the energy business, and to increase the 
value of our Group by fulfilling the obligation of the companies in our 
Group and maximizing the value we provide in our businesses.

(2) Outline of the Split

(3) Outline of parties to the Split

① Schedule of the Split

There will be no change in share capital due to the Split.

In accordance with the absorption-type split agreement, which 
was executed between the Company and the succeeding 
company on April 23, 2021, the rights and obligations of the 
Company in relation to the general gas pipeline service 
business and its incidental businesses will be transferred to 
Osaka Gas Network on the effective date of the agreement. 
With respect to the assumption of obligations by Osaka Gas 
Network through the Split, Osaka Gas Network will assume 
the obligations on a non-cumulative basis. In addition, the 
succeeding company wil l not assume the obligations 
associated with the existing bonds we have offered publicly.

It is expected that the Company and the succeeding company 
will continue to have assets in excess of liabilities after the 
Split, and presently, we do not expect the occurrence of any 
events that would cause an impediment to the performance of 
obligations arising after the Split. For these reasons, we have 
determined that there will be no concerns with respect to the 
ability of the Company and the succeeding company to 
perform the obligations after the Split.

⑤ Increase or decrease in share capital due to the Split

⑥ Rights and obligations transferred to the succeeding company

⑦ Expectation of performance of obligations

As part of the Split, Osaka Gas Network, the succeeding 
company, will issue 6,700,000 common shares and allot all of 
them to the Company.

The Company has not issued any share options or corporate 
bonds with share options.

③ Particulars of allotment due to the Split

④ Treatment of the Company’s share options and corporate 
bonds with share options

This is an absorption-type split in which the Company is a 
splitting company, and Osaka Gas Network, our wholly-owned 
subsidiary, is a succeeding company.

② Type of Split

Board of Directors’ meeting to approve the 
absorption-type split agreement (the Company) April 23, 2021

Determination by directors to approve the absorption-
type split agreement (succeeding company) April 23, 2021

Execution of the absorption-type split agreement April 23, 2021

General shareholders meeting to approve the 
absorption-type split agreement (the Company) June 25, 2021

Extraordinary general shareholders meeting to approve the 
absorption-type split agreement (succeeding company) June 25, 2021

Effective date of the absorption-type split April 1, 2022(tentative)

Splitting company
(As of March 31, 2021)

Succeeding company
(As of April 1, 2021)

(1) Company name Osaka Gas Co., Ltd. Osaka Gas Network Co., Ltd.

(2) Location 4-1-2, Hiranomachi, Chuo-ku, Osaka, Japan 4-1-2, Hiranomachi, Chuo-ku, Osaka, Japan

(3) Title and name of authorized representative Masataka Fujiwara, President and Representative Director Tsuyoshi Nakamura, President and Representative Director

(4) Description of business Manufacturing, supply, and sale of city gas, sale of LPG, 
and generation and sale of electricity, etc. Does not conduct business

(5) Share capital 132,166 million yen 100 million yen

(6) Date of establishment April 10, 1897 April 1, 2021

(7) Total number of issued shares 416,680,000 shares 2,000 shares

(8) End of accounting period March 31 March 31

(9) Major shareholders and ratio of shareholding

The Master Trust Bank of Japan, Ltd. (Trust Account)

Custody Bank of Japan, Ltd. (Trust Account)

Nippon Life Insurance Company (Standing 
Proxy: The Master Trust Bank of Japan, Ltd.)

Custody Bank of Japan, Ltd. (Trust Account 7)

MUFG Bank, Ltd.

8.13%

4.96%

4.63%

2.78%

2.69%

Osaka Gas Co., Ltd.	 100%

(10) Operating results and financial position for the most recent fiscal year

Fiscal year Fiscal year ended March 31, 2021, consolidated ー
Net assets 1,114,597 million yen 100 million yen

Total assets 2,313,357 million yen 100 million yen

Net assets per share 2,602.18 yen 50,000 yen

Net sales 1,364,106 million yen ー
Operating profit 112,491 million yen ー
Ordinary profit 127,752 million yen ー
Profit attributable to owners of parent 80,857 million yen ー
Earnings per share 194.48 yen ー

Note: Since the succeeding company was incorporated on April 1, 2021 and has no preceding fiscal year, (10) Operating results and financial position for the most 
recent fiscal year show the Net assets, Total assets and Net assets per share as of the date of incorporation.
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Based on the resolution of the Board of Directors’ meeting held on March 10, 2021, the Company decided to issue the 41st, 42nd, and 43rd 
series of domestic unsecured bonds on May 28, 2021, and issued them under the following conditions. A summary of the issuance is as follows:

2 Issuance of Bonds

(4) Outline of business unit to be split

(5) Status after the Split (As of April 1, 2022 (Scheduled))

General gas pipeline service business and its incidental businesses
① Description of business unit to be split

② Operating results of business unit to be split (Fiscal year ended March 31, 2021)

③ Items and amounts of assets and liabilities to be split (As of March 31, 2021)

Splitting company Succeeding company

(1) Company name Osaka Gas Co., Ltd. Osaka Gas Network Co., Ltd.

(2) Location 4-1-2, Hiranomachi, Chuo-ku, Osaka, Japan 4-1-2, Hiranomachi, Chuo-ku, Osaka, Japan

(3) Title and name of authorized representative Masataka Fujiwara, President and Representative 
Director

Tsuyoshi Nakamura, President and Representative 
Director

(4) Description of business Manufacturing and sale of city gas, sale of LPG, and 
generation and sale of electricity, etc. General gas pipeline service business, etc.

(5) Share capital 132,166 million yen 6,000 million yen

(6) End of accounting period March 31 March 31

41st domestic unsecured bond 42nd domestic unsecured bond 43rd domestic unsecured bond

(1) Type Straight bond Straight bond Straight bond

(2) Issue amount 20,000 million yen 10,000 million yen 10,000 million yen

(3) Issue price 20,000 million yen 10,000 million yen 10,000 million yen

(4) Interest rate 0.220% per year 0.576% per year 0.851% per year

(5) Method of redemption Lump-sum redemption at maturity Lump-sum redemption at maturity Lump-sum redemption at maturity

(6) Maturity June 3, 2031 June 3, 2041 June 2, 2051

(7) Date of issuance June 3, 2021 June 3, 2021 June 3, 2021

(8) Collateral Unsecured Unsecured Unsecured

(9) Use of funds Repayment of loans Repayment of loans Repayment of loans

Note: External net sales are stated.

Note: The amounts shown above are estimates pursuant to the current status as of March 31, 2021. The amounts that will actually be transferred will reflect any 
increase or decrease that may occur up to the day immediately preceding the effective date of the Split.

Description of business 
unit to be split

Net sales of business 
subject to split (a)

Non-consolidated net sales 
of the Company (b) Ratio (a/b)

General gas pipeline service business 
and its incidental businesses 58,983 million yen 1,053,584 million yen 5.6% 

Assets Liabilities

Item Book value Item Book value

Current assets 49,149 million yen Current liabilities 32,116 million yen

Non-current assets 327,898 million yen Non-current liabilities 10,105 million yen

Total 377,048 million yen Total 42,222 million yen

Financial Section107

daigas_ir_e_1-116_1004.indd   107daigas_ir_e_1-116_1004.indd   107 2021/10/05   10:312021/10/05   10:31

Company Name of issue Date of 
issuance

Balance at the beginning of 
current fiscal year

(million yen)

Balance at the end of current 
fiscal year (included portion 

due within 1 year)
(million yen)

Interest 
rate
(%)

Collateral Maturity

Osaka Gas The 18th domestic 
unsecured bond

February 12, 
2003 19,996 19,997 1.47 None December 20, 

2022

Osaka Gas The 20th domestic 
unsecured bond

August 17, 
2005 19,999 ー 1.79 None September 18, 

2020

Osaka Gas The 21st domestic 
unsecured bond

June 23, 
2006 9,997 9,997 2.33 None June 23, 

2026

Osaka Gas The 28th domestic 
unsecured bond

March 9, 
2011 10,000 ー 1.345 None March 9, 

2021

Osaka Gas The 29th domestic 
unsecured bond

December 9, 
2011 10,000 10,000

(10,000) 1.16 None December 9, 
2021

Osaka Gas The 30th domestic 
unsecured bond

December 14, 
2012 10,000 10,000 0.759 None December 14, 

2022

Osaka Gas The 31st domestic 
unsecured bond

October 18, 
2013 10,000 10,000 0.748 None October 18, 

2023

Osaka Gas The 32nd domestic 
unsecured bond

March 24, 
2014 15,000 15,000 1.606 None March 24, 

2034

Osaka Gas The 33rd domestic 
unsecured bond

October 24, 
2014 20,000 20,000 1.402 None October 24, 

2034

Osaka Gas The 34th domestic 
unsecured bond

March 5, 
2015 10,000 10,000 1.685 None March 3, 

2045

Osaka Gas The 35th domestic 
unsecured bond

December 9, 
2016 10,000 10,000 0.986 None December 8, 

2056

Osaka Gas The 36th domestic 
unsecured bond

June 6, 
2019 20,000 20,000 0.642 None June 4, 

2049

Osaka Gas The 37th domestic 
unsecured bond

June 6, 
2019 20,000 20,000 0.818 None June 6, 

2059

Osaka Gas The 38th domestic 
unsecured bond

September 5, 
2019 20,000 20,000 0.4 None September 3, 

2049

Osaka Gas The 39th domestic 
unsecured bond

September 5, 
2019 5,000 5,000 0.545 None September 5, 

2058

Osaka Gas The 40th domestic 
unsecured bond

September 5, 
2019 10,000 10,000 0.7 None September 5, 

2069

Osaka Gas

#1 Unsecured corporate 
bonds with interest 
deferrable clause and 
e a r l y  r e d e e m a b l e 
option (subordinated 
corporate bonds)

December 12, 
2019 50,000 50,000 0.44 None December 12, 

2079

Osaka Gas

#2 Unsecured corporate 
bonds with interest 
deferrable clause and 
e a r l y  r e d e e m a b l e 
option (subordinated 
corporate bonds)

December 12, 
2019 50,000 50,000 0.6 None December 12, 

2079

Osaka Gas

#3 Unsecured corporate 
bonds with interest 
deferrable clause and 
e a r l y  r e d e e m a b l e 
option (subordinated 
corporate bonds)

September 10, 
2020 ー 27,000 0.490 None September 10, 

2080

Osaka Gas

#4 Unsecured corporate 
bonds with interest 
deferrable clause and 
e a r l y  r e d e e m a b l e 
option (subordinated 
corporate bonds)

September 10, 
2020 ー 48,000 0.630 None September 10, 

2080

Total ー ー 319,992 364,995
(10,000) ー ー ー

【Annexed consolidated detailed schedule of corporate bonds】

One year or less
(million yen)

More than one year, up to 
two years

(million yen)

More than two years, up to 
three years
(million yen)

More than three years, up 
to four years
(million yen)

More than four years, up to 
five years

(million yen)

10,000 30,000 10,000 ー ー

Note: The redemption schedule within 5 years after the consolidated fiscal year-end is as follows:

Annexed Consolidated Detailed Schedules
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Category
Balance at beginning

 of year
(million yen)

Balance at end 
of year

(million yen)

Average 
interest 
rate (%)

Payment due

Short-term borrowings 20,029 13,546 0.3 ー
Current portion of long-term borrowings 38,070 58,981 1.0 ー
Current portion of lease obligations 1,582 1,693 ー ー
Long-term borrowings (excluding current portion) 363,757 333,263 1.0 From April 2022 to December 2047

Lease obligations (excluding current portion) 10,574 12,902 ー From April 2022 to February 2039

Total 434,013 420,387 ー ー

【Annexed consolidated detailed schedule of borrowings】

More than one year, 
up to two years

(million yen)

More than two years, 
up to three years

(million yen)

More than three years, 
up to four years

(million yen)

More than four years, 
up to five years

(million yen)

Long-term borrowings 36,484 53,703 49,026 43,112

Lease obligations 1,891 1,402 1,295 1,217  

Note 1: “Average interest rate” shows weighted average interest rates with respect to the year-end balances of borrowings. “Average interest rate” for lease 
obligations is not stated because lease obligations are recorded in the consolidated balance sheet at the amount before deducting the interest-equivalent 
component included in the total lease payment.

Note 2: The repayment schedule within 5 years after the consolidated fiscal year-end for long-term borrowings and lease obligations (excluding current portion) is as follows:

【Annexed consolidated detailed schedule of asset retirement obligations】

The amount of asset retirement obligations was 1% or less of total liabilities and net assets at the beginning of the current fiscal year as well as 
at the end of the current fiscal year. Therefore, the schedule of asset retirement obligations is not disclosed.
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Internal Control Report

Article 24-4-4, Paragraph 1 of the Financial Instruments and 

Exchange Act

Director-General of the Kanto Local Finance Bureau

June 28, 2021

OSAKA GASU KABUSHIKI KAISHA

OSAKA GAS CO., LTD.

Masataka Fujiwara, Representative Director and President

ー

4-1-2 Hiranomachi, Chuo-ku, Osaka, Japan

Tokyo Stock Exchange, Inc.

(2-1 Nihombashi Kabutocho, Chuo-ku, Tokyo)

Nagoya Stock Exchange, Inc.

(8-20, Sakae 3-chome, Naka-ku, Nagoya)
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Masataka Fujiwara, Representative Director and President, is responsible for the maintenance and operation of a system for internal control over financial 
reporting of OSAKA GAS CO., LTD. (the “Company”), and maintains and operates the system for internal control over financial reporting in accordance with the 
basic framework for internal control set forth in the “Revisions to the Standards and Practice Standards for Management Assessment and Audit concerning 
Internal Control over Financial Reporting (Council Opinions)” published by the Business Accounting Council.
Internal control is intended to achieve its objectives to a reasonable extent by organically linking basic elements of internal control and having them function in a 
unified manner. For this reason, there are possibilities that internal control over financial reporting will fail to completely prevent or detect misstatements in financial 
reporting.

The assessment of internal control over financial reporting was conducted as of March 31, 2021, the base date or the last day of the fiscal year under review. In 
making the assessment, we complied with the assessment standards for internal control over financial reporting that are generally accepted as fair and 
appropriate.
In this assessment, we assessed internal control with a significant impact on overall financial reporting on a consolidated basis (company-wide internal control). 
Based on the results of such assessment, we selected business processes that we should assess. In assessing such business processes, we analyzed the 
selected business processes, identified key points in control with a significant impact on the reliability of financial reporting, and assessed the effectiveness of the 
internal control by assessing the maintenance and operation status of the said key points in control.
As for the scope of the assessment of internal control over financial reporting, we determined the necessary scope for the Company, its consolidated subsidiaries, 
and equity method associates, based on the materiality of the effect on the reliability of financial reporting. We determined the materiality of the effect on the 
reliability of financial reporting, while considering the materiality of the monetary and qualitative effects, and reasonably determined the scope of the assessment 
of internal control over business processes based on the result of the assessment of the company-wide internal control over the Company, 3 2 consolidated 
subsidiaries, and 7 equity method associates. 122 consolidated subsidiaries and 20 equity method associates were not included in the scope of the assessment 
of company-wide internal control, as they were judged to be insignificant in terms of monetary and qualitative importance.
With regard to the scope of assessment of internal control over business processes, one business location that generated approximately two-thirds of the 
consolidated net sales in the previous consolidated fiscal year (after transactions between the consolidated companies have been eliminated) was designated as 
a “significant business location.” For the selected significant business location, we included the business processes leading to net sales, accounts receivable - 
trade, and inventories in the scope of assessment, as they are accounts that are significantly related to the company’s business objectives. Moreover, at business 
locations other than the selected significant business location, we included business processes related to significant accounts that have a high possibility of 
material misstatement and involve estimates and forecasts and business processes related to businesses or operations that involve transactions with high risk in 
the scope of assessment as we regarded them as business processes with high materiality, considering their impact on financial reporting.

As a result of the above assessment, we concluded that the Company’s internal control over financial reporting was effective as of the end of the fiscal year under review.

Not applicable.

Basis of Presenting Internal Control Report

The report on internal control over financial reporting of Osaka Gas Co., Ltd. (“Internal Control Report”) is prepared on the basis of generally accepted assessment 

standards of internal control over financial reporting in Japan and is translated from the Internal Control Report prepared by Osaka Gas Co., Ltd. as required by 

the Financial Instruments and Exchange Act of Japan.

1. Basic framework of internal control over financial reporting

2. Assessment scope, base date, and assessment procedures

3. Results of assessment

4. Supplementary information

5. Other
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Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Osaka Gas Co., Ltd. (“the Company”) and its consolidated subsidiaries 
(collectively referred to as “the Group”) provided in the “Financial Information” section in the company’s Annual Report, which comprise the 
consolidated balance sheet as at March 31, 2021 and the consolidated statement of income, the consolidated statement of comprehensive 
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary 
of significant accounting policies, other explanatory information and supplementary schedules, in accordance with Article 193-2(1) of the 
Financial Instruments and Exchange Act of Japan.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial position of 
the Group as at March 31, 2021, and its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in Japan.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in Japan. Our responsibilities under those standards are 
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements  section of our report. We are 
independent of the Group in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements in 
Japan, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have 
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial 
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, 
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Appropriateness of the valuation of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets recorded by Osaka Gas Australia Pty Ltd

The key audit matter How the matter was addressed in our audit

In the consolidated balance sheet of Osaka Gas Co., Ltd., property, plant and 
equipment and intangible assets of ¥106,474 million (see “Notes to Consolidated 
Financial Statements (Significant Accounting Estimates)”) owned by Osaka Gas 
Australia Pty Ltd (“Osaka Gas Australia”), a consolidated subsidiary in the 
International Energy segment, are recorded. They represented 4.6% of total assets.
Osaka Gas Australia applies International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and 
conducts an impairment test for any property, plant and equipment and intangible 
assets of a cash-generating unit for which there are indications of impairment, and if 
the recoverable amount is less than the carrying amount, the carrying amount is 
reduced to the recoverable amount, and the reduction in the carrying amount is 
recognized as impairment losses. The recoverable amount is the higher of either the 
value in use or fair value less cost of disposal.
Osaka Gas Australia has equity stakes in LNG development projects, and the 
profitability of those projects is affected by current and future crude oil price 
fluctuations, etc. As crude oil prices remained low during the current fiscal year, 
Osaka Gas Australia recognized indications of impairment for a portion of the cash-
generating unit and conducted an impairment test. Having found that the recoverable 
amount was less than the carrying amount, Osaka Gas Australia recorded impairment 
losses of ¥14,208 million (see “Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, (Notes 
to the Consolidated Statement of Income), ※4 Impairment losses”).
Osaka Gas Australia used the value in use as the recoverable amount in the 
impairment test. The future cash flows used to measure the value in use were 
estimated based on the business plan prepared by management. Key assumption 
underlying the business plan, such as the prospects for crude oil prices involved a 
high degree of uncertainty. Accordingly, management’s judgment thereon had a 
significant effect on the estimated future cash flows. In addition, selecting 
appropriate models and input data for estimating the discount rate, used to 
calculate the value in use requires a high degree of expertise in valuation.
We, therefore, determined that our assessment of the appropriateness of the 
valuation of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets recorded by Osaka 
Gas Australia was one of the most significant in our audit of the consolidated 
financial statements for the current fiscal year, and accordingly, a key audit matter.

In order to assess the appropriateness of the valuation of property, plant and 
equipment and intangible assets recorded by Osaka Gas Australia, we 
requested the component auditors of Osaka Gas Australia to perform an audit. 
Then we evaluated the report of the component auditors as to whether 
sufficient and appropriate audit evidence was obtained from the following 
procedures among others:
(1) Internal control testing

Test of the design effectiveness of internal controls relevant to measuring 
the value in use used for the impairment test.

(2) Assessment of the reasonableness of the estimated value in use
Assessment of the reasonableness of the crude oil price and discount 
rates, which are the key assumptions used in calculating the value in use 
by performing the following procedures:
● Performance of the following procedures by engaging a valuation 

specialist within the network firms of the component auditors:
・ Assessment of the appropriateness of the valuation model used to 

calculate the value in use
・ Comparison of the range of discount rates independently calculated by 

the specialist based on information published by external organizations 
with the discount rates adopted by management

・ Comparison of the range of the crude oil prices independently 
calculated by the specialist based on information published by external 
organizations with the crude oil prices adopted by management

● Sensitivity analysis with regard to changes in crude oil prices and 
discount rates

● Comparison of business plan with actual business performance 

Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements and Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

June 25, 2021

KPMG AZSA LLC
   Osaka Office, Japan

Daisuke Harada (Seal)
Designated Limited Liability Partner
Engagement Partner
Certified Public Accountant

Kenta Tsujii (Seal)
Designated Limited Liability Partner
Engagement Partner
Certified Public Accountant

Shoichiro Shigeta (Seal)
Designated Limited Liability Partner
Engagement Partner
Certified Public Accountant

To the Board of Directors of Osaka Gas Co., Ltd.

This English integrated report is not subject to an audit by an independent auditor.
The following Independent Auditor’s Report and Internal Control Audit Report is translated by Osaka Gas Co., Ltd. based on the original one attached in the 
original Annual Securities Report.
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Responsibilities of Management and Corporate Auditors and the Board of Corporate Auditors for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with accounting 
principles generally accepted in Japan, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of 
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, 
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in Japan.

Corporate auditors and the board of corporate auditors are responsible for overseeing the directors’ performance of their duties including the 
design, implementation and maintenance of the Group’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of 
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in Japan will always detect a 
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, 
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in Japan, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

・�Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and 
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve 
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

・�Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, 
while the objective of the audit is not to express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

・�Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by 
management.

・�Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and based on the audit evidence obtained, 
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a 
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related 
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based 
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to 
continue as a going concern.

・�Evaluate whether the presentation and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements are in accordance with accounting standards 
generally accepted in Japan, the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, 
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

・�Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities within the Group to express 
an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We 
remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

Accuracy of gas sales and electricity sales excluding wholesale

The key audit matter How the matter was addressed in our audit

Net sales were ¥903,488 million in the Domestic Energy/Gas segment 
and ¥246,162 million in the Domestic Energy/Electricity segment. They
represented 84.3% of consolidated net sales. Of these, gas sales in 
the Domestic Energy/Gas segment and electricity sales excluding 
wholesale in the Domestic Energy/Electricity segment (hereinafter 
collectively referred to as “Gas and Electricity Sales”) are particularly 
important in terms of the number of transactions and the amount 
recorded.
Gas and Electricity Sales are calculated using contract details data 
based on contracts with customers, sales volume data based on meter 
reading data, etc. There is a risk of material misstatement regarding 
the accuracy of the recorded amounts in recording Gas and Electricity
Sales, mainly due to the following reasons:

● The amount of each transaction is small, but the number of 
customers and contracts is very large, and the number of 
transactions processed is extremely large.

● The recorded amount is automatically calculated and aggregated 
by the business processing system and linked to the accounting 
system. Therefore, the recording process is highly dependent on 
automated internal controls of the business processing system.

● In the event that the contract details data, sales volume data, etc. 
are incorrect or the automatic calculation logic is incorrect, the 
impact could be far-reaching and have a significant impact on 
financial reporting due to the high degree of dependence on 
automated internal controls.

We, therefore, determined that our assessment of the accuracy of gas 
sales and electricity sales excluding wholesale was one of the most 
significant in our audit of the consolidated financial statements for the 
current fiscal year, and accordingly, a key audit matter.

In order to assess the accuracy of gas and electricity sales, we 
primarily performed the following audit procedures:
(1) Internal control testing

We tested the design and operating effectiveness of certain of the 
internal controls relevant to the revenue recognition process for Gas 
and Electricity Sales. In the assessment, we focused on the 
following internal controls, based on our understanding of the 
revenue recognition process. In addition, our IT specialists were 
involved in the assessment.
● Approval procedures for entering into contracts
● Automated internal control over the output of error reports that 

indicate abnormal meter reading data that deviate from a certain 
range in comparison with the previous meter readings

● Verification procedures for error reports that indicate abnormal 
meter reading data

● Automated internal control over fee calculations based on 
contract details data, sales volume data, etc.

● Approval procedures for manually correcting the results of 
automated calculations

● Automated internal control over the accuracy and completeness 
of data linkage from the business processing system to the 
accounting system 

In understanding the revenue recognition process, we prepare a 
process flow chart in order to clarify which areas have risk of 
material misstatement and whether the corresponding internal 
controls are designed.

(2) Substantive testing
● For Gas and Electricity Sales other than gas sales to large 

customers, we divided the population by categories of major rate 
plan options, developed independent estimates of sales for each 
category, and compared it with actual amounts.

● For gas sales to large customers, we developed independent 
estimates of sales for the entire amount and compared it with 
actual amounts.

● For gas sales to large customers, we identified customers who 
showed statistical outliers in the relationship between sales 
volume and sales unit prices, interviewed persons in charge, and 
inspected their contracts.

● We directly obtained response to the balance confirmation letters 
sent to the customers selected based on their monetary 
importance, using the balance of accounts receivable related to 
Gas and Electricity Sales as the population, and checked whether 
they matched book balances.
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* 1 The above is an electronic version of the original audit report, which is kept separately by the Annual Securities Report (Yuka Shoken 
Houkokusho) filing Company.

2 XBRL data is not within the scope of the audit.

We communicate with corporate auditors and the board of corporate auditors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of 
the audit, significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide corporate auditors and the board of corporate auditors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 
requirements regarding independence, and communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear 
on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with corporate auditors and the board of corporate auditors, we determine those matters that were of most 
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these 
matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, 
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be 
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on the Audit of the Internal Control Report

Opinion

We also have audited the accompanying internal control report of Osaka Gas Co., Ltd. as at March 31, 2021, in accordance with Article 193-2(2) 
of the Financial Instruments and Exchange Act of Japan.

In our opinion, the accompanying internal control report, which states that the internal control over financial reporting was effective as at March 
31, 2021, presents fairly, in all material respects, the results of the assessments of internal control over financial reporting in accordance with 
assessment standards for internal control over financial reporting generally accepted in Japan.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the internal control report in accordance with auditing standards for internal control over financial reporting generally 
accepted in Japan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Internal 
Control Report section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit 
of the internal control report in Japan, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Corporate Auditors and the Board of Corporate Auditors for the Internal Control Report

Management is responsible for the design and operation of internal control over financial reporting and the preparation and fair presentation of 
the internal control report in accordance with assessment standards for internal control over financial reporting generally accepted in Japan.

Corporate auditors and the board of corporate auditors are responsible for overseeing and examining the design and operation of internal control 
over financial reporting.

Internal control over financial reporting may not completely prevent or detect financial statement misstatements.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Internal Control Report

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the internal control report is free from material misstatement based on our 
audit of the internal control report and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.

As part of our audit in accordance with auditing standards for internal control over financial reporting generally accepted in Japan, we exercise 
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

・�Perform procedures to obtain audit evidence about the results of the assessments of internal control over financial reporting in the internal 
control report. The procedures for the audit of the internal control report are selected and performed, depending on the auditor’s judgment, 
based on significance of effect on the reliability of financial reporting.

・�Evaluate the overall presentation of the internal control report, including the appropriateness of the scope, procedures and results of the 
assessments that management presents.

・�Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence about the results of the assessments of internal control over financial reporting in the internal 
control report. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of the internal control report. We remain solely 
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with corporate auditors and the board of corporate auditors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of 
our audit of the internal control report, the results thereof, material weaknesses in internal control identified during our audit of internal control 
report, and those that were remediated.

We also provide corporate auditors and the board of corporate auditors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 
requirements regarding independence, and communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear 
on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Interest required to be disclosed by the Certified Public Accountants Act of Japan

Our firm and its designated engagement partners do not have any interest in the Company and its subsidiaries which are required to be disclosed 
pursuant to the provisions of the Certified Public Accountants Act of Japan

Notes to the Reader of Audit Report:

The Independent Auditor’s Report herein is the English translation of the Independent Auditor’s Report as required by the Financial Instruments 
and Exchange Act of Japan.
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Name of subsidiary Main business Capital
(million yen)

Osaka Gas shareholding
(indirect shareholding thereof)

(%)
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Osaka Gas Finance Co., Ltd. Leasing, assistance with installment payments, 
insurance agency business, and others 600 100.0

Osaka Gas Marketing Co., Ltd.
Sales of gas and electricity for residential 
customers, maintenance, sales of appliances, 
and home renovation, and others

100 100.0

Osaka Gas Liquid Co., Ltd. Sales of liquefied nitrogen, liquefied 
oxygen, liquefied argon, and others 1,110 100.0

Kinpai Co., Ltd. Gas piping works, and sales of gas appliances 
and housing equipment/appliances 300 100.0

Kansai Business Information Inc. Call center operation, temporary staffing, and various 
research services and consulting, and others 100 100.0

Daigas Energy Co., Ltd.

Sales and maintenance of gas and electricity for 
commercial customers; sales of appliances, 
engineering, and construction; energy service; 
sales of LNG and LPG; heat supply; and others

310 100.0

Daigas Gas and Power Solution Co., Ltd. Operation and maintenance of LNG terminals and power plants; 
power generation and sales of electricity; and engineering 100 100.0

D
om

es
tic

 E
ne

rg
y 

/ E
le

ct
ric

ity Inami Wind Power Co., Ltd. Electric power supply 495 100.0 (100.0)

Hayama Wind Power Generation Co., Ltd. Electric power supply 490 100.0 (100.0)

Hirogawa Myojin-yama Wind Power Generation Co., Ltd. Electric power supply 490 100.0 (100.0)

Senboku Natural Gas Power Generation Co., Ltd. Electric power supply 2,000 90.0

Daigas Oita Mirai Solar Co., Ltd. Electric power supply 8 100.0 (100.0)

Nakayama Joint Power Generation Co., Ltd. Electric power supply 300 95.0 (95.0)

Nakayama Nagoya Joint Power Generation Co., Ltd. Electric power supply 450 95.0 (95.0)

In
te

rn
at

io
na

l E
ne

rg
y

Osaka Gas International Transport Inc. LNG transport 3,190 100.0

Osaka Gas Australia Pty. Ltd. (Note 1) Development of and investment in 
petroleum and natural gas, and others US$1,327 million 100.0

Osaka Gas Gorgon Pty. Ltd. (Note 1) Development of and investment in 
petroleum and natural gas, and others US$322 million 100.0 (100.0)

Osaka Gas Ichthys Pty. Ltd. (Note 1) Development of and investment in 
petroleum and natural gas, and others US$152 million 100.0 (100.0)

Osaka Gas Ichthys Development Pty. Ltd. (Note 1) Development of and investment in 
petroleum and natural gas, and others US$149 million 100.0 (100.0)

Osaka Gas UK, Ltd. (Note 1) Investment relating to energy supply 
business, and others €134 million 100.0

Osaka Gas USA Corporation Investment in petroleum and natural gas 
project, energy supply business, and others US$1 100.0
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Osaka Gas Chemicals Co., Ltd. (Note 1) Manufacture and sales of fine materials, carbon material 
products, activated carbon, and wood protective coating 14,231 100.0

Osaka Gas Urban Development Co., Ltd. Development, leasing, management, and 
sales of real estate 1,570 100.0

Osaka Gas Facilities Corporation Operation, management, maintenance of 
buildings and facilities, and others 100 94.4

OGIS-RI Co., Ltd. Software development / Computer-based 
data processing services 440 100.0

Sakura Information Systems Co., Ltd. Development of computer software / 
Computer-based data processing services 600 51.0 (51.0)

Jacobi Carbons AB Manufacture and sales of activated carbon 549,000 Swedish Kronor 100.0 (100.0)

Mizusawa Industrial Chemicals, Ltd. Manufacture and sales of absorbent 
functional materials and resin additives 1,519 100.0 (100.0)

and others, totaling 154 companies

As of March 31, 2021

Consolidated subsidiaries

Group Companies

Name of affiliate Main business Capital
(million yen)

Osaka Gas shareholding
(indirect shareholding thereof)

(%)

Japan Gas Energy Corporation Domestic Energy/Gas 3,500 29.0 (29.0)

CD Energy Direct Co., Ltd. Domestic Energy/Electricity 1,750 50.0

Idemitsu Snorre Oil Development Co., Ltd. International Energy 100 49.5 (49.5)

FLIQ1 Holdings, LLC International Energy ― 25.0 (25.0)

Sumisho Osaka Gas Water UK Limited International Energy 164 million British Pounds 50.0 (50.0)

and others, totaling 27 companies

Note 1: Specified subsidiary
Note 2: The Company has introduced a cash management system to make financial arrangements with group companies, and lending and borrowing of funds 

takes place between these companies and the Company.

Note: The column “Main business” shows segment names listed in “Segment Information” in this report.

Equity method affiliates

Corporate Data115
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Directory

Investor Information

Shareholder
Number of shares

(Thousands)
Shareholding ratio

(%)
The Master Trust Bank of Japan, Ltd. (Trust a/c) 33,787 8.13
Custody Bank of Japan, Ltd. (Trust a/c) 20,631 4.96
Nippon Life Insurance Company 
(Standing Proxy: The Master Trust Bank of Japan, Ltd.) 19,242 4.63

Custody Bank of Japan, Ltd. (Trust a/c 7) 11,561 2.78
MUFG Bank, Ltd. 11,188 2.69
Resona Bank, Ltd. 10,555 2.54
STATE STREET BANK WEST CLIENT‒TREATY 505234 
(Standing Proxy: Mizuho Bank, Ltd.) 6,320 1.52

Aioi Nissay Dowa Insurance Co., Ltd. 
(Standing Proxy: The Master Trust Bank of Japan, Ltd.) 5,973 1.44

Meiji Yasuda Life Insurance Company 
(Standing Proxy: Custody Bank of Japan, Ltd.) 5,838 1.40

JPMorgan Securities Japan Co., Ltd. 5,569 1.34

As of June 30, 2021

Note: The share ratio is the percentage in respect to the number of shares issued and outstanding.

Head Office
4-1-2, Hiranomachi, Chuo-ku, Osaka 
541-0046, Japan
Tel: (+81) 6-6205-4715 (IR Team, 
Corporate Strategy Dept.)

Tokyo Office
Shin-Otemachi Building 6F, 2-2-1, 
Otemachi, Chiyoda-ku, Tokyo 
100-0004, Japan

Osaka Gas UK, Ltd.
1st Floor, Carrington House, 126-130 
Regent Street, London W1B 5SE, U.K.

● �For inquiries about this report or requests for other materials, please contact:
　　 E-mail:keiri@osakagas.co.jp

● �Please note that we do not accept files attached to e-mails, such as image files.

Date of Establishment

Regular General Meeting

Common Stock

Listing of Shares

Number of Shareholders
(As of March 31, 2021)

Stock Transaction Units

Independent Certified
Public Accountants

Transfer Agent

Major Shareholders (As of March 31, 2021)

Stock Price Range

Contact

April 10, 1897

Held in June each year 
(The 2021 regular general meeting was held on June 25)

Authorized: 700,000,000 shares
Issued: 416,680,000 shares

Tokyo Stock Exchange and Nagoya Stock Exchange

85,163

100 shares

KPMG AZSA LLC

Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Bank, Limited

Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Bank, Limited
Stock Transfer Agency Business Planning Department
Tel: (+81) 120-782-031 (Toll-free in Japan)

Osaka Gas USA Corporation (Houston)
1330 Post Oak Blvd, Suite 1900 Houston, 
TX 77056, U.S.A.

Osaka Gas USA Corporation (New York)
1 North Lexington Avenue, Suite 1400, 
White Plains, NY 10601, U.S.A.

Osaka Gas USA Corporation (Silicon Valley)
440 North Wolfe Rd, Sunnyvale, CA 94085, 
U.S.A

Sabine Oil & Gas Corporation
1415 Louisiana Street, Suite 1600, 
Houston, TX 77002, U.S.A.

Osaka Gas Australia Pty Ltd
Level 22, 108 St Georges Terrace, Perth, WA 
6000, AUSTRALIA

Osaka Gas Singapore Pte. Ltd.
Osaka Gas Energy Supply and Trading 
Pte. Ltd.
182 Cecil Street #31-02 Frasers Tower 
Singapore 069547

Osaka Gas (Thailand) Co., Ltd.
55 Wave Place Building 10th Floor, Unit10.04, 
Wireless Road Lumpini Pathumwan, Bangkok 
10330, Thailand

Osaka Gas Singapore Pte. Ltd. 
(Indonesia)
PT OSAKA GAS INDONESIA
Summitmas I, lantai 9 Jl. Jend. Sudirman 
Kav 61-62 Jakarta-12190, Indonesia

Osaka Gas Singapore Pte. Ltd. 
(Philippines)
Manila Representative Office 26th Floor, 
Twenty-Four Seven McKinley Building, 
24th Street Corner 7th Avenue, Bonifacio 
Global City, Taguig, Metro Manila, 
Philippines

We have created a page for investors on our website, which is 
updated in a timely manner.

https://www.osakagas.co.jp/en/ir/

Unit Conversion List

Company Data
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Osaka Gas (left) Nikkei Stock Average (right)

3,500 30,000

(yen)(yen)

Weight
kg Metric ton Imperial (short) ton U.S. (long) ton
1 1×10-3 0.984×10-3 1.102×10-3

1,000 1 0.9842 1.1023
1,016.0 1.0160 1 1.1200
907.19 0.9072 0.8927 1

Energy
kcal Btu MJ kWh
1 3.969 4.186×10-3 1.162×10-3

0.2520 1 1.055×10-3 0.2929×10-3

238.9 948.2 1 0.2778
860.1 3,414 3.600 1

Volume (Liquid)
m³ (kl) ft³ Imperial gallon U.S. gallon
1 35.315 219.97 264.17
28.32×10-3 1 6.288 7.481
4.55×10-3 0.1606 1 1.2011
3.78×10-3 0.1337 0.8327 1
1 kl = 6.29 barrels, 1 barrel (42 U.S. gallons) = 0.159 kl

Heating Value (Gas)
kcal/m³ (N) Btu/SCF MJ/m³ (S)
1 0.1063 3.97×10-3

9.406 1 3.73×10-2

252.1 26.81 1
1 ton of LNG = 13×106 kcal = 52×106 Btu

Volume (Gas)
m³ (N) m³ (S) SCF
1 1.055 37.33
0.9476 1 35.37
0.0268 0.0283 1
N: 0 °C, S: 15 °C, SCF: 101.33 kPa, 15.5 °C (60 °F)

Length
m ft yard mile
1 3.2808 1.0936 0.622×10-3

0.3048 1 0.333 0.189×10-3

0.9144 3 1 0.568×10-3

1,609 5,280 1,760 1
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